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PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Item1. Business
A. Description of Business
(1) Business Development.

NOW Corporation (the “Company”) was originally incorporated on June 5, 1996 as MF Schroder &
Co., Inc., initially to engage in the purchase and sale of securities. MF Schroder & Co., Inc. was then a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Amalgamated Investment Bancorporation (AIB), a full-fledged and duly licensed
investment house.

In January 2002, MF Schroder & Co., Inc. was renamed Cashrounds, Inc. (Cashrounds), with the
primary purpose to engage in the business of securities brokerage relating to the sale, transfer or exchange
of every description of shares of stock and bonds, and to execute such transactions with the use of
information technology.

On March 22, 2005, a Memorandum of Agreement was executed by AIB and Gamboa Holdings, Inc.
(Gamboa), whereby AIB agreed to sell and Gamboa agreed to purchase 18,171,286 or 2/3 of the shares of
stock of Cashrounds at an aggregate purchase price of Php74,395,000.00.

The sale of Cashrounds shares to Gamboa was made on June 3 and August 30, 2005 which
resulted in Gamboa owning 66.67% of Cashrounds.
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On April 28, 2006, Cashrounds entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with NOW
Telecom Company, Inc., formerly known as Next Mobile, Inc. (NOW Telecom) and five controlling
shareholders of NOW Telecom namely, Top Mega Enterprises Limited, Joyce Link Holdings Limited, Gamboa
Holdings, Inc., Emerald Investments Inc., Food Camp Industries and Marketing, Inc. (the five companies
collectively known as NOW Telecom Shareholders) whereby existing shares of NOW Telecom owned by the
NOW Telecom Shareholders were swapped with new shares issued by Cashrounds pursuant to an increase
in authorized capital stock.

As a result of the above-mentioned exchange of shares of stock, the NOW Telecom Shareholders
acquired 97% equity interest of Cashrounds, while Cashrounds acquired 19% of NOW Telecom.

On September 19, 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the increase in
the authorized capital stock of Cashrounds to Php1.320 billion with corresponding increase of its paid-up
capital to Phpl,317,278,350 as well as the change of the corporate name from Cashrounds, Inc. to
Information Capital Technology Ventures, Inc.

On July 24, 2008, the SEC approved the amendment of Article Il of the Articles of Incorporation of
the Company’s Primary Purpose to read as follows:

To engage in the business of providing telecommunications, media and information
technology products and services, such as but not limited to the research, development,
production, management, marketing, and operation of the following: telecommunications
value added services through companies duly licensed to engage in wired and wireless,
fixed and mobile communications; software and hardware technology, business process
outsourcing, call center and other information technology applications; digital media and
other media except mass media; and to do all activities directly or indirectly connected
therewith or incident thereto.

On December 10, 2008, the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) approved the application of the
Company to list additional shares to cover its share-for-share swap transactions with the shareholders of
NOW Telecom. In addition, PSE likewise approved the Company’s transfer from the SME Board to the
Second Board of the Exchange.

On February 20, 2009, the PSE issued a circular informing the investing public of the Company’s
listing of additional 1,289,278,350 common shares effective February 24, 2009. This is to cover the share-for-
share swap transactions with the shareholders of NOW Telecom, namely, Top Mega Enterprises Limited,
Gamboa Holdings, Inc., Emerald Investments, Inc., Joyce Link Holdings Limited and Food Camp Industries
and Marketing, Inc., at a swap price of £1.00 per share.

The transfer of the Company from the SME to the Second Board finally took effect on June 29, 2009.

On March 12, 2010, the Board of Directors of the Company (BOD) approved the Company’s transfer
from the Second board to the First Board of the Exchange. In addition, the BOD approved the Company’s
increase in authorized capital stock from P1.32 billion to P5 billion as well as the listing of the additional
shares from the increase. Finally, the BOD approved the amendment of the Company’s By-Laws that will
allow waiver of pre-emptive rights.

On August 3, 2010, the SEC approved the Amendment of the Seventh Article of the Articles of
Incorporation of the Company to read as follows:
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No stockholder shall have any pre-emptive right of subscription to any class of shares of
stock of this Corporation, whether to the present authorized capital stock or any future
increases thereof.

On September 1, 2010, the Company entered into an agreement with Softrigger Interactive, Inc. and
Mr. Carlos C. Sevilla whereby the Company shall subscribe to new shares of stock of Softrigger Interactive,
Inc. totaling 34,134 which will be equivalent to 50% equity interest in Softrigger Interactive, Inc. post
investment.

On October 1, 2010, the Company entered into an agreement with Holy Cow Animation, Inc., Ms.
Marilyn D.L. Montano and Mr. Danilo F. Montano whereby the Company shall subscribe to new shares of
stock of Holy Cow Animation, Inc. totaling 53,937 shares which will be equivalent to 50% equity interest in
Holy Cow Animation, Inc. post investment.

Holy Cow Animation, Inc. is engaged in the business of providing computerized animation services
for film and/or television, including conceptualization, production and execution of shows, programs and
advertising campaigns using animation.

On December 20, 2010, the Company entered into an agreement with Softweb Consulting, Inc., Ms.
Rhennie T. Viloria, Mr. James Michael V. Santiago and Ms. Angel Madonna V. Santiago whereby the
Company shall purchase/subscribe to shares of stock of Softweb Consulting, Inc. totaling 5,050 which will be
equivalent to 50% equity interest in Softweb Consulting, Inc. post investment.

Softweb Consulting, Inc. is engaged in the business of IT consulting services and reseller of software
and hardware and other related products.

On December 21, 2010, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with Thumbmob
Philippines, Inc. (Thumbmob) to subscribe to new shares of stock of Thumbmob totaling 145,834 shares
which will be equivalent to 50% equity interest in Thumbmob, post investment. The Investment and
Subscription Agreement with Thumbmob is subject to the confirmation by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

On March 8, 2011, the Company filed with PSE its application for transfer from the Second Board to
the First Board of the Exchange.

The amendment of the Company’s Secondary Purposes to include the following was ratified by the
stockholders of the Company during the June 2, 2011 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

a. To provide professional services and manpower in the field of telecommunications, media and
information technology.

b. To buy, sell, lease, assemble, import, export, process and deal in any and all classes of
materials, merchandise, supplies and commodities of every kind and nature;

c. To act as commission agent, manufacturer’s representative, or principal for the purchase, sale
distribution, manufacture, assembly, import or export of any and all classes of materials,
merchandise, supplies and commodities of every kind and nature; and

d. To engage in and carry on the business of general and retail merchants, traders, factors, agents,
manufacturers, processors, dealing in or with any and all classes of materials, merchandise,
supplies and commodities of every kind and nature.

On March 17, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors confirmed/ratified the establishment of the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary named J-Span IT Services, Inc. in Tokyo, Japan. The Board likewise
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approved the establishment in the Philippines of a wholly-owned subsidiary to be named I-Resource
Consulting International, Inc.

On May 25, 2011, the SEC approved the incorporation of I-Resource Consulting International, Inc.
as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.The primary purpose of I-Resource Consulting International,
Inc. is to provide consulting, technical advice and professional advisory services to persons, firms,
association, corporations, partnerships and other entities.

On June 10, 2011, the SEC approved the incorporation of Porteon SEA, Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company with the primary purpose of engaging in the business of manufacturing, marketing
and selling of vehicles of all types, including but not limited to electric vehicles.

The amendment of the Secondary Purposes was approved by the SEC on August 25, 2011.

On September 02, 2011, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with Huawei
International Pte., Ltd., Huawei Technologies Phils., Inc. and NOW Telecom. The parties desire to explore
the possibility of entering into a business relationship which will allow each party to provide its respective
contribution in order to attain the common purpose of implementing NOW Telecom’s nationwide build-up
plans. The milestone agreement is expected to enhance the information capabilities of the Company and
NOW Telecom in partnership with the world’s largest information technology company Huawei.

On December 9, 2011, the Company executed a Memorandum of Agreement with the Filipino
American Chamber of Commerce of Orange County, a non-profit organization in the State of California, for
the use of a digital media portal through the Company’s latest technology platform NowPlanet. TV.

On August 25, 2012, the SEC approved the incorporation of |-Professional Search Network, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The primary purpose of I-Professional Search Network, Inc. is the
recruitment and placement of workers domestically. This is aimed at broadening the Company’s base in the
area of service-related business as well as to complement the Company’s other wholly-owned subsidiary, |-
Resource Consulting International, Inc., which provides consulting, technical advice and professional
advisory services to persons, firms, association, corporations, partnerships and other entities.

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of the Company approved the name change from
Information Capital Technology Ventures, Inc. to Now Corporation on 02 July 2013 and 06 June 2013,
respectively. On 16 August 2013, the SEC issued the Certificate of Filing of Amended Articles of
Incorporation and the Certificate of Revision of the Title of Amended By-Laws certifying the said name
change.

On December 27, 2013, the Company paid the amount of Php3,000,000.00 for the Company’s
subscription to 110,000 shares (at Php100.00 per share) on the proposed increase in the authorized capital
stock of I-Resource from Php1,000,000.00 to Php12,000,000 or increase from 10,000 shares to 120,000
shares. The proposed increase in the authorized capital stock of i-Resource was approved by the SEC on
April 2, 2014.

During the Special Stockholders’ Meeting held on January 22, 2015, the shareholders approved the
following: 1) increase of the capital stock of the Company from Phpl.32B to Php2.120B or an increase of
Php800M; 2) conversion of advances made by a shareholder, Velarde, Inc., in the amount of Php200M; 3)
application for listing with the PSE of the additional 200M shares to be issued from the increase in authorized
capital; and 4) waiver by a majority vote representing the outstanding shares held by the minority
shareholders present of the conduct of a rights or public offering of the shares to be subscribed by Velarde,
Inc. The Company’s Board of Directors had previously approved a higher increase of Php2.7B during its
November 27, 2014 meeting. However, upon further study and discussion, a lower amount was
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recommended and approved by the Board during a special meeting held on 22 January 2015 prior to the
Special Stockholders’ Meeting scheduled on the same day.

On 17 December 2015, the Securities and Exchange Commission approved the Company’s increase
in authorized capital from Php1,320,000,000.00 divided into 1,320,000,000 shares of the par value of
Php1.00 each to Php2,120,000,000.00 divided into 2,120,000,000 shares of the par value of Php1.00 each.

At the 29 April 2016 Special Meeting of the Board of Directors, the Board approved the increase of
the authorized capital stock of the Company from Php2.120B to Php3.0B. The Board likewise approved the
conversion into equity of the 264M advances accumulated since year 2011 from a shareholder, Velarde, Inc.,
at a conversion price of Phpl.22/share computed/ based on the daily average of the volume-weighted
average price of NOW shares for a 30-day trading period ending 14 April 2016; Finally, the Board approved
the listing of 216M shares that will be issued out of the said conversion and increase in authorized capital
stock.

In its 02 September 2016 Special Meeting, the Board of Directors approved the amendment of the
Seventh Article of Incorporation to authorize the creation of Sixty Million (60,000,000) Redeemable,
Convertible, Non-Participating and Non-Voting Preferred Shares with or without Detachable Warrants with a
par value of One Peso (Phpl.00) per share. The Board likewise approved the setting of the special
stockholders’ meeting on 08 November 2016 with the record date of 28 September 2016.

During the 08 November 2016 Special Stockholders’ Meeting, the shareholders present, by a
unanimous vote, approved the following: 1) Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on 02 June
2016; 2) Amendment to the Seventh Article of Incorporation (creation of 60M Redeemable, Convertible, Non-
Participating, and Non-Voting Preferred Shares with or without Detachable Warrants with a par value of One
Peso (Phpl.00) per share; 3) Approval for listing of 60M Redeemable, Convertible, Non-Participating, and
Non-Voting Preferred Shares with or without Detachable Warrants with a par value of One Peso (Php1.00)
per share; 4) Approval for issuance and public offering of 60M Redeemable, Convertible, Non-Participating,
and Non-Voting Preferred Shares with or without Detachable Warrants with a par value of One Peso
(Php1.00) per share.

The Shareholders likewise expressly granted the authority to the Board of Directors to determine: (1)
whether the issuance of the Preferred Shares shall be with or without warrants; (2) the actual number of
warrants to be issued in connection thereto, which shall in no case be more than two (2) times the total
number of Preferred Shares to be issued; (3) the total number of underlying common shares to be issued in
connection with such warrant, which shall in no case be more than the number of warrants to be issued; and
(4) to determine all other terms and conditions of the warrant including the strike price.

In its 21 December 2016 Regular Meeting, the Board of Directors approved the filing of the
Registration Statement, Listing Application and the terms and conditions and such other relevant acts in
connection with the intended public offering of shares of the Company.

On 10 January 2017, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued to the Company a Certificate
of Filing of Amended Articles of Incorporation (Amending Article VII reclassification of P60,000,000.00
Common Shares to Preferred Shares thereof).

At the 20 January 2017 Special Meeting of the Board, a resolution was passed approving the
issuance of detachable warrants in connection with the public offering of the Company’s preferred shares;

At the 07 August 2017 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, the following resolutions were
approved: 1) Acceptance of disengagement of SB Capital Investment Corporation (“SB Capital”) as one of
the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Bookrunners and Joint Lead Underwriters. 2) Appointment of SB Capital as
the Company’s Financial Advisor; 3) Grant of authority to the Chairman and President and CEO to negotiate
and engage the services of an Issue Manager, Bookrunner, Lead Underwriter for its proposed public offer of
preferred shares; 4) Reduction of the Company’s proposed public offering of its preferred shares from 15M
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preferred shares with 30M warrants to 5M preferred shares with 30M warrants thus resulting in the reduction
of the offer size from Php 1.5B to Php 500M.

In its 20 December 2017 Regular Meeting, the Board approved, in relation to its conduct of Public
Offering by way of a Follow-On Offering (“FOQ”) of its Preferred Shares of stocks, the offer and sale of up to
10,000,000 out of the 60,000,000 redeemable, convertible, non-participating and non-voting preferred share
with detachable warrants out of the unissued portion of the authorized capital stock of the Corporation (the
“Offer Shares”) and up to 20,000,000 Detachable Subscription Warrants to be issued free of charge with
20,000,000 underlying common shares (collectively, the “Warrant”).

On 22 December 2017, NOW Corporation filed its Registration Statement and Prospectus with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) pursuant to the Company’s application for the Follow-On
Offering of 5,000,000 redeemable, convertible, cumulative, non-participating, non-voting, Peso-denominated,
preferred shares with an Oversubscription Option of [5,000,000] with a par value of one peso (P1.00) per
share, with 10,000,000 detachable subscription warrants to be issued free of charge with 10,000,000
underlying common shares, with an Oversubscription Option of 10,000,000 Warrants and 10,000,000
underlying common shares of NOW Corporation.

NOW Corporation also has a pending application with the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”) for the
listing of 200M additional shares. On 20 February 2018, the PSE issued its initial comment and inquiries.
The Company is currently in the process of providing the information and documents requested by the PSE.

In its 15 March 2018 Regular Meeting, the Board resolved to delegate to the Executive Committee
the setting of the final conversion price related to the conversion into equity of the Php264,000,000.00
advances from a shareholder. Said conversion into equity was previously approved in 2017 by both the
Board and the Stockholders, respectively, and was likewise promptly disclosed to the Philippine Stock
Exchange.

On 15 March 2018, Atty. Lucas C. Carpio, Jr. tendered his resignation as an Independent Director of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation effective on the same date.

(2) Business of the Company

Pursuant to its new primary purpose, the Company has recently shifted its operations into
Telecommunications, Media and Technology (TMT). Its new primary purpose is primarily engaged in the
business of providing telecommunications, media and information technology products and services
under its three key operating business segments, namely: (i) Software Licenses and Services; (i) IT
Manpower and Resource Augmentation; and (i) Broadband and Wireless Cable TV Services. The
Company’s diverse products and services portfolio include software application development and
maintenance, collaboration software solutions, web integration, web and mobile applications
development, technical and maintenance services, IT manpower and resource augmentation, project
implementation and management, managed services outsourcing, and fixed wireless broadband
services, among others. The Company also offers value-added services through partnerships with
companies licensed to provide wired and wireless, fixed and mobile communications and cable TV
services.

Among the programs that the Company is currently offering would be TMT services such as
broadband networks worldwide, cloud hosting service, virtual private networks, multimedia content, online
gaming, web hosting, cloud-based multimedia conference, cloud-based mail and messaging service,
electronic communications network and services.

In 2016, the Company expanded its service offerings with the introduction of its “Fiber-in-the-Air”
fixed wireless broadband service with a CIR of up to 700 Mbps, a first of its kind in the Philippines. Through
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its partnership with NOW Telecom and Newsnet, a wireless telecommunications operator and a cable TV
service provider, respectively, the Company offers an affordable, alternative and high-speed broadband
service of up to 700 Mbps and wireless cable TV services to the underserved and unserved large enterprises
such as schools, hospitals, hotels, high-end residential buildings, and commercial buildings with multiple BPO
locators. Currently, the Company’s client broadband subscription ranges from 5 Mbps to 100 Mbps, which
may be further increased to up to 700 Mbps, depending on the clients’ bandwidth requirements. The
Company positions its fixed wireless broadband service either as primary, alternative or as an auxilary link to
existing broadband service providers.

The Company’s Fiber-in-the-Air fixed wireless broadband service allows its subscribers to download,
upload, stream and share files simultaneously without compromising performance. The Company deploys
competitively priced high-speed broadband bandwidth resources with high availability through its Point-to-
Point and Point-to-Multipoint Radios. From providing Software Licenses and Services to adding IT Manpower
and Resource Augmentation and Broadband Wireless Cable TV Services, the Company intends to deliver
high-speed broadband services with a CIR of up to 700 Mbps which may be bundled with enterprise
collaborations solution, wireless cable television and interactive multi-media applications.

Business Partners

NOW Telecom Company, Inc. (“NOW Telecom”), is a business partner which is in a unique
position to meet the unabated increase in demands for high speed broadband connectivity of large and
medium enterprises, government organizations, educational and medical institutions, financial institutions,
multi-tenant/ multi-level commercial and residential buildings, clustered urban residential communities and
special economic zones. This company is at the forefront in employing the latest state-of-the art wireless
technologies to address the demands of clients for customized solutions yet cutting edge broadband
technology.

The International Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”), is an American multinational
technology and consulting corporation. Since establishing its presence in the Philippines in 1937, it has
evolved to become the leader in information technology, providing hardware, software and IT-enabled
services to both local and global clients. IBM is known for the quality of its products and services in a long-
standing tradition of excellence, customer satisfaction, and commitment to business ethics and integrity.

The Asian Institute of Journalism and Communication, Inc. (“AlJC”), is a Knowledge
Management Center organized in 1980 as a graduate school of journalism, founded on the philosophy that
communication is a vital development resource to be used to advance the common good. It has a solid
record of more than 30 years in the communication field — as a graduate school for communicators and
journalists, a center for continuing education in journalism, communication, and knowledge management, and
a research and consulting firm advocating policies and implementing programs and projects that address
development issues and concerns both at the levels of national decision making and community-based
initiatives.

Brands
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WebsiteExpress.Biz (“WebsiteExpress.Biz”) is a one-stop shop website development service -
providing micro, small and medium sized enterprises affordable, professional websites in as fast as 5 days.

Products and Services

A. Software Licenses and Services

e IBM Collaboration Solutions

In partnership with IBM, the Company provides IBM collaborations solutions such as provision of software
and IT-enabled services aimed at developing business solutions and applications to ease business
operations and boost productivity of business enterprises. The Company has been categorized as a premier
business partner of IBM as an affirmation of its superior skills and market success. The Company resells
essential IBM tools and products that are designed to enable new capabilities that improve business
processes and help engage clients and employees in new ways. These IBM tools and products include
software for instant messaging that facilitates integrated team collaboration accessible by the client’s
employees across all applications and devices; file sharing and enterprise electronic mails which the client
can integrate in its business application allowing enterprises to have easy use real-time connections and
communication within their office space; and IBM Ustream video platform which can be utilized by enterprises
to distribute content via video.

Aside from these, the Company also resells at a competitive price IBM smartcloud services which include
tools for social business in the cloud. The Company also offers a wide array of IT software services including:
(i) software application development, maintenance and support; (ii) data analytics; (iii) e-forms; and (iv) portal,
all aimed to enhance the client’s overall experience. These services simplify business operations through
integrating digital technologies and functionality into a system.

The Company’s services also include technical services namely: migration, network administrator services,
technical support and other services related to the maintenance of IBM products.

From 2014 to 2015, the Company was hailed as the “Number One Software Collaboration Business Partner
in the Philippines” by IBM, a Fortune 500 multinational IT and consulting company, and one of the world’s top
providers of computer products and services. IBM has been the Company’s partner in delivering its
collaboration software solutions since 2010.

e Cloud Hosting Services
Cloud hosting services cover the virtualization of the IT infrastructure to mitigate the rapid pace of technology
obsolescence. These services are available to individual, small medium enterprises and corporate users in
two primary space categories: (i) dedicated; and (ii) shared.

In a dedicated space arrangement, clients are allocated dedicated hardware for their exclusive use. Shared
set-up are for clients with processing requirements that are not fixed, and which are clustered into a shared
hosting server with pre-defined performance commitments.

e Virtual Private Networks
VPN is an end-to-end protection and encryption services on network connectivity that ensures secured data
transport. The Company’s VPN service provides anonymity on the client’s connection to the internet by using
thousands of IP addresses and various server connections worldwide. VPN services passes internet filters
allowing secure internet access. It also routes all data transport traffic with new IP address through affiliated
secured servers located in various locations. This provides tracking difficulty and ensures a slim probability
that data transmission will be compromised.

e Cloud-based Multimedia Conferencing Services
Cloud-based multimedia conferencing services consist of cloud-based server and applications capable of
hosting multimedia conferencing application that will visually connect people in different physical locations in
the virtual space. This service is ideal for conducting classes, presentations, events, meetings, and lectures
for participants from multiple locations. This service provides a cost effective participation of more individuals
from multiple locations.
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e Web Hosting, Cloud-based Mail and Messaging Services
Web hosting services vary from personal to corporate with e-commerce application development, content
management, database and search engine optimization support. Cloud-based mail services carry a variety of
mail services ranging from electronic mail, facsimile mail, voice mail and video mail. Cloud-based mail
services also include storage, calendar, contact and task management, and virus protection. These are
available to individual, small medium enterprises and corporate clients.

e Digital Media Production

The Company also offers services such as website development, mobile application development, and
animation that can be used by business enterprises to create, manage and sustain their marketing and
communications through digital channels that are simple, functional and effective across multiple market
segments. These services allow business enterprises to increase their engagement with potential customers
and to create an online presence in order to capture a wider base market. One of the Company’s notable
projects is the “It's More Fun in the Philippines” website and mobile application that supported the campaign
of the Department of Tourism.

The Company offers its web development through WebsiteExpress.Biz. The Company has established the
brand WebsiteExpress.Biz as its vehicle in delivering quality and globally compliant websites catering to
micro and medium-sized enterprises. WebsiteExpress.Biz is a one-stop website development service
operator that provides development, domain, hosting, secure sockets layer certificates, shopping cart,
electronic mail, among others, without engaging multiple service providers. It operates at a subscription
model, providing micro and medium-sized enterprises and individual subscribers quality, affordable and
efficient websites in a span of five (5) days. One of the key features of WebsiteExpress.Biz is its responsive
web design which allows a website to be responsive in all mobile devices without developing a dedicated
mobile application for each kind of device.

Under its mobile application development, the Company offers customized mobile applications such as
cinematic three-dimensional, game-based learning, rich media, html5 animation and gestures to allow
businesses to enhance customer experience and increase brand loyalty. Through its competencies in digital
media production, the Company can cater to the requirements and specifications of each client in order to
deliver quality mobile applications for their businesses.

B. IT Manpower and Resource Augmentation

The Company, through its subsidiaries i-Resource and i-Professional, is engaged in the business of providing
consulting, technical advice and professional advisory services to persons, firms, association, corporations,
partnerships and other entities.

i-Resource is an information technology resource management company that provides IT knowledge
professionals to its clients. i-Resource principally deploys IT knowledge professionals to assist its clients in
managing the IT operations of their businesses ranging from short to long-term and mission-critical projects,
including data center management, network infrastructure maintenance and software management. This is
done through i-Resource’s dedicated sourcing group and business development managers.

The services of i-Resource can be further categorized into three sub-business segments, namely:

e |T Staff Augmentation
Under this sub-segment, i-Resource provides IT knowledge professionals for the IT-related needs of its
clients. Skilled personnel are deployed to provide additional IT knowledge professionals to the client’s current
roster or to provide additional support to the client’s existing project team, for a limited period. Specifically, i-
Resource offers the following services:

a) Resource Management Outsourcing — Resource management outsourcing pertains to the provision of
IT knowledge professionals by i-Resource to a client for a specific duration ranging from three (3)
months to one (1) year, some of which are renewable thereafter. The IT knowledge professionals
deployed remain to be employees of i-Resource during the period of engagement.
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b) Assignment of Staff — Assignment of staff pertains to the deployment of resource personnel by i-
Resource for a client in order to augment client manpower requirements.

c¢) Project Team Outsourcing — Project team outsourcing ensures enterprises of available project teams
that will be assigned to their project without the need to hire them directly. The assigned personnel may
include project managers, developers, business analytics and quality assurance testers.

e Managed Services
Aside from providing IT knowledge professionals, the Company, through i-Resource also services its clients
by allowing them to outsource certain business process to i-Resource. This managed services also include
trainings of IT candidates and team development for its clients. In addition, this sub-segment covers:

a) Managed Service Outsourcing - Clients may outsource a portion of their business processes such as
testing & quality assurance services, applications development, applications maintenance, disaster
recovery, desktop services, technology help desk services, call center help desk services and network
services (broadband internet) to i-Resource, in order for them to focus on their core business activities. i-
Resource services regular or critical projects based on targeted outcomes and service level agreements.

b) Train and Deploy - i-Resource develops the skills of fresh graduates based on client requirements
through boot camps. This is carried out in collaboration with iCollege, which is a center for continuing
education established by the Company in partnership with the Asian Institute for Journalism and
Communication, a knowledge management center organized in 1980 as a graduate school for
journalism.

c) Offsite Team Development — i-Resource develops a dedicated team of IT knowledge professionals
specifically for the client requirement, which are housed outside the client’s office.

e Search and Select
i-Professional serves as the recruitment arm of its clients by providing the following add-on services:

a) Contract to Hire — This allows enterprises to try and test IT knowledge professionals before actually
hiring by outsourcing them for a probationary period of six (6) months. The IT knowledge professionals
become employees of the client at the end of the probationary period should they qualify with the
standards of the client. The Company charges a one-time absorption fee.

b) Recruitment Process Outsourcing — This provides an end to end recruitment process for companies
with huge IT knowledge professional requirements. It also allows enterprises to outsource the
recruitment process of IT knowledge professionals for regular placements.

C. Broadband and Wireless Cable TV Services

An addition to the Company’s service portfolio is the Broadband and Wireless Cable TV Services. The
Company offers high-speed broadband service of up to 700 Mbps CIR to the underserved and unserved
large enterprises such as schools, hospitals, high-end residential buildings, and commercial buildings with
multiple BPO locators. The Company was the first to market the Fiber-in-the-Air fixed wireless broadband
service of up to 700 Mbps in the Philippines, which allows the Company’s subscribers to download, upload,
stream and share files simultaneously without compromising performance.

The Company deploys high-speed broadband bandwidth resources with high availability through its Point-to-
Point and Point-to-Multipoint Radios. The Point-to-Point and Point-to-Multipoint connectivity work through
network radio antennas that are installed atop strategically selected high rise buildings and establishments
around metropolis. The building’s rooftop where the radio antennas are installed must have a line of sight
basis from the Company’s nearest hub. This allows the user to send data over much greater distances while
maintaining speed and has the advantage of connecting users even in remote areas without the need for
cables. To further enhance its clients’ experience, the Company maintains a team of engineers and technical
support available on a 24/7 basis to keep its subscribers connected.

Competition
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With the continuous growth of the IT industry, both locally and globally, the competitive landscape
has become fierce with the rise of new and innovative technology services in the market. The Company’s
products and services have indirect and direct competitors in the following areas:

Broadband providers;

IBM Lotus Notes resellers and developers;
Microsoft Office 365 resellers and developers;
Web and mobile app development companies; and
Software engineering service providers.

arwNRE

As the Company continues to improve and enhance its product and services, its competitive
advantage lies in its ability to adopt and utilize new and emerging technologies to deliver a full spectrum of
innovative products and services to the market. Setting the Company apart is the provision of its value added
services backed by its strong and competent professionals through the synergy and collaboration across the
different functional departments of the organization.

Suppliers

The Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates have a broad range of suppliers, both local and
foreign.

Customers

The Company provides technology solutions to various organizations. It has a wide scope of target
customers not dependent on a single or few customer base. The following are target industries for the
Company’s products and services:

Commercial Banking
Microfinancing and rural banking
Financial services
Manufacturing
Transportation
Media and Advertising Companies
Government Sector
Small and Medium Enterprises (SME)
Retail

. Hospitality/Tourism

. Healthcare

. Insurance

. Business Process Outsourcing and Knowledge Process Outsourcing

©oNoO~wNPRE
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Transactions With and/or Dependence on Related Parties

All transactions with related companies are done on market terms and arm’s length basis. See Note
11 (Related Party Transaction) of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Patents, Trademarks, Copyrights, Licenses, Franchises, Concessions and Royalty Agreements

The Philippine Intellectual Property Office (IPO”) issued on June 28, 2012 and July 5, 2012 a
Certificate of Registration for the trademarks J-Span and NowPlanet. TV, respectively. The IPO also issued on
28 February 2013 a Certificate of Registration for the trademark Social Canvass. These registrations shall be
effective for 10 years.
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As of December 31, 2013, the Company has four (4) other trademark applications pending with the
Philippine Intellectual Property Office (IPO).

On March 10, 2006, a Certificate of Registration as a Value Added Service (VAS) Provider as Voice
over Internet Protocol (VOIP) Provider was issued by the National Telecommunications Commission (NTC).
This Certificate is currently pending renewal with NTC. In addition, NTC issued on November 27, 2015 (valid
until November 26, 2020) a Certificate of Registration in favor of the Company as a Value Added Service
entity authorized to offer cloud hosting services, VPN, multimedia content and program services, online game
services, cloud-based multimedia conferencing services, web hosting and cloydO-based mail and messaging
services.

Research and Development Activities

The Company did not allocate an amount for research and development in years 2017 and 2016. In
the year 2013, the Company spent the amount of Php3.4K on research and development activities, which is
.0044 % of its revenues. For the year 2012 and 2011, the Company did not allocate an amount for research
and development activities.

Governmental Regulations and Environmental Laws

The Company is not aware of any existing or probable governmental regulations that will have a
material effect on the business.

The Company and its subsidiaries have not experienced any environmental issues or problems.
Employees

The Company has a total workforce of ninety-six (96) employees, of which forty-eight (48) are
regular employees, twenty-two (22) are consultants, twenty-three (23) are project employees, and three (3)
are probationary employees. The following shows the breakdown of the manpower complement of the
Company according to business function:

Executives and [14]
Managerial.........ccccoecvieiiiiie e

AdMINISIrAtIVE. . .eeiiiei e [82]
TOTAL. e [96]

Major Risks

1. Competition. New and existing competitors can erode the Company and its subsidiaries’
competitive advantage through the introduction of new products and services, improvement of
product quality, increase in production efficiency, new and updated technologies and costs
reductions. To manage all these, the Company and its subsidiaries continuously come up with
new and exciting products and improve product propositions.

2. Third Party Services. The Company’s social media services have a dependence on 3rd parties
such as developers and internet providers. Maintaining and sustaining a satisfactory relationship
with third party service providers is critical in ensuring technical support for the Company’s social
media services. Failure to do so may negatively impact the Company’s business since we rely
on them for content upgrades, localization and technical support. To mitigate this risk, the
Company is constantly in search for the right partners.
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3. Internet. The Company’s social media services are dependent on the quality and accessibility of
the Internet. The over-all user experience may be adversely affected by a poor internet
connection. The growth of this sector in the Philippines may be limited as internet access has
not reached more far-flung areas in the country.

Item 2. Properties

On December 22, 2016, the Company availed a chattel mortgage loan amounting to Php564,800
(Note 10) from BDO Unibank, Inc. for the purchase of a transportation equipment, which serves as the
property mortgaged. The new loan requires sixty monthly repayments of Php11,754 until November 23,
2021, has a term of 5 years and bears an interest rate of 9.44% per annum. The transportation equipment is
for the use of sales and technical personnel and developers.

In April 2014, the Company renewed its lease agreement covering its principal office for another one
(1) year period, renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties. In March 2015, the Company informed the
lessor of the former’s interest to renew the lease agreement to cover the period commencing on April 1, 2015
up to March 31, 2016, renewable subject to mutual agreement of the parties, for a monthly rental rate of
Php23,067 (excluding EVAT). The lease was renewed for another year in April 2016. Thereafter, the lease
was renewed for another year in April 2017.

On 20 February 2018, the lease of NOW Corporation’s office located at Unit 5-1, 5" Floor, OPL
Building, 100 C. Palanca Street, Legaspi Village, Makati City was renewed for another year.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On February 20, 2013, the Company filed the trademark registration of the
mark: NOWPLANET.TV AND DESIGN with Application No. 4-2013-500481 with the Bureau of Legal Affairs
of the Philippine Intellectual Property Office (the “Bureau”). On 12 August 2013, Starbucks (HK) Limited filed
a Verified Notice of Opposition to the said trademark application. On January 12, 2017, the Intellectual
Property Office of the Philippines dismissed the opposition filed by Starbucks (HK) Limited. In an Order dated
19 May 2017, the Bureau dismissed with finality the Appeal of Oppositor-Appellant Starbucks.

On 17 November 2017, the Company filed before the Office of the Ombudsman a complaint
charging Mr. Jose P. Dormido, Sheriff IV of Pasig City, Atty. Jonathan M. Polines and Marco Antonio R. Urera
for conspiracy in violating Section 3(e) of R.A. 3019, as amended (Anti-Graft and Corrupt Practices Act). The
administrative case pertaining to Sheriff Dormido is currently being acted upon by the Supreme Court.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Iltem 5. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
On February 7, 2002, the Board of Directors approved the increase in the number of shares of the

authorized capital stock of the Company from 4,000,000 shares to 40,000,000 shares and the reduction of
par value from Phpl0 per share to Phpl per share.


http://nowplanet.tv/
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On July 23, 2002, the Board of Directors and stockholders approved the offer of up to 28,000,000
shares from the Company’s unissued common stock through initial public offering (IPO). The application for
the IPO of the Company was approved by the PSE and the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), on
June 11 and July 30, 2003, respectively. The Company was listed in the PSE on July 23, 2003. Issue
manager and underwriter was Abacus Capital & Investment Company. The market price is at high of
Php1.08 and low of Php.34. The following table is the summary of the Company’s stock prices from first
quarter of 2013 up to the first quarter of 2018:

Year Quarter High Low Close
2013 1st 0.510 0.400 0.400
2nd 0.450 0.360 0.380
3 0.465 0.355 0.430
4t 0.430 0.365 0.405
2014 1 0.405 0.360 0.380
2nd 1.040 0.370 0.710
3 0.910 0.610 0.630
4t 0.720 0.540 0.570
2015 1st 0.670 0.400 0.495
2nd 0.630 0.430 0.465
3 0.610 0.400 0.500
4t 1.290 0.470 0.750
2016 1t 1.140 0.580 1.100
2nd 3.000 2.900 2.900
3 3.490 3.400 3.440
4t 2.540 2.430 2.490
2017 1t 2.980 2.900 2.900
2nd 2.630 2.580 2.610
3 2.370 2.300 2.340
4t 2.880 2.800 2.820
2018 1t 8.200 7.560 8.190

During the 02 June 2006 Annual Shareholders Meeting of the Company, the shareholders approved
the Memorandum of Agreement dated April 28, 2006 (MOA) entered into by the Company with NOW
Telecom and five other companies namely, Top Mega Enterprises Limited, Joyce Link Holdings Limited,
Gamboa Holdings, Inc., Emerald Investments, Inc., Food Camp Industries and Marketing, Inc. (the five
companies collectively known as NOW Telecom Shareholders).

However, certain amendments were made to the MOA in view of the fact that upon further
consultation with the PSE, it was determined that the Company could not revise its primary purpose at that
time. Hence, the stockholders approved the amendment in the MOA that there will be no change in the
primary purpose of the Company. In addition, the stockholders also approved the proposal that the Company
shall acquire only nineteen percent (19%) equity interest in NOW Telecom and not 97%, as originally
intended. It was agreed that the acquisition shall be based on the same terms and valuation stated in the
MOA in the event that additional equity in NOW Telecom will be acquired by the Company in the future.

The amendment in the MOA was approved by the stockholders such that the shareholders of NOW
Telecom will transfer to the Company shares of NOW Telecom in the aggregate number of 2,656,580 shares
constituting 19% equity interest in NOW Telecom in exchange for new shares of the Company with an
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aggregate value of Phpl,289,278,350.00 for 19% of NOW Telecom, or effectively at a price of
Php485.315085.00 per NOW Telecom share.

In accordance with the amendment in the MOA, the needed increase in authorized capital stock of
the Company to accommodate the foregoing transaction is Php1,280,000,000 at Phpl.00 par value per

share.
Company by Php1,280,000,000.

Accordingly, the stockholders approved the proposal to increase the authorized capital of the

On September 19, 2006, the SEC approved the increase in the authorized (to Php1.320 Billion) and
paid-up capital (to Php1,317,278,350) of the Company as well as the change of the corporate name from
Cashrounds, Inc. to Information Capital Technology Ventures, Inc.

On September 27, 2006, the Company submitted to the PSE a listing application of additional
1,289,278,350 common shares to cover its share-for-share swap transaction with NOW Telecom

shareholders.

PSE approved the same and were listed on February 24, 2009.

Following the Company’s re-application for listing of the same shares in October 2008, the

On December 10, 2008, the PSE approved the transfer of the listing of the shares of the Company
from the SME Board to the Second Board of the PSE, and the transfer finally took effect on June 29, 2009.

On March 12, 2010, the Board approved the Company’s increase in authorized capital stock from
P1.32 billion to P5 billion as well as the listing of the additional shares from the increase.

On March 16, 2011, the Company filed with PSE its application for transfer from the Second Board to

the First Board of the Exchange.

The movement in the number of shares and capital stock amount for the year ended December 31,

2017, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2017

2016

2015

Number of

Balance at Shares

Amount

Number of
shares

Amount

Number of
shares

Amount

beginning of year 1,517,278,350

1,517,278,350

1,517,278,350

1,517,278,350

1,317,278,350

1,317,278,350

Increase in number
of shares as a result
of reduction in par
value -

Issuance during the
year -

200,000,000

200,000,000

1,517,278,350

1,517,278,350

1,517,278,350

1,517,278,350

1,517,278,350

1,517,278,350

No party or person holds any voting trust over any of the Company’s shares.

There are

approximately 68 Holders of Common Stock as of March 31, 2018. The Top Twenty (20) Holders of
Common Stock as of March 31, 2018 are as follows:

Name Nationality No. of shares Percentage
PCD Nominee Corporation Filipino 485,300,985 31.9850%
Top Mega Enterprises, Limited Chinese 367,935,951 24.2497%
Emerald Investments, Inc. Filipino 209,395,185 13.8007%
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Velarde, Inc Filipino 200,571,550 13.2192%
Foodcamp Industries and Marketing, Filipino 91,726,743 6.0455%
Inc.

Joyce Link Holdings, Limited British 86,458,552 5.6893%
Gamboa Holdings, Inc. Filipino 75,429,216 4.9713%
Chua Co Kiong, William N. Filipino 145,000 0.096%
De Leon, Jose Mari S. Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
Espinosa, Joseph Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
Diata, Juditha G. Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
Tareno, Maria Guia |. Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
Serania, Virginia P. Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
Francisco, Richard L. Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
Bocabil, Alben B. Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
De La Cuesta, Karlo S. Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
Ligutan, Eninias P. Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
Pagudar, Venus B. Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
Alvarez, Jr., Servando B. Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
Cueto, Edessa P. Filipino 10,000 0.0007%

Dividends

No cash dividend was declared in the past three (3) years. There are no restrictions that limit the

ability to pay dividends on common equity or that are likely to do so in the future.

Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities

There was neither sale of unregistered securities nor issuance of securities constituting an exempt

transaction within the last three years.

Iltem 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation

Plans and prospects for 2017

Expansion of the Fiber Air for Business and Fiber Air for Homes

The Company intends to expand its Fiber Air network coverage in order to cover more areas
including increase of capacity in central business districts as well as areas that are unserved and
underserved. This would south and norther part of Metro Manila. The Company has thus far
cemented its positioning as one of the preferred enterprise broadband of choice as it continues to
win enterprise clients ranging from hospitals, hotels, government agencies, schools, broadcasting
companies and commercial buildings.

In addition, the Company intends to start offering its Fiber Air for Homes to subdivisions and villages
where fiber optic or high data capacity is not available.

Continue to Bundle High-Value IT Services with Broadband Connectivity

On top of its Broadband connectivity service, the Company intends to continue bundling high-value
TMT services such as cloud hosting service, virtual private networks, multimedia content, online
gaming, web hosting, cloud-based multimedia conference, cloud-based mail and messaging service,
electronic communications network and services. This is the Company’s forward looking strategy
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whereby it shall capitalize in using new technologies that will cater to the changing needs of the
sophisticated enterprise and consumer market.

e Preferred Share Offering and Quasi-Reorganization in order to Eliminate Retained Deficit

The company intends to issue redeemable convertible, non-participating, cumulative and non-voting
peso preferred shares of up to 15 million convertible preferred shares, up to 500 million underlying
common shares, and 30 million detachable warrants and 30 million underlying common shares of the
warrants. The net proceeds from the issue will be used by The Company to support the expansion of
its “Fiber-in-the-Air” broadband internet service, for research and development, capital expenditures
and for other general corporate purposes.

The Company intends to use the proceeds of the share issuance to acquire assets for the expansion
of the Fiber-in-the-Air broadband network consisting primarily of purchase of core network facilities,
point-to-point and point-to-multi-point radios and the corresponding installation services. This
additional funding shall expand the Company’s reach in order to connect more buildings at greater
distances via radio antennas. Part of the use of the proceeds shall be devoted to the development of
the Core Network Facility and the purchase of core network switches.

The company intends to undergo an equity restructuring, in order to meet capital requirements for
the issuance of securities, such as the aforementioned preferred equity issuance, by applying the
additional paid in capital created by the Offer, subject to the approval of the SEC, to wipe out the
capital deficit which may be currently impairing the ability of the Company to declare and pay
dividends. Once the Company obtains the necessary approvals and implements the equity
restructuring plan, the Company can resume paying dividends from future cash flows as they no
longer have to use the same to eliminate retained earnings debit balances. This will also allow
management the flexibility to invest the surplus cash back to grow the business.

Plans and prospects for 2016

The Company plans to expand its service offerings with the introduction of its “Fiber-in-the-Air” fixed
wireless broadband service with a committed information rate (“CIR”) of up to 700 Mbps, a first of its kind in
the Philippines. Through its partnership with NOW Telecom Inc. (“NOW Telecom”) and News and
Entertainment Network Inc,. (“Newsnet”), a wireless telecommunications operator and a cable TV service
provider, respectively, the Company offers an affordable, alternative and high-speed broadband service of up
to 700 Mbps and wireless cable TV services to the underserved and unserved large enterprises such as
schools, hospitals, hotels, high-end residential buildings, and commercial buildings with multiple BPO
locators. Currently, the Company’s client broadband subscription ranges from 5 Mbps to 100 Mbps, which
may be further increased to up to 700 Mbps, depending on the clients’ bandwidth requirements. The
Company positions its fixed wireless broadband service either as primary, alternative or as an auxilary link to
existing broadband service providers.

The Company’s Fiber-in-the-Air fixed wireless broadband service shall allow its subscribers to
download, upload, stream and share files simultaneously without compromising performance. The Company
shall deploy competitively priced high-speed broadband bandwidth resources with high availability through its
Point-to-Point and Point-to-Multipoint Radios. From providing Software Licenses and Services to adding IT
Manpower and Resource Augmentation and Broadband Wireless Cable TV Services, the Company shall
deliver high-speed broadband services with a CIR of up to 700 Mbps which may be bundled with enterprise
collaborations solution, wireless cable television and interactive multi-media applications.

Plans and prospects for 2015

Now Corporation plans to launch two of its creations: (a) the “NOW Broadband Cable TV” a
guaranteed broadband Internet service with Wireless Cable TV, and (b) the “NOWPIlanet. TV” a digital media
platform as a product that converges free TV, web channels, cloud services and other interactive services.
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The Company’s planned broadband Internet service shall offer guaranteed speeds with wireless
cable TV broadcast and cloud services.

Its planned launch signals the Company’s mission to achieve true convergence thru the following
features simultaneously: (a) browsing 24x7 Internet throughput at guaranteed speed, (b) watching their
favorite shows from free TV such VHF and UHF signals (c) interacting with web channels such as TED Talks,
YouTube, Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, etc. (d) playing high definition, fast motion networked games;
(e) using cloud services such as e-mail, task, calendar, files, community collaboration, video chat, document
management with one terabyte of storage per customer, (f) watching, streaming or downloading high-
definition videos and 4k/6k/8k films, (g) making phone calls on Skype and live video conference to as many

as 200 participants per session — all with the flexibility of using any device such as regular or 4k TVs,
desktops, laptops, tablets and smartphones.

Key Performance Indicators

Profitability Profit Margin 4.22%
Return on Assets 0.38%
Return on Equity 0.46%
Book Value per share 0.894
Earnings per share 0.0045

Liquidity Current Ratio 1.020

Debt to Equity Debt to Equity Ratio 0.2330

Asset to Equity Asset to Equity Ratio 1.2330
Interest Rate Coverage

Interest Ratio 173.2806

The Key Performance Indicators are computed as follows:

Profitability:
Profit margin = Net Income / Total Revenue x 100
Return on assets = Net Income / Total Assets x 100
Return on Equity % = Net Income / Total Stockholders’ Equity x 100
Book Value per share = Total Stockholders’ Equity / Average Outstanding Shares
Earnings per share = Net Income / Average Outstanding Shares

Liquidity:
Current Ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabilities

Debt to Equity:
Debt to Equity Ratio=Total Liabilities/Total Stockholders’ Equity
Asset to Equity Ratio = Total Assets / Total Stockholders’ Equity
Interest rate coverage ratio = EBIT / Interest Expense

There are no known trends, demand, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the Company’s liquidity, nor any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that
is material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation. No material off-balance
sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of
the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.
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There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to
have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.
There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations.

The Company has started to establish teams to supports its business process outsourcing pursuits.
It has also put up its own operations and back-end processes through service outsourcing. Management
personnel are being sourced from a cooperative of professionals.

The Company is also working together with IMX Broadband, Inc. for purposes of research and
development in connection with the plan to expand the Company’s existing information technology platform in
order to introduce related products and services and integrating wireless communication technologies.

On December 18, 2008, the Company signed a Development Partnership Agreement with REWSS
A/S, a Danish based company with an operations and development hub in the Philippines, and NOW
Telecom, a MTS (mobile telephone system) operator in the Philippines. REWSS A/S provides Network
Business Intelligence (NBI) software solutions for operators worldwide with clients in the USA, Europe, Africa
and Asia for various network technologies including CDMA, GSM and UMTS (2G and 3G). Using NOW
Telecom’s network infrastructure, REWSS A/S will develop its REWS Stools for the iDEN Motorola
technology. The Company will handle the project management role and use the end solution for iDEN in
handling NOW Telecom’s Network Operations Center.

Information on Independent Accountant

The auditing firm of SGV & Co. is the incumbent external auditor of the parent Company and i-
Resource Consulting International, Inc. (subsidiary) for the calendar year 2018 and is being recommended for
re-appointment for the current year.

Audit and Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed for each of the last three (3) fiscal years for professional services rendered
by the external auditor for the audit of the of the parent Company and I-Resource Consulting International,
Inc. (subsidiary) annual financial statements is Php650,000 for 2017, Php500,000.00 for 2016, and
Php280,000.00 for 2015.

The external auditor does not render any other assurance and services related to the performance of
the audit nor does it render any professional service for tax accounting, advice, planning and any other form
of tax services.

In 2017, SGV & Co. did the review of the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as at
September 30, 2017 and for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2017 and 2016. There were no other
significant professional services rendered by SGV & Co. during the period.

Results of operations
Year 2017

The consolidated revenue for the year 2017 is Php148.974 million, there is an increase of Php43.537
million or 41.29% from last year's Php105.437 million. The increase is mainly due to the increase in revenue from

software licenses and services which amounted to Php82.187 million in 2017, representing an increase of 46.66%
from Php56.041 million in 2016. Company’s sales from IT manpower and resource augmentation slightly decreased
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to Php42.274 million from Php43.415 million in 2016. Revenue from Broadband services for 2017 amounted to
Php24.513 million for 2017 which has an increase of Php18.532 million or 309.84% from revenue in 2016 which
amounted to Php5.981 million.

Cost of services during the year amounted to £85.80 million, higher by 51.47% or £29.16 million
compared to the £56.65 million cost of sales and services level posted for the year ended December 31, 2016. The
increase was primarily attributed to the higher cost of outside services and data services during the year amounting
to 53.82 million compared to the amount last year of £46.43 million. Costs relating to sales increased from £10.22
million to 31.98 million when comparing amounts from those of December 31, 2016 to those of December 31,
2017.

The Operating Expenses is Php54.210 million in 2017 and Php44.098 million in 2016. There is an increase
by Php10.112 million or 22.93% in 2017 as compared to 2016 and was mainly due to salaries and wages expense,
transportation and travel and also taxes and licenses amounting to Php18.82million.

The Net income for the year ended December 31, 2017 is Php6.29 million or Php3.792 million higher
compared with last year’s Net Income of Php2.499 million. This was brought about by a higher increase in revenue
during the year as compared to the increase in cost of sales and services and operating expenses.

As of December 31, 2017 the total consolidated assets of the Company stood at Phpl.672 billion
compared with last year's Php1.547 billion, an increase by Php124.742 million or 8.06%. Current Assets increased
by Php121.874 million or 60.91%%, from Php200.084 million in 2016 to Php321.957 million in 2017. The increase
in Current assets was mainly due to the increase in trade receivables from Php115.532 million in 2016 to
Php167.943 million in 2017 and an increase also in Amounts Owed by Related Parties from Php72.496 million in
2016 to Php95.955 million in 2017. Non-current Assets slightly decreased by Php2.869 million due to increase in
PPE.

Current liabilities increased by Php118.368 million or 60.00%, from Php197.251 million in 2016 to
Php315.619 million in 2017. The increase was due to the increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
which has an increase of Php44.425 million and due from related parties which has an increase of Php73.934
million. Total consolidated assets as of December 31, 2017 stood at Php1.672 billion, with Liabilities at Php315.97
million and Equity at Php1.356 billion.

Year 2016

The consolidated revenue for the year 2016 is Php105.437 million, there is a slight decrease of Php9.957
million or 9% from last year's Php115.394 million. The decrease is mainly due to the shifting of the Company’s main
business from software licenses to broadband. Revenue from software licenses and services decreased to
Php56.041 million in 2016 from Php75.967 million in 2015. Company’s sales from IT manpower and resource
augmentation increased to Php43.415 million in 2016 from Php39.427 million in 2015. Broadband sales for 2016
amounted toPhp5.981 million.

The Operating Expenses is Php44.098 million in 2016 and Php33.049 million in 2015. There is a significant
increase by Php11.049 million or 33% in 2016 as compared to 2015 was mainly due to impairment of advances by
the Company to one of its affiliates amounting to Php5 million and also due to an increase in advertising and
promotion expense amounting to Php4.524 million.

The Net income for the year ended December 31, 2016 is Php2.499 million or Php2.737 million lower
compared with last year's Net Income of Php5.235 million. This year’s slight decrease in revenue was due to the
shifting of the Company’s main business to broadband services from software licenses.

As of December 31, 2016, the total consolidated assets of the Company stood at Phpl.547 billion
compared with last year's Php1.498 billion, an increase by Php48.683 million or 3%. Current Assets increased by
Php49.751 million or 33%, from Php150.333 million in 2015 to Php200.084 million in 2016. The increase in Current
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assets was mainly due to the increase in trade receivables from Php81.788 million in 2015 to Php115.532 million in
2016 and an increase also in Amounts Owed by Related Parties from Php48.387 million in 2015 to Php72.496
million in 2016. Non-current Assets slightly decreased by Php1.068 million due to decrease in due from related
party non current portion.

Current liabilities decreased by Php218.255 million or 53%, from Php415.505 million in 2015 to
Php197.250 million for 2016. The decrease was due to the conversion of advances from an affiliate into equity
during the year which amounted to Php264 million and payment of loan amounting to Php44.5 million. Accounts
Payable and accrued expenses also decrease from Php132.927 million to Php119.643 million. Amounts Owed to
Related Parties decrease by Php160.558 million. Non-current Liabilities on the other hand increased by Php449K
due to loan availment made by the Company during the year.

Total consolidated assets as of December 31, 2016 stood at Php1.547 billion, with Liabilities at Php197.7
million and Equity at Php1.349 billion.

Year 2015

The consolidated revenue for the year 2015 is Phpl115.394 million, there is a significant increase of
Php41.614 million or 56% from last year's Php73.779 million. The increase is contributed largely by an increase in
revenue from IT Service Fees. Revenue from IT service fees increased to Php67.108 million in 2015 from
Php47.031 million in 2014. Company’s sales from IBM licenses and other services also increased by Php21.538
million or 81%, the sales increased to Php48.286 million this year from last year's Php26.748 million.

The Operating Expenses is Php33.049 million in 2015 and Php50.058 million in 2014. There is a significant
decrease by Phpl17.008 million or 34% in 2015 as compared to 2014 due to decrease in Interest expenses from
Php19.001 million in 2014 down to Php1.054 million in 2015. General and Administrative Expenses and Other
Expenses increased by Php569K and Php370K respectively.

The Net income for the year ended December 31, 2015 is Php5.235 million or Php43.718 million higher
compared with last year Net Loss of Php38.482 million. This year’s increase in revenue contributed the positive
bottom line in 2015.

As of December 31, 2015, the total consolidated assets of the Company stood at Phpl1.498 billion
compared with last year's Php1.454 billion, an increase of Php43.803 million or 3%. Current Assets increased by
Php20.529 million or 16%, from Php129.804 million in 2014 to Php150.333 million in 2015. The increase in Current
assets was a result of an increase in Cash from Php2.007 million in 2014 to Php15.980 million in 2015. There is an
increase in trade receivables from Php51.803 in 2014 to Php81.788 million in 2015. There is a decrease in
Amounts Owed by Related Parties and other current assets from Php75.995 million in 2014 to Php52.565 million in
2015. Non-current Assets increased by Php23.275 million due to the increase in the noncurrent portion of the
amounts owed by the related parties amounting to Php26.564 million.

Current liabilities increased by Php279.429 million or 205%, from Php136.077 million for 2014 to
Php415.505 million for 2015. The increase is due to the reclassification of a Php44.5 million bank loan from long
term to current. Accounts Payable and accrued expenses also increase from Php120.397 million to Php132.927
million. Amounts Owed from Related Parties also increased by Php223.074 million. However, Obligation under
finance lease become zero this year from Php675K last year. Non-current Liabilities on the other hand decreased
significantly by Php440.847 million due to the reclassification of a Php44.5 million bank loan from long term to
current as stated above. And a decrease in Due to related parties from Php396.347 million in 2014 to zero in 2015.

Total consolidated assets as of December 31, 2015 stood at Php1.498 billion, with Liabilities at Php415.505
million and Equity at Php1.083 billion.
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Year 2014

The consolidated revenue for the year 2014 is Php73.779 million, a decrease of 7% from last year’s
Php79.318 million. The unfavorable variance of Php5.539 is due to the decrease in IT Service Fees. This year's IT
Service Fees is Php47.031 million while in year 2013 it was Php53.320 million. However, the company’s sales of
IBM licenses in 2014 increased to Php21.235 million from last year's Php20.486 million. Interest Income increased
to Php472,549 from last year's Php471,820.

The Operating Expenses is Php50.058 million in 2014 and Php95.670 million in 2013. There is significant
decrease by Php45.612 million or 48% in 2014 as compared to 2013. The decrease in operating expenses was
brought about largely by decrease on contracted outside services amounting to Php22.383 million or 88%. This is
inclusive of manpower reduction for cost efficiency measures. Interest Expense decreased by Php19.369 million or
50% due to restructured advances from an affiliate. The savings on the following cost line items for 2014 as against
2013 were due to cost efficiency measures, such as: Utilities decreased by Php2.745 million or 68%; Professional
fees decreased by Php2.533 million or 65%; Communication decreased by Php2.448 million or 46%; Rental
decreased by Php399K or 12% and, others decreased by Php853K or 11%. Depreciation and Amortization
decreased by Phpl.160 million or 19% is due to retirement of some assets. However, there is increase by
Php6.278 million or 706% in Impairment loss in 2014 as compared to 2013. The company provided an allowance
for impairment of receivables and other assets Php7.167M in 2014, while in 2013 was Php889K.

Total Net loss for 2014 is Php38.482 million or Php48.752 million less compared with last year of
Php87.234 million. This year's decrease of cost and expenses contributed the improved bottom line in 2014.

As of December 31, 2014, the total consolidated assets of the Company stood at Phpl1.455 billion
compared with last year's Php1.445 billion, an increase by Php9.684 million or 1%. Current Assets increased by
Php14.742 million or 13%, from Php115.062 million in 2013 to Php129.804 million in 2014. The increase in Current
assets was a result of an increase in trade receivables by Php6.808 million or 15%. There was an increase in
Amounts Owed by Related Parties by Php17.111 million or 31%, while Cash account and Other Current Assets
decreased by Php7.649 million and Php1.527 million, respectively. Non-current Assets decreased by Php5.058
million attributed from a decrease in Property and Equipment and other Non-Current Assets by Php4.704 million
and Php354K.

Current liabilities increased by Php1.446 million or 1%, from Php134.630 million of 2013 to Php136.077
million of 2014. The variance is due to an increase in Amounts Owed from Related Parties by Php10.163 million or
210% and decrease in Accounts Payable as well as decrease in the Current portion of obligations under Finance
Lease by Php6.383 million and Php2.333 million, respectively. Non-current Liabilities on the other hand increased
by Php46.648 million or 12% due to an increase in Amounts Owed from Related parties by Php47.323 million or
14%. On the other hand, Non-current portion of Obligations under Finance Lease is zero in 2014 and Php675K in
2013.

Total consolidated assets as of December 31, 2014 stood at Php1.455 billion, with Liabilities at Php576.923
million and Equity at Php877.625 million.

Year 2013

Total Consolidated revenues generated in 2013 amounted to Php79.32 Million or 59% higher than
last year’s revenue of Php50.14M. The increase in Revenue was brought about by the following:

1. Revenues from IT products and services of Php38.95M was increased by 57% or Php14.15M

from last year’s revenue of Php24.8M;

2. Revenues from IT resource augmentation of Php38.32M was increased by 102% or Php19.32M
from last year’s revenue of Php19.0M;
Management fees were the same by Php5.04M both in 2013 and 2012; and,
4. Interest Income derived from loans and minimal bank interest of Php471.82K was decreased by

58% or Php653.09K from last year’s interest of Php1.12M

w
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Operating expenses decreased by 11% or Php21.4M in 2013, the decrease was largely attributed to
outside services from Php56.2M to Php25.52M due to cost cutting measures for development activities to
support its thrust to focus on providing high value ICT services. Other decreases in operating expenses
include Communications at Php2.14M, Professional fees at Php1.41M, transportation and travel at Php4.94M
and Advertising and promotion at Php3.39M. The equity in net losses of associates share at Php3.1M,
impairment loss on goodwill on Softrigger Interactive, Inc. investment at Php3.8M and Commission of
Php607K as charged in 2012 were of zero amount in 2013.

Total Net income (loss) as of December 2013 is (Php87.2 Million) or Php50.9 Million less compared
with last year of Php138.1 Million). This year’s increase in revenue of 33.565M and the decrease of cost and
expenses by 21.399M contributed the improved bottom line in 2013.

As of December 2013, the total consolidated assets of the Company stood at Phpl.445 Billion
compared with last year of Php1.428 Billion or an increase by Phpl6 Million. Current assets increased by
Php22.26M or 24% were due to the increase in Cash balance by Php8.19M, trade receivables by
Php11.55M, increase in receivables by related parties by Php2.7M, while other current assets decreased by
Php149.9K. Non-current assets decreased by .041% or Php5.5M due to depreciation of Property and
equipment.

Current liabilities decreased by Phpl14.23M were brought about by the reclassification from current
to a noncurrent liability on the loan secured from a commercial bank amounting to Php40.5M which was used
to finance the operational requirements of the Company. Noncurrent liabilities increased by 43% or
Php117M due to reclassification of the aforementioned commercial bank loan from current liabilities and the
increase in amounts owed from Velarde, Inc. in the amount of Php73.27M which includes an accrued interest
of Php36.38M derived when the present value of the loan was determined since it became noninterest
bearing when both parties agreed for the deferment on the accrual and payment of interest starting
November 2012 but shall not exceed three (3) years.

Obligation under finance lease was likewise decreased from Php3.6M in 2012 to Php675K in 2013
brought about by regular payments made to transportation vehicles under finance lease.

On December 9, 2013, the bank has approved the conversion of the short-term loans in the amount
of Php44.5 into a two-year term loan. The principal balance of the loan is payable on January 19, 2016.

Total Consolidated Assets stood at Phpl.445 Billion, Liabilities at Php529 Million and Equity at
Php916M Billion.

Item 7. Financial Statements
The audited consolidated financial statements are attached as “Annex A”.
The audited financial statements for parent company are attached as “Annex B”.
Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There had been no disagreements with SGV & Co. with regard to accounting policies and financial
disclosures of the Company.
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PART Ill - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer

Under the By-Laws of the Company, the members of the Board of Directors shall hold office for a
term of one (1) year until their successors shall have been elected and qualified.

Board of Directors

Thomas G. Aquino, age 69, Filipino, Chairman of the Board of Directors. He is a Senior Fellow at
the Center for Research and Communication, a multidisciplinary policy group of the University of Asia and the
Pacific (UA&P). He is currently the President of NOW Telecom Company, Inc. (formerly Next Mobile, Inc.).
He is an independent member of the Board of Directors of ACR Corporation, A Brown Company Inc., and
member of the Board of Trustees of Asian Institute of Journalism and Communication. Dr. Aquino served as
Senior Undersecretary of the Philippine Department of Trade and Industry and supervised the country's
international trade promotion, trade negotiations under the World Trade Organization and the ASEAN Free
Trade Area, as well as bilateral trade talks with the country's major economic trading partners. He also served
as overall lead country negotiator for the Philippines in the Japan Philippines Economic Partnership
Agreement and was country representative to the High Level Task Force on ASEAN Economic Integration.
For his government service, Dr. Aquino was conferred the Presidential Service Award (or Lingkod Bayan) for
extraordinary contribution of national impact on public interest, security and patrimony and was a recipient of
the Gawad Mabini Award with the rank of Grand Cross (or Kamanong) for distinguished service to the country
both at home and abroad. Dr. Aquino obtained a Doctorate in Business Administration in 1980 from the IESE
Business School, University of Navarre in Spain, MS in Industrial Economics in 1972 from the University of
Asia and the Pacific, and AB in Economics in 1970 from the School of Economics of the University of the
Philippines.

Mel V. Velarde, age 54, Filipino, President, is the President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He was previously elected Vice-Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors on June 2, 2006
and served as such until March 22, 2007 when he was elected as Chairman of the Board of Directors. On
January 21, 2008, he resigned from his chairmanship and was again elected as Vice Chairman of the Board
until June 2, 2011. He was elected as President of the Company on June 13. 2011. Mr. Velarde is the Vice-
Chairman and the Chairman of the Executive Committee of NOW Telecom Company Inc. (formerly Next
Mobile, Inc.). He served as Philippine Commissioner to the United Nations Educational, Scientific and
Cultural Organizations and Chairperson of the Committee on Science and Technology. Mr. Velarde has built
a career in broadcasting, cable TV, telecommunications and information communications technology. He was
former Executive Vice President and General Manager of Sky Cable. He obtained his Bachelor of Arts in
Liberal Studies Major in Interdisciplinary Studies (Summa Cum Laude) at Boston University, Massachusetts,
US. He completed the Owner/President Management Program at the Harvard Business School, Harvard
University, Cambridge, Massachusetts. He has also completed courses leading to a Masters Degree in
Business Economics at the University of Asia and the Pacific. He has taken Strategic Planning, Marketing
and Finance at the Asian Institute of Management. In addition, he took up the following executive courses:
Wealth Management at Wharton Business School, University of Pennsylvania; Strategic Finance, University
of Michigan; Corporate Restructuring and Business Transformation at Harvard Business School; Digital
Marketing at Harvard Business School; Managing Businesses in China, Tsinghua University and Harvard
Business School; Directing Documentaries at the London School of Film and Television; Broadcasting and
Cable Television, Satellte Communications, Data and Internet Communications at the United States
Telecommunications Training Institute; Cybersecurity: Planning, Implementing and Auditing of Critical
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Security Controls (SANS, Washington D.C.); and Advanced and Competitive Sailing Certifications at the
Swain Sailing School at Tortola, the British Virgin Islands, Caribbean. He has also completed digital
cinematography, digital editing and film production management at University of California, Los Angeles
(UCLA), Film Institute, CA.

Jose S. Alejandro, age 83, Filipino, Vice Chairman and member of the Board of Directors, served
as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company on June 2, 2006 until March 22, 2007 when he
resigned from said position and was elected as the Company’s President. He served as President until
January 21, 2008. Mr. Alejandro has also been a Member of the Board of Directors of NOW Telecom
Company, Inc. (formerly Next Mobile, Inc.) since 1989 and he now serves as the Board’s Chairman. He is a
business and management professional and leader with over 25 years of corporate experience. He was the
former President and CEO of East Asia Power Resources, a local publicly-listed independent power producer
during the period of local economic crisis (1997-1999), Country Manager for the Power Systems Business of
General Electric Co. (1987-1995), and Vice President - Marketing at GE Philippines, Inc. and General
Manager of GE Appliance Co. In these capacities, he led the growth and success of this leading U.S. global
diversified corporation in the Philippines. He holds a Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor of Law degrees from the
Ateneo de Manila University and had taken post graduate courses leading to Master in Business
Administration in the same school and Business Policies, Manpower and Marketing Strategies at the GE
Management Institute in NY, USA. He is a member of the Philippine Bar.

Vicente Martin W. Araneta lll, age 54, Filipino, Director, also serves as the Vice-President for
Innovative Marketing of ActivAsia, Inc., a 360-degree marketing services company specializing in Out-
of-Home, events, point-of-sale and channel activation, tourism marketing, sports marketing and creative
services. He also serves as Director and President of Facilities, Inc. and as Chairman of Real Properties, Inc.,
the holding company of Facilities, Inc. and owner of the Palladium Subdivision. He is a member of the
Mandaluyong Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Inc. and occupied various key positions including 1st Vice
President-Director for the period 2004 until 2005. He is also a member of the Management Association of the
Philippines and of the Chamber of Real Estate and Builders Associations, Inc. Mr. Araneta is a member of
the Ateneo Alumni Association, Inc. and served as a member of its Board of Directors for the period 2005
until 2007 and 2009 until 2012. He is also the President of Ateneo, Inc. and a member since 2011 of the
Philippine Association of Congress Exhibitors/ Organizers & Suppliers, Inc. (PACEOS). He is the incorporator
of the Mandaluyong Business Foundation. Mr. Araneta also served as Director for the period 2004 to 2005 of
the Philippine Science High School Foundation. He was also the Executive Director of North Philippines
Visitors Bureau, Inc. for the period July 2008 to July 2010. He obtained his Bachelor of Arts in
Interdisciplinary Studies at the Ateneo de Manila University in 1985.

Gerard Bnn R. Bautista, age 54 Filipino, Director, was elected as a member of the Board of Directors on
June 2, 2016. He is also currently the Chairman of the University of Baguio Foundation. He is a partner in
Bnn Bautista Associates, an Architecture & Planning firm. He is also a Charter Member of the Rotary Club of
Makati, Greenbelt. He is a member of various associations, namely, the Harvard Architectural and Urban
Society, the Harvard Club of the Phils., the Harvard Alumni Alliance for the Environment, the Harvard Alumni
Entrepreneurs, the Philippine Jaycees Senate, Rockwell Club, Porsche Club Philippines, and the Baguio
Country Club. He served as President of the Makati Jaycees. He also obtained a degree in BS Architecture at
the University of the Philippines. Thereafter, he studied Information Technology at the Ateneo Grad School of
Business and Financial Forecasting at the University of Asia and the Pacific. He also studied Finance for
Senior Executives and Management of Family Corporations at the Asian Institute of Management. Moreover,
he studied Actuarial Planning at the Kennedy School of Government at Harvard and School Planning and
Design in the Graduate School of Design of Harvard as well.
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Marlou Buenafe Ubano, 45 years old, Filipino, Independent Director, has been in practice of law for
fifteen years. He is the Founding Partner of the Ubano Sianghio & Lozada Law Offices which was established
in June 2002. He is currently a Governor of Integrated Bar of the Philippines — Western Visayas Region. He
served as Assistant Secretary for Legal Affairs of the Philippine Department of Transportation and
Communications from 2011 to 2013. He was the Commissioner of the Commission on Bar Discipline,
Integrated Bar of the Philippines from 2005 to 2007. He also served as President of the Integrated Bar of the
Philippines - Capiz Chapter from 2007 to 2009 and again in 2011, and as Deputy Governor of the Integrated
Bar of the Philippines — Western Visayas Region from 2011 to 2013. Atty. Ubano was awarded the
Presidential Plaque of Merit from the IBP National President in 2007, and a Plaque of Recognition as the
Most Outstanding IBP Capiz President in 2009. Atty. Ubano is a Member of the Asean Law Association and
the Intellectual Property Association of the Phils., Inc. He obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Law and Political
Science in the University of the Philippines.

Ramon Guillermo R. Tuazon, age 59, Filipino, Director, is also the president of the Asian Institute
of Journalism and Communication (AIJC). He is also a member of the Board of Directors of the
Singapore-based Asian Media Information Centre. Since 2007, Mr. Tuazon was the Chairman of the
Commission on Higher Education Technical Committee for Communication and member of the CHED
Technical Panel for Social Sciences and Communication. He serves as UNESCO Communication &
Information Advisor. He also served UNESCO in various capacities: UNESCO Specialist for Myanmar from
November 2012 to January 2014; representative of the UNESCO Regional Director to the UN Country Team
in the Philippines from 2010 to 2012. He has co-authored six books, co-edited 15 books/monographs, written
over 10 handbooks/modules, published numerous articles in international and national books, journals, and
monographs. Among his latest publications are: Multidisciplinary Inquiry on the Culture of Impunity in the
Killing of Journalists (2013), and Media and Information Literacy: Curriculum for Teachers (UNESCO Paris,
2011). He has contributed in several international publications including Media and Information Literacy and
Intercultural Dialogue (NORDICOM, 2013) and Gender Sensitive Indicators for Media (UNESCO, 2012). He
was a peer reviewer for the recent UNESCO publication, Global Media Information Literacy Assessment
Framework: Country Readiness and Competencies (2013). Mr. Tuazon completed his Master in
Communication Management from the AIJC and Bachelor of Science in Commerce from the University of
Santo Tomas where he also took graduate work in advertising.

Winnita V. Ysog, age 53, Filipino, Director, was elected as member of the Board of Directors on 02
September 2016. She served as Marketing Manager of Wizard Academy, a school which offered preparatory
education. She also served as Managing Director of Altimax Broadcasting, Inc. In 2004, she served as Vice-
Chairman of the Executive Committee and Vice-President of the Human Resource and Quality Administration
of Next Mobile, Inc. In 2009, she ventured into the beauty and wellness business and set-up Vanilla Spice.
She is the President of Jonahs and Seths Holdings, Inc. She obtained her Bachelor of Science, Major in
Tourism degree from the University of the Philippines, Diliman, where she received an award of Proficiency in
French. She also obtained her Masters in Management from the Asian Institute of Management, Makati City.
She is now the owner and founder of Mabuhay Ako - Bag of Life 360 and currently, the President of Rotary
Club of Kamuning East, Rotary International District 3780.

Domingo B. Bonifacio, age 64, American, Independent Director, was elected as Independent
Director on 20 January 2017. He is currently the Executive Vice President & General Manager of Automated
Technology (Phil) Inc. Connectivity Division. In addition to these, Mr. Bonifacio was the President of Cirtek
Advanced Technologies and Solutions, Inc. — Laguna from 2014 to 2015; President & CEO of REMEC
Broadband Wireless International, Inc. — Laguna from 2005 to 2014; President & CEO of REMEC
Manufacturing, Philippines, Inc. (Formerly Pacific Microwave Corporation acquired by REMEC, March 2001)
from 2001 to 2005; Founder, President & CEO of Pacific Microwave Corporation, Philippines from 1995 to
2001; Director of Operations of Optical Microwave Networks Inc., San Jose, California, U.S.A. from 1989 to
1995; Manufacturing Manager of Litton Industries — MSS Division, Santa Clara, CA, U.S.A from 1987 to
1989; Manufacturing Manager of Gould Inc. — Microwave Products Division, San Jose, CA, U.S.A from 1983
to 1987; Manufacturing Manager of Dexcel Inc. — SATCOM Division, Santa Clara, CA, U.S.A from 1980 to
1983; and a member of the Technical Staff, Varian Associates, Solid State Div., Santa Clara, CA, U.S.A from
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1977-1980. Mr. Bonifacio is also a member of the board of directors of Automated Technology (Phil), Inc. of
Menlo Health and Wellness Innovations, Inc. and of REMEC Broadband and Wireless, Inc. from 2005 to
2014); a member of the board of trustee of Philippine Chamber of Industrial Estates and Ecozones and of
Semiconductor and Electronics of the Philippines from 2011 to 2013; and Chairman of the Board of El
Circulo Masantoleno Scholarship Foundation. Mr. Bonifacio obtained his B.S. Electronics and
Communications in the University of Santo Tomas. He passed the Electronics and Communication
Engineering Licensure Examination, Philippines in 1977. He also took Microwave Engineering in the
University of California, Berkley, CA.

Angeline L. Macasaet, age 45, Filipino, Corporate Secretary and Member of the Board of Directors,
is a member of the Philippine Bar. She is also currently the Corporate Secretary and Chief Information Officer
of the Company. She is also the Corporate Secretary of the various companies under the Velarde Group
such as Velarde, Inc., Gamboa Holdings, Inc., Food Camp Industries and Marketing, Inc., Emerald
Investments, Inc., as well as enfranchised companies such as NOW Telecom Company, Inc., GHT Network,
Inc., News and Entertainment Network, Inc., among many others. She ensures the compliance of these
companies with all regulatory requirements as well as the legal requirements involving specific transactions.
Her extensive engagement involves all forms of litigation and in all fora. She also has extensive practice in
the Securities and Exchange Commission, Philippine Stock Exchange, and the National Telecommunications
Commission. In addition to litigation, Ms. Macasaet has corporate practice all the way to the more complex
engagements of management buy-outs, corporate mergers and share swap.

Vicente |. Pefianueva, age 54, Filipino, Treasurer and Chief Finance Officer. He was elected as the
Company’s Chief Financial Officer on January 20, 2017. Mr. Penanueva brings to the Company more than
30 years experience in Corporate Finance, Controllership, Audit and Accounting. Before he joined the
Company, he was the Finance and Accounting Manager of Aruze Global Shared Services and was in-charge
of Corporate Accounting and Reporting of seven companies. From 2012 to 2013, he was the Accounting
Manager of Century Peak Metals Holding Corporation, also a publicly listed company. From 2011 to 2012,
he served as Accounting Manager of Great Image Services Corporation. From 1997 to 2011, he served as
Senior Financial Planning, Budget and Accounting Manager of Universal Leaf Philippines, Inc. a multinational
company. Mr. Penanueva is a Certified Public Accountant. He graduated from Ateneo De Davao University
in 1985.

D. Enrique O. Co, age 47, Filipino, Legal Counsel, is the Legal Counsel of the Company from
January 2002 up to the present. He also served as the Corporate Secretary of the Company from 10 June
2004 until 30 August 2005 and from 01 November 2006 up to 21 January 2008. He is currently serving as
Director and/or Corporate Secretary of several Philippine corporations. He is also the Managing Partner of Co
Ferrer & Ang-Co Law Offices and an Associate Professorial Lecturer at Kalayaan College. Atty. Co obtained
his BS Business Administration (cum laude) and Law Degrees from the University of the Philippines.

Independent Directors

Atty. Marlou B. Ubano and Domingo B. Bonfacio are the two (2) independent directors of the
Company.

Atty. Lucas C. Carpio, Jr. tendered his resignation as an Independent Director of the Board of
Directors during the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors held on 15 March 2018, effective as of said
date.
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Management Team

The following are the members of the Company’s management team:

Thomas G. Aquino - Chairman of the Board (see above)

Jose S. Alejandro - Vice Chairman of the Board (see above)

Mel V. Velarde - President and Chief Executive Officer (see above)
Angeline L. Macasaet - Corporate Secretary (see above)

Vicente |. Pefianueva - Treasurer and Chief Finance Officer

Non-executive Officers

D. Enrique O. Co, age 47, Filipino, Legal Counsel, served as Legal Counsel of the Company from
January 2002 up to the present. He also served as the Corporate Secretary of the Company from 10 June
2004 until 30 August 2005 and from 01 November 2006 up to 21 January 2008. He served as the Acting
Corporate Secretary of the Company from 01 August 2008 until 18 March 2009. He is currently serving as
Director and/or Corporate Secretary of several Philippine corporations. Atty. Co is also the Managing Partner
of Co Ferrer & Ang-Co Law Offices. Atty. Co obtained his BS Business Administration (cum laude) and Law
Degrees from the University of the Philippines.

Identity of Significant Employees

There is no person who is not an executive officer who is expected to make a significant contribution
to the business of the Company.

Family Relationship

Except for the President and CEO Mr. Mel V. Velarde and Winnita V. Ysog who are siblings, none of
the Advisors, Executive Officers and Management employees are related by affinity or consanguinity.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceeding

On February 20, 2013, the Company filed the trademark registration of the
mark: NOWPLANET.TV AND DESIGN with Application No. 4-2013-500481 with the Bureau of Legal Affairs
of the Philippine Intellectual Property Office (the “Bureau”). On 12 August 2013, Starbucks (HK) Limited filed
a Verified Notice of Opposition to the said trademark application. On January 12, 2017, the Intellectual
Property Office of the Philippines dismissed the opposition filed by Starbucks (HK) Limited. In an Order dated
19 May 2017, the Bureau dismissed with finality the Appeal.

On 17 November 2017, the Company filed an administrative case against Mr. Jose P. Dormido,
Sheriff IV, Regional Trial Court, Branch 154, of Pasig City. In a Letter dated 08 January 2018, the Supreme
Court notified the Company that the copy of the Verified Complaint dated 17 November 2017 was forwarded
to the Supreme Court on 18 December 2017 by the Office of the Chief Justice.

There are no pending legal proceeding involving Bankruptcy Petition, Conviction by Final Judgment,
or being subjected to any Order, Judgment or Decree, or Violation of a Securities or Commodities Law to
which the registrant or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates is a party or of which any of their property is the
subject thereof have occurred during the past five (5) years up to the latest date that are material to
evaluation.
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Item 10. Executive Compensation

The aggregate compensation of executive officers and directors of the Company for the last 2 years
and projected for the ensuing year (2018) are as follows:

ACTUAL
2017 2016
COMPENSATION OTHERS TOTAL
A. Five (5) most
highly compensated
Executive Officers
6,502,758 5,176,119 11,678,877 12,390,177.43
All directors and
executive officers as a
group unnamed
295,000 295,000 475,354.73
Projected 2018
COMPENSATION OTHERS TOTAL
A. Five (5) most
highly compensated
Executive Officers
6,631,510.36 5,100,000.00 11,731,510.36
All directors and
executive officers as a
group unnamed
300,000 300,000

The following are the 5 highest compensated directors / executive officers of the Company: 1.
Thomas G. Aquino 2. Mel V. Velarde, 3. Angeline L. Macasaet, 4. Vicente |. Penanueva; and 5) Maria Nenita
G. Libid

Standard Arrangement

Other than payment of reasonable per diem, there are no standard arrangements pursuant to which
directors of the Company are compensated, or are to be compensated, directly or indirectly for any services
rendered provided as a director/executive officer for the last completed fiscal year and the ensuing year.

Other Arrangement
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There are no other arrangements pursuant to which any director of the Company was compensated,
or is to be compensated, directly or indirectly, during the Company’s last completed fiscal year, and the

ensuing year, for any service provided as a director.

Terms and Conditions of any Consultancy Contract or any Compensatory Plan or Arrangement

between the Company and Executive Officers

None.

Outstanding Warrants or Options Held by the Company’s CEO, the Executive Officers and Directors

None.

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

The Company has outstanding common shares totaling 1,517,278,350 shares as of March 31, 2018.
All outstanding shares as of record date are entitled to notice and to vote, on a one-share-one vote basis.

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

(More than 5% as of March 31, 2017)

Title of Name, Address of Record Owner Name of Citizenshi No. of Percentage
class and Relationship with Issuer Beneficial p Shares
Owner and Held
Relationship
with Record
Owner
Common | PDC Nominee Corp. — Filipino Direct Filipino 485,300,985 31.9850
Common | Top Mega Enterprises Limited
11/F Fortune House Direct Chinese 367,935,951 24.2497
61 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong
Common | Emerald Investments, Inc.
Unit 5-1, 5" FIr., OPL Building, 100 Direct Filipino 209,395,185 13.8007
C. Palanca St., Legaspi Village,
Makati City
Common | Velarde, Inc.
Unit 5-1, 51 FIr., OPL Building, 100 Direct Filipino 200,571,550 13.2192
C. Palanca St., Legaspi Village,
Makati City
Common | Foodcamp Industries & Marketing,
Inc. Direct Filipino 91,726 ,643 6.0455
Unit 5-1, 5™ FIr., OPL Building, 100
C. Palanca St., Legaspi Village,
Makati City
Common | Joyce Link Holdings, Limited
11/F Fortune House Direct British VI 86,458,552 5.6983

61 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong
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Security Ownership of Directors and Management as of March 31, 2018

The directors and officers of the Company have no security ownership in the capital stock of the
Company other than the qualifying shares recorded in the names of the directors but beneficially owned by
Velarde, Inc., Gamboa Holdings, Inc. or Foodcamp Industries and Marketing, Inc.:

Title of - Amount and Nature of - . Percent
Name of Beneficial Owner . . Citizenship
Class Beneficial Ownership of class
Common Thomas G. Aquino 1 (Direct) Filipino <.01
Common Mel V. Velarde 10 (Direct) Filipino <.01
Common Jose S. Alejandro 10 (Direct) Filipino <.01
Common Vicente Martin W. Araneta Il 1 ((Direct) Filipino <.01
Common Gerard Bnn R. Bautista 1 (Direct) Filipino <.01
Common Marlou B. Ubano 1 (Direct) Filipino <.01
Common Ramon Guillermo R. Tuazon 1 (Direct) Filipino <.01
Common Jan-Olov Conny Dolonius 1 (Direct) Swedish <.01
Common Winnita Velarde Ysog 1 (Direct) Filipino <.01
Common Angeline L. Macasaset 1 (Direct) Filipino <.01
D. Enrigue Co (Ext Legal Counsel)
Vicente I. Penanueva (CFO) 0 Filipino 0

None of the members of the Company’s directors and management owns 2.0% or more of the
outstanding capital stock of the Company.

Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Except for the President and CEO Mr. Mel V. Velarde and Winnita V. Ysog who are siblings, none of
the Advisors, Executive Officers and Management employees are related by affinity or consanguinity.
The Group entered into transactions with related parties, principally consisting of the following:

a  The Parent Company grants interest-free advances to NOW Telecom for working capital and
administrative requirements. Amounts owed by NOW Telecom as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and
2015 amounted to B63,745,439, B51,346,501, and P31,408,455, respectively.

b. On August 30, 2005, the Parent Company entered into a Loan Agreement with IBI for research and
development purposes in connection with IBI’s plan to expand its IT platform and introduce IT-related
products and services. The loan is subject to 9.0% interest per annum and is payable no later than
August 30, 2010. Partial pre-payments on the principal may be made prior to this date. The interest
is due and demandable only on maturity date. Interest was reduced by the parties to 5.5% per
annum in 2007 and shall be subject to annual repricing subsequent to 2007.

On June 25, 2010, both parties agreed to extend the maturity of the loan from August 30, 2010 to
August 30, 2012. On August 31, 2012, both parties agreed to further extend the maturity of the loan
up to August 30, 2015, with the interest rate further reduced to 3% per annum starting January 1,
2013. On August 31, 2015, both parties agreed to extend the maturity of the loan to five (5) years
ending August 30, 2020. Interest was retained at 3% per annum. Interest income amounted to B
467,033 in 2016, 2015 and 2014 reflected as part of “Others” in revenue. As of December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014, amounts owed by IBI, including interest, amounted B27,497,744, B27,030,711, and
B26,563,678, respectively. 1Bl is an entity under common control.
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C. As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 the Group has outstanding liabilites to Emerald
Investment, Inc. (Ell) amounting to BP2,902,918 which arose from the Group’s sub-lease agreement
with Ell that ended in 2011.

Amounts owed by Ell as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 is B40,848.

d. OnJanuary 1, 2013, the Parent Company renewed its service agreement with KPSC for a period of
four (4) years Dbeginning January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2016. On
January 3, 2017, the Parent Company renewed its service agreement with KPSC for a period of five
(5) years beginning January 3, 2017 to January 2, 2022.

Under the service agreement, KPSC shall provide consultancy and manpower services depending
on the services specifically required by the Group. Amounts owed to KPSC, in relation to the service
agreement, amounted to B13,038,492 PB15,450,244, and P19,719,161 as of December 31, 2017,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Group’s administrative and management functions, including key management personnel, are
being handled by personnel of KPSC.

Outside services incurred by the Group for the provision of key management personnel services that
are provided by KPSC amounted to P2,863,646, B6,176,177, and B6,858,809, in 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively.



-35-

On January 31, 2017, both parties mutually agreed to terminate the service agreement following the
change in the business operation of the Group.

Due to related parties include interest bearing advances from Velarde, Inc. for working capital and
investment requirements. Interest rate for these loans is at 18.0% per annum or 1.5% per month.

On January 22, 2015, Velarde, Inc. agreed to convert its advances amounting to
B200,000,000 into equity interest in the Parent Company for 200,000,000 common shares with a par
value of B1. It was further agreed that the remaining balances and subsequent advances from
Velarde, Inc. shall no longer be subject to interest and shall be due on demand
(see Note 12).

Interest expense booked as additional amounts owed to related party amounted to nil in 2017, 2016
and 2015.

On April 29, 2016, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the conversion into equity of the advances
from Velarde, Inc. amounting to P264,000,000 at a conversion price of B1.22 per share computed on
the volume-weighted average price of the Parent Company’s shares for a 30-day trading period
ended April 14, 2016. On June 2, 2016, the stockholders of the Parent Company approved the said
increase in the Parent Company’s authorized capital stock.

On June 20, 2016, additional advances were incurred from Velarde, Inc, through the latter's payment
of the loans payable to bank on behalf of the Parent Company amounting to
B44,500,000 (see Note 11).

Outstanding accrued interest presented as part of the “Accounts payable and accrued expenses”
amounted to P59,903,586 as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 (see Note 8).

Due to Velarde, Inc. presented as part of “Due to related parties” amounted to B141,326,866, B
68,322,816 and
P223,458,035 as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Group charges Softweb and Velarde, Inc. management fees for the administration and
operations of the companies. Management fees charged to Softweb amounted to nil
in both 2016 and 2015, and B4,800,000 in 2014 reflected as part of “Others” in revenue. Payments
are due within 5 days upon receipt of invoice. Management fees charged to Velarde, Inc. amounted
to B240,000 in 2017, 2016 and 2015 reflected as part of “Others” in revenue.

The Group has outstanding trade receivables to Velarde, Inc. amounting to P1,680,000, B1,440,000
and P1,200,000 as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Group entered into a non-interest bearing loan agreement with Porteon Electric Vehicles, Inc.
(Porteon). As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding amount due from Porteon
Electric Vehicles, Inc. amounted to B2,160,300 which is due on demand.

On January 1, 2011, the Group entered into a sublease contract with 1-College Philippines, Inc. (I-
College) for the period November 1, 2011 to May 31, 2012 with a monthly rental fee of B77,526. The
term of the lease can be renewed upon mutual consent of both parties. The most recent renewal of
this  sublease  agreement is for a  period of  three 3 years  from
November 1, 2014 to October 31, 2017. All other terms and conditions of the sublease agreement
dated January 1, 2011 remain in full force.

Rent expense incurred by the Group amounted to P930,313 in 2017, 2016 and 2015. In connection
with this, the related due to I-College amounted to B5,736,925, B4,806,612, and P3,876,300
as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Group sells IBM licenses to Softweb, an associate. Sales of IBM license to Softweb amounted
to nil, B5,412,232 and P12,088,054 in 2017, 2016 and 2015.
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he Group entered into agreements with Thumbmob, Holy Cow and Softweb for the subscription of
their respective shares. Please see Note 6 for detailed discussion.

Infrastructure build-up and technical services

In January 2015, the Parent Company entered into two separate one (1) year service agreements
with GHT Network, Inc. (GHT) and News and Entertainment Network, Inc. (Newsnet) to provide
bandwidth services to its customers. The Parent Company provided the infrastructure build-up and
technology design and consultancy.

In 2016, the Parent Company entered into contracts with GHT, Newsnet and includes NOW Telecom
whereas the Parent Company will provide project management services, design and planning
services and installation services covering up to 10 major network hubs for a total contract price of B
45,000,000 each. Right to receive payments arise upon acceptance of GHT, Newsnet and NOW
Telecom of completed hubs. Payments are due upon receipt of invoice. A total of 9 and 10 hubs
were completed for GHT and Newsnet respectively in 2017. Service revenue related to
infrastructure build-up recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted to B45,000,000, P30,000,000
and B20,000,000.

Included in the contract entered in 2016, the Parent Company will provide technology consultancy
services for a period of ten (10) years with a monthly fee of B50,000 each for GHT and Newsnet.
Service revenue recognized in 2017 and 2016 amounted to B600,000 and B450,000 each for GHT
and Newsnet.

The Group provided technical service related with Rohill TetraNode System to NOW Telecom in
2016 which the Group recognize a service revenue amounting to P7,500,000.

Parent Company also entered into a contract with NOW Telecom to provide management
consultancy services commencing from January 2017 to January 2020 with an agreed monthly fee of
P650,000. Service revenue related to management consultancy servicdes to NOW Telecom
amounted to B7,800,000 in 2017.

The Group has an outstanding trade receivables from the related parties:

2017 2016 2015
GHT 44,032,048 28,504,000 11,200,000
Newsnet 53,441,589 28,504,000 11,200,000
NOW Telecom 13,102,508 8,400,000 -

Value-added services (VAS)

In 2015, the Parent Company entered into three (3) separate agreements with NOW Telecom, GHT
and Newsnet (the Parties), wherein the Parties mutually agreed to collaborate and interconnect their
respective networks in order for the Parent Company to provide VAS to the public such as cloud
hosting services, virtual private network, multimedia content and program services, online game
services, cloud-based multimedia conferencing services, web hosting and cloud-based mail and
messaging services (VAS contracts).

On December 5, 2016, the parties agreed to amend Chapter 5 of their VAS contracts to add
provision on revenue sharing from the broadband revenue.

On December 23, 2016, the parties agreed to amend their VAS contracts to include additional fees
from actual usage of bandwidth and other provision on charging to the Parent Company on a cost-
plus margin arrangement. Total cost of data services charged to cost of services amounted to P
3,121,774 and B2,476,627 in 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding amounts due from GHT amounted to B
8,588,889, B6,177,301 and B5,000,180, respectively. The group also has an outstanding amounts
due from Newsnet amounting to P19,360,911, P10,736,960 and B6,067,544 as of December 31,
2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.



Trade Trade
Transaction Duefrom and other Dueto and other Advancesto
Related parties Category Y ear amount related parties recelyables related parties payables affiliates Terms
Shareholders To0T
Velarde, Inc. Advances 2017 B73,004,050 B- B- 141,326,866 B- B- On demand
2016 73,626,954 - - 68,322,816 - - On demand
2015 170,709,048 - - 223,458,035 - - On demand
Management
fee 2017 240,000 - 1,680,000 - - - On demand
2016 240,000 - 1,440,000 - - - On demand
2015 240,000 - 1,200,000 - - - On demand
Interest 2017 - - - - 59,903,586 - On demand
2016 - - - - 59,903,586 - On demand
2015 - - - - 59,903,586 - On demand
GHI Advances 2017 2,000 2.000 - - - - On demand
2016 - - - - - - On demand
2015 - - - 95,536 2,035,055 - On demand
Ell Advances 2017 - 40,848 - - - - On demand
2016 - 40,848 - - - - On demand
2015 - 40,848 - - - - On demand
L eases 2017 - - - 2,902,918 - - On demand
2016 - - - 2,902,918 - - On demand
2015 - - - 2,902,918 - - On demand
Affiliates
NOW Telecom Advances 2017 12,398,938 63,745,439 - 878,208 - - On demand
2016 2,704,687 51,346,501 - 878,208 - - On demand
2015 7,816,287 31,408,455 - 749,806 - - On demand
Services 2017 7,800,000 - 13,102,508 - - - On demand
2016 7,500,000 - 8,400,000 - - - -
2015 - - - - - - -
(Forward)
KPSC Advances 2017 B5,000 B209,708 = = B- B- On demand
2016 - 204,708 - - - - On demand
2015 2,160 202,548 - - - - On demand
Outside 2017 11,756,110 - - - 13,038,492 - On demand
Services 2016 50,716,312 - - - 15,450,244 - On demand
2015 46,656,791 - - - 19,719,161 - On demand
IBI Advances 2017 - 15,567,752 - - - -
Duewithin 5yrs
2016 - 15,567,752 - - - -
Duewithin 5 yrs
2015 - 15,567,752 - - - -
On demand
Interest 2017 467,033 11,929,992 - - - -
Duewithin 5yrs
2016 467,033 11,462,959 - - - -
Duewithin 5 yrs
2015 467,033 10,995,926 - - - -
On demand
Asian Ingtituteof ~ Advances 2017 18,048 489,109 - - - - On demand
Journalism and
Communication 2016 1,039 471,061 - - - - On demand
2015 2,661 470,022 - - - - On demand
Paradiso Verde, Inc. Advances 2017 - - - - 3,358,462 - On demand
2016 - - - - 3,358,462 - On demand
2015 - - - - 3,358,462 - -
Services 2017 - - - 605,212 - - On demand
2016 - - - 605,212 - - On demand
2015 368,195 - - 605,212 - - On demand
(Forward)
Porteon Loans 2017 = B2,160,300 B- B- B- B- On demand
2016 - 2,160,300 - - - - On demand
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2015 - 2,160,300 - - - - On demand
Newsnet Advances 2017 8,623,951 19,360,911 - - - - On-demand
2016 4,669,416 10,736,960 - - - - On-demand
2015 947,948 6,067,544 - - - - -
Services 2017 25,600,000 - 53,441,589 - - - On-demand
2016 15,450,000 - 28,504,000 - - - On-demand
2015 10,000,000 - 11,200,000 - - - -
GHT Advances 2017 2,411,588 8,588,889 - - - - On-demand
2016 1,177,121 6,177,301 - - - - On-demand
2015 180 5,000,180 - - - - -
Services 2017 20,600,000 - 44,032,048 - - - On-demand
2016 15,450,000 - 28,504,000 - - - -
2015 10,000,000 - 11,200,000 - - - -
Holycow Loans 2017 - - 2,211,771 - - - On demand
2016 - - 2,211,771 - - - On demand
2015 - - 2,211,771 - - - On demand
Interest 2017 - 156,000 - - - - On demand
2016 - 156,000 - - - - On demand
2015 - 156,000 - - - - On demand
Advances 2017 - - - - - 9,248,449 On demand
2016 - - - - - 9,248,449 On demand
2015 - - - - - 9,248,449 On demand
Thumbmob Advances 2017 - - - - - 14,344,369 On demand
2016 - - - - - 14,344,369 On demand
2015 - - - - - 14,344,369 On demand
(Forward)
I-College Advances 2017 B- B720 B- B- B B On demand
2016 - 720 - - - - On demand
2015 - 720 — — — — —
Lease 2017 930,313 - - 5,736,925 - - On demand
2016 930,313 - - 4,806,612 - - On demand
2015 930,313 - - 3,876,300 - - On demand
Associate
Softweb Advances 2017 111,701 487,344 2,380,860 4,216 - - On demand
2016 - 487,344 2,380,860 4,816 - - On demand
2015 1,389,259 2,163,820 2,380,860 6,390,573 - 5,000,000 On demand
Loans 2017 - 714,000 - - - - On demand
2016 - 714,000 - - - - On demand
2015 - 714,000 - - - - On demand
Sales 2017 - - 16,401,451 - - - On demand
2016 5,412,232 - 16,401,451 - - - On demand
2015 12,088,054 - 22,493,064 - - - On demand
Management
fee 2017 - - 15,590,000 - - - On demand
2016 - - 15,590,000 - - - On demand
2015 4,800,000 - 15,590,000 - - - On demand
2017 P123,453,012 B148,840,227 B151,454,345 B76,300,540 B23,592,818
2016 899,526,454 £103,432,082 B77,520,582 £78,712,292 823,592,818
2015 B74,950,275 £66,275,695 £238,078,380 £85,016,264 £28,592,818
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Summary of related party transactions affecting consolidated statements of income:

General and
Cost of salesand administrative
Related parties Category Y ear Revenues services expenses
Velarde Inc. M anagement Fee 2017 £240,000 B- B-
2016 240,000 - -
2015 240,000 - -
Interest 2017 - - -
2016 - - -
2015 - - -
NOW Telecom Services 2017 7,800,000 - -
2016 7,500,000 - -
2015 - - -
Cost of data services 2017 — 1,757,720 -
2016 - 779,715 -
2015 - -
L eases 2017 - - 120,000
Newsnet Services 2017 25,600,000 - -
2016 15,450,000 - -
2015 10,000,000 - -
Cost of data services 2017 - 1,364,054 -
2016 - 1,696,912 -
2015 - - -
GHT Services 2017 20,600,000 - -
2016 15,450,000 - -
2015 10,000,000 - -
IBI Inter est 2017 467,033 - -
2016 467,033 - -
2015 467,033 - -
KPSC Outside services 2017 - 8,411,946 3,344,164
2016 — 43,226,619 7,489,693
2015 - 40,054,599 6,602,192
Softweb Sales 2017 - - -
2016 5,412,232 - -
2015 12,088,054 - -
M anagement fee 2017 - - -
2016 — - -
2015 - - -
I-College Lease 2017 - - 930,313
2016 - - 930,313
2015 - — 930,313
2017 B54,707,033 B11,533,720 B4,394,477
2016 B44,519,265 45,703,246 8,420,006
2015 B32,795,087 240,054,599 B7,532,505
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PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Item 13. Corporate Governance

Per SEC Memorandum Circular No. 15 Series of 2017, the Integrated Annual Corporate
Governance Report shall be due on or before 30 May 2018, hence not yet included in this report.

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

Item 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C

(a) Exhibits

The audited consolidated financial statements are attached as “Annex A”. The audited financial
statements for parent company are attached as “Annex B”. The Secretary’s Certificate certifying
the authorized signatories for the Statement of Management Responsibility is attached as Annex

“C".

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

The following were the reports on SEC Form 17-C filed during the year 2017 until 31 March 2018:

DATE PARTICULARS
16 January 2017 On 13 January 2017, NOW Corporation received a copy of the Certificate of Filing of
Amended Articles of Incorporation (Amending Article VIl reclassification of P60,000,000.00
Common Shares to Preferred Shares thereof) issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission dated 10 January 2017.
20 January 2017 In the 20 January 2017 Special Meeting, the Board of Directors elected Domingo B.

Bonifacio as an independent director to fill the vacancy created as a result of the death of
Marcelito R. Ordonez.

During the said meeting, the Board likewise appointed Vicente |. Pefianueva as NOW
Corporation’s Chief Finance Officer.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors passed the following resolutions:

1) Approval of the issuance of detachable warrants in connection with the public offering of
the Company'’s preferred shares;

2) Approval of the reissuance of combined audited consolidated Financial Statements
ending 31 December 2015, 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, as audited by
SGV; and

3) Approval and authorization of the issuance of the unaudited interim condensed
consolidated Financial Statements as of 30 September 2016, as reviewed by SGV.
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29 March 2017

At the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of NOW Corporation, the Board approved
the delegation to the Chairman, or in his absence the Vice Chairman, and to the President,
the authority to approve the 2016 Audited Financial Statements of the Company.

In view of the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting scheduled on 01 June 2017, the
Board resolved to set the record date on 08 May 2017.

01 June 2017

The following were elected as Directors during the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders
held on 01 June 2017:

Thomas G. Aquino;

Jose S. Alejandro;

Mel V. Velarde;

Vicente Martin W. Araneta IlI;

Gerard Bnn R. Bautista;

Ramon Guillermo R. Tuazon;

Marlou B. Ubano, as independent director;
Domingo B. Bonifacio, as independent director;
Lucas C. Carpio, Jr., as independent director;
Winnita V. Ysog;

Angeline L. Macasaet.

The shareholders present, in person or by proxy, approved/ratified the following items;

1. Minutes of the Special Stockholders’ Meeting held on 08 November 2016;

2. 2016 Annual Report and 2016 Audited Financial Statements;

3. Acts of and Resolutions of the Board of Directors and Officers of the Corporation since
the Last Special Stockholders’ Meeting;

4. Re-Appointment of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. as External Auditor.

07 August 2017

At the 07 August 2017 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, the following resolutions
were approved: 1) Acceptance of disengagement of SB Capital Investment Corporation
(“SB Capital”) as one of the Joint Issue Managers, Joint Bookrunners and Joint Lead
Underwriters. 2) Appointment of SB Capital as the Company’s Financial Advisor; 3) Grant
of authority to the Chairman and President and CEO to negotiate and engage the services
of an Issue Manager, Bookrunner, Lead Underwriter for its proposed public offer of
preferred shares; 4) Reduction of the Company’s proposed public offering of its preferred
shares from 15M preferred shares with 30M warrants to 5M preferred shares with 30M
warrants thus resulting in the reduction of the offer size from Php 1.5B to Php 500M.

20 December 2017

In its 20 December 2017 Regular Meeting, the Board approved, in relation to its conduct of
Public Offering by way of a Follow-On Offering (“FOO”) of its Preferred Shares of stocks,
the offer and sale of up to 10,000,000 out of the 60,000,000 redeemable, convertible, non-
participating and non-voting preferred share with detachable warrants out of the unissued
portion of the authorized capital stock of the Corporation (the “Offer Shares”) and up to
20,000,000 Detachable Subscription Warrants to be issued free of charge with 20,000,000
underlying common shares (collectively, the “Warrant”);

The Board likewise approved the proposed term sheet with respect to the FOO, which
among others, contain the following:

a. Offer Size of Php500,000,000 without oversubscription, and up to Php1,000,000,000
with oversubscription with an Offer Prize of Php100.00 per preferred share;

b. Between the end of the 3" and 4" anniversary of the Preferred Shares, the holder of the
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Preferred Shares may convert all of the holder's outstanding shareholdings of the
Preferred Shares to common shares of the Company at a conversion price of Php20.00
per share;

c. Holders of the Preferred Shares shall have no pre-emptive rights to subscribe to any
shares (including, without limitation, treasury shares) that will be issued or sold by the
Issuer. Each application shall be for a minimum of 500 Preferred Shares and thereafter, in
multiples of 100 Preferred Shares. No application for multiples of any other members of
Preferred Shares will be considered.

d. Maximum of 10,000,000 warrants without oversubscription, and maximum of 20,000,000
warrants with full exercise of the oversubscription, or two (2) warrants per Preferred Share.
Maximum of 10,000,000 common shares underlying the Detachable Warrants without
oversubscription, and maximum of 20,000,000 common shares underlying the Detachable
Warrants with oversubscription. The Warrants shall have a strike price of Php10.00 for the
duration of the Exercise Dates;

e. The above terms were finalized by the Company together with Unicapital, Inc., its Issue
Manager, Lead Underwriter, bookrunner.

In the same meeting, the Board likewise confirmed the Company’s Short-Term Loan Line
applied with the LandBank of the Philippines minimum of Php50,000,00.00. The Board
delegated to the Executive Committee the authority to negotiate with the bank the final
terms and conditions of the loan.

15 March 2018

In its 15 March 2018 Regular Meeting, the Board approved the delegation to the Chairman,
the President, and the Chief Finance Officer, the authority to approve the 2017 Audited
Financial Statements of the Corporation.

In view of the Corporation’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting scheduled on 07 June 2018, the
Board resolved to set the record date on 30 April 2018.

Likewise in the said meeting, the Board resolved to delegate to the Executive Committee
the setting of the final conversion price related to the conversion into equity of the
Php260,000,000.00 advances from a shareholder. Said conversion into equity was
previously approved by both the Board and the Stockholders, respectively, and was
likewise promptly disclosed to the Philippine Stock Exchange.

Furthermore, Atty. Lucas C. Carpio, Jr. tendered his resignation as an Independent
Director of the Board of Directors of the Corporation effective 15 March 2018.

Quarterly Financial Reports (Form 17-Q) were submitted to the SEC for the quarter ending March,
June and September 2017.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code, this
report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in Makati City on 24

April 2018.

By:
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MEL V. VELARDE VICENTE |. PENANUEVA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors and the Stockholders
NOW Corporation

Unit §-1, 5* Floor, OPL Building

L) C. Palanca Street, Legnspi Village
Makati City

Opinion

We have sudited the consolidated financial statements of NOW Corporation and its subsidiaries

(the Group), which comprize the consolidated statements of financial position as a1 December 11, 2017,
20016 und 2015, end the consolidated statements of incoms, consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for years
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial smtements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the conselidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, and ity
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

HBasis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs), Our
responsibilities under those standards are firther described in the dudiror s Resporaibilities for the Audl
af the Consolidared Financial Statements seotion of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
tgether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical esponsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained i=
sufficient and eppropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Kev Audit Matiers

Key audit matters are these matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance i our
audit of the consnlidated financial statements of the current period. These matiers were addressed in the
cantext of our eudit of the consolidated financial statements as & whole, and in forming our epinicn
thergon, and we do not provide @ separate opinion on these matters, For the matter below, aur description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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Valuation and Recaverability of the Investment in NOW Telecom, Inc. g
As at December 31, 2017, the Group has 9% equity mvestment in NOW Telecom, Ine. iRl b
B1,289 278,350, which represents 7T% of the Group's total assets. This unguoted equity mvemmﬁ T
¢lassificd us an available-for-sale financial assat and is carried at cost. Philippine Accounting Stand ;{.
(PAS) 39, Financial Instruments: Recognivion and Measuremenn, provides that investments in shares o

stock that do not have a quoted price in an active market gnd whose fair vitlue cannot be reliably

meesured shall be measured at cost less impairment  Also, under PFRS. if there i ohjective evidence of
Impairment, the Group is required to determine the recoverable mmount of the unquoted equity sec arity,
which is the present value of estimated future cash flows, and record any impairment loss

The determination of the valuation and recoverable mmount of the investment in NOW Telecom, Inc: wre
significant to our audit because the amount is mazerial to the consolidated financial staternents. The
Group also applied judgment in selecting the valuation technique and use of assumptions such as market
vilue of comparable frequencics, revenue growth rate, long-term growth rate and disecunt rate, Any
changes to these assumptions could significantly affect the recoversbility of the investment.

The related diselosures on the Group's investment in NOW Teiecom, Inc. are included in Note 3 10 the
consolidated financial statements,

Auwadiy

We invalved our internal specialist in evaiuating the assumptions and valuation methodologies used. For
frequencies of NOW Telecom, Inc. with comparable markst value, we compared the assumptions used in
valuing these frequencies such as price per MHzPop with the most recent comparable marker

amaotint camputed is a reliable estimate of fair value, We also reviewed the Group's disclosures about
those assumptions to which the outcome of the inpairment test is most sensitive, specifically those that
have the mest significant effect on the détermination of the recoverable amount of the investment in
NOW Telecom, Inc.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information eomprises the information
included in the SEC Farm 20-18 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the vear ended Decomber 3 1, 2017, but does not include the consolidatad fnancial staternents end our
auditor's report thereon. The SEC Form 20-15 { Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form | 7-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 3 l, 2017 are expected to be made available 1o us nfier the
date of this auditor's report.
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Crur openion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
ond will not express any form of assurence conclusion thereon,

In connection with our sudits of the consoliduted financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the
other information identified sbove when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the athar
information is materially inconststent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the sudits, or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Finnncial Statemenis

Management s responsible for the prepartion and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determifnes =
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements thal are free from material
misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial siatements, managernent is responsible for assessing the Growp's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of sccounting unless management cither intends to liguidate the Croup or 1o
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do sa.

Those charged with governance are responaible for oversesing the Group®s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as s
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that in¢ledes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaranice that an
pudit conducted in pccordonce with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it cxists
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually or in the

nggregate, they could reasenably be expected 1o influence the economic dectsions of
basis of these consolidated financial statements,

By st G
As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment r:ﬁﬂEﬂE‘jﬂ“ﬁ-ariu“:Fﬁ?h

professional skepticism throughout the nudit. We also; . T VE-D
»  [dentify and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, - :--::.';:"-q

whether dee 1o fraud or error, design and perform audil procedures responsive @ghose risks, and
abuain sudit evidence that i sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our®pinjon. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud ts higher than for one iting from error,
as frand miny involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mismepresentations, e override of
infermul contral. %

&  Obtaln an enderstanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinien on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal contrel.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of Bctounting policies used and the reasonabloness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of actounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether n material uncertainty exists related 1o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt en the Growp's ability to continue as a going concern. |f
we conclude thot a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our suditngs
repart to the related disclosures in the consalidated financial statements o, If such dieclkssyses are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions arc based o the audit evidencs obtained up 1o
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to confinue &5 & going concern.

=  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlving
ransactions und events in & manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Crbwin sufficient appropriate sudit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business sctivities within the Group 1o express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audii. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We nlso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relovant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 1o communicate with them all relutionships and other
matters. that may reasonably be thought to bear on sur independence, and where spplicable, related
safegunrds,
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From the maners communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are thorefore the key oudit matters, We describe these matters in our aoditor’s report wnless low or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the marter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determing that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverss consequences of
doing so would ressonably be expected 1o cutweigh the public interest benefits of sech communication

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent suditor’s report is
Jhoanna Feliza C, Go,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

e

Thoanne Felizgs C; Go

Farner

CTA Certificale No. 0114122

SEC Accroditation No. [414-AR-1 (Groop A),
March 2, 2017, valid until Magreh 1, 2020

Tax Identification Mo, 219-674-788

BIR Accreditation No, OR-001998-103-2017,
Janunry 31, 2007, valid until January 30, 2020

PTR Mo, 6621266, January 9, 2018, Maksti City

April 8, 2018
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NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e

i1 K RTE
AREETSE \
Current Assets
Cash Floaoe 194 B 06 415 R
Trade and other reveivahics Mot 4) 167943 224 115,532,368 B TEE 400
Due from reinted perties (Mobe 5} 85 955 268 TE 404, 143 4E 380,557
Dtbser cusrent assels (Noie 5) 47,364,921 1439213 4,176,091
Toial Carrent Avsety 311,957 609 I ERT k] 150333 768
MNancurrent Azsety
Available-for-iale investment (Nate 6) 128927 8 LIE9 278,050 128 278 950
Advances to affifiancs (Mote §) 23502 418 21, 592018 28,502 BN
e from related parties (Mote 73 2T ANTT44 27,030,711 16563670
Property and equigment (Note 7) B, 711,463 i 4i 14,680 1,250,507
Crher noncurrent neses TI%,TIS 414 087 133,904

Totul Mosewrrent Assei

1,349 820,090 [ 346, 95], S4n

TR

TOTAL ASSETS P1671777 690 L4055 280 B 4590 752 (18%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Avcaurits payable mnd scorued expenses (Neie i Plo4,067.259 PLI19.642 574 P32 807 061
frue to related parties (Wote %) 15] 454,342 7T A0, 580 138 7K 1EG
Loans payable (Mate 1)) 97337 T 425 A4, 500 000
Total Current Lishilitien 315,618,941 197250 42 JIS508 44T
Mencurrent Linbility
Lisans payable (Hate 11§ 51614 44§07 =
Totnl Liabilities 315,970,588 197 699, i5G &3 A05 44
Eiuity
Equity ansibatabic w equity holders of the Parent Crsmgany:
Cvmsnos simck (Mote 1X) I.S1T. 278 350 1517278 130 L2777 35
Crepagis for futare Mook subscriphions (Notes 9 and 12) 264 000,000 264,000,000
Cumubstive transistion adjustment 1,152,963 1, 0441433 T E=TT
Equity reserve (Note 1) {1978, 704) .
Deeficit (421,158 169 427 950 028 A 450 6 58)
1359.294,350 I.554 460 S50 LOET BT G0
Non-controlking interest 3487 3,132 960 (5,101,006}
Tatnl Eijiidey 1355 307, 144 1,145 135 fy) |02 Bdd pdd

TOTAL LIARILITIES AND EQUITY
e e e
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NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended Decembor 3

017 2014 2013
REVENUES {Note 9)
Bervice foeg PI26,666201 P90,A23.757  PST108017
Bales 11698063 11048 682 4T33.an
Dby &10.161 I, 764,54] P54 483
T4B.5T4 415 105436087 (15397 08
COSTS OF SALES AND SERVICES (Note 3] BS803.478 56,646,947 75,600,143
GROSS INCOME 63170847  4F, 700,04 19,793 520
LGENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
(Male 14} S407TT 60 43,401,136 IL21Y,830
OTHER CHARGES
Interest expense (Mote | 1) 51015 72,842 15T B4
Oihers 79,898 124,170 783,832
131,913 £97.132 1837376
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 8,961,174 4,691 773 fi, 744,321
PROVISION FOR CURRENT INCOME TAX (Note 15} 2,470,958 2,193,264 | 508, 840
NET INCOME Mlﬂ!li P2 498 59 B 235 413
e e e
NET INCOME [(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equiry holders of the Parent Company P6,T92056  F2,500.433 BS236 T4
Non-controlling interests (501, B40) (1,924} (1271}

PG, 290216 P2 495509 P5 375413

Basic/Diluted Euui!i: Per Share (Noia 16} 0045 L0016 PO
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NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 3
2017 2k 20105
MET INCOME P6,290216  PI.498 509 P5235 413
UTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
ftem that will be peclarsifled ta profit or loss in subrequent

periods:

Cormulsiive transiation sdjustments 12,528 5533 [14.234)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME _P6 301,744 P7 488956 B5.T01, 1649
__—I“—

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

ATTRIBUTABLE T0O:

Equity holders of the Parent Conpany P 804,564 P2 490 880 P52 470
Hnn--:murullmg interests (501,840 {1924 112711

P74 PLABESSG P3| (o9
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NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

1017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
[ncome before income tay PRBE1, 1T P4 69].TT3 B, 744 323
Adjustments fior:
Deprecintion and emomization {MNotes-2, 7 and 14} 4,411,001 2,214,569 1,567 678
Interest income (472,507) {470,584) (T11.418)
Interest expenss (Mote 11} 52015 51962 [,053 B44
Straighi-line adjustment on rent (Nate 10) 5933
Provision for impairment losses on:
Trade and oiher receivables (Motes 4 and [4) 1,940 GRS AES 4033 gaz
Advances o affilintes (Note &) - 5,000,000 =
Ot cusrent aseets (Motes 5 and 14) - = 158,747
CUperating income before working capiml changes 12,959,556 12,65 (05 4,847 026
Decrense (Increase) in;
Trade and other receivables (S2A412,796)  (H4435198)  (3401937T)
Ciher curment assets (16,065.878) {3.481,122) (15971
Ingrense (Decrease) in sccounts and accrusd 20,779 932 {13,284 487) 11,742 Gle
Met cash used in operations (34,740,196) (38310802} [7.333,3346)
Income taxes paid {2,670, 95H) (2,103 2643 (1,508, &
Interest paid {52,015} (572 ) {Bh3 35R)
Interast received 5474 3951 7,607
St cash flovws used Elgaﬂj\'ﬂlﬂ (37,457 695) (41272921 1 O 20T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
IncrEase in:
Due from related parties (23,446,997) (24,109, 146) 2,321,936)
(Mher noncuITent Asscts {354 465) (227 928) (193,403}
Additions 1o property and equipment (Note T} (6,458,047) (5,451,837 (239 078)
Mgt cash flows used in investing activithes (30,255,509) (2%, 7ER.511) (2756417
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in due to related parties (Mote 20} 73,033,763 %8042 302 26,717, 568
Sale of i-Professionnl shares (Note 2) 168,500 - -
Payment of losns payable (Note 20} (H7.581) (44,500,000 =
Procesd from ksan I'l'l.“]]ll!d! - A5 036,377
Cash flows from financing activities 74,014,981 59 47R.379 26,727,168
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
DN CASH = 1371
NET INCREASE (DECHEASE) IN CASH 6,297,777 (11,583,253) 13972915
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,396,419 15,979,672 206,757
CASH AT END OF YEAR Fim6594. 196 P4,306419 P15.979.673
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NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|. Corporate Information

Corporate Background

NOW Corporation (formerly Information Capital Technology Ventures, Inc.; the Parent Lompany |
started a5 a duly licensed investment house when it was incorporated on June 3, 1996 and registered
in the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as MF Shroder & Co., Inc. I was
originally a wholly owned subsidiary of Amalgamated [nvestment Bancorporation (AIB) and was
initially engaged in the purchase and sale of securities.

In 2000, AIB expanded the services of the Parent Company by establishing an information
technology (IT) enabled facility geared towands servicing the private equity needs of small and
medium enterprises by matching them online with direct equity investors, Hence, the Parent
Company's Article of Incorporation { AQI) was changed to expand its primary purpose of engaging in
the business of securities brokerage through the use of TT.

Cm July 23, 2002, the Parent Company”s Board of Directors (BOTY) and stockholders approved the
offer of up to 28,000,000 shares from the Parent Company”s unissued common stock through initial
public offering (IPO). The pplication for the IPO of the Parent Company was approved by the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) and SEC on June 11, 7003 and July 30, 2003, respectively, The
Pasent Company was listed in the PSE on July 23, 2003 with an issuefshare price of

B1.00 per share.

In 2008, the PSE approved the application for the listing of the additional 1 285 278,350 common
shares with an issusishare price of P1.00 per share to cover the share-for-share swap tramsaétiong with
NOW Telecom, Inc. (NOW Telecom) shareholders {see Note 6).

In July 2009, the SEC approved the amendment of the Parent Company's AQI which provides for the

change in its primary purpose of engaging in the securities brokerage business to a technology, media
and telecommunication (TMT) business.

In August 2010, the SEC approved further the smendment of the Parent Company’s ADI, removing
the pre-emptive rights of shareholders with respect i subszription to any class of the Parent
Company’s shares of stock.

On December 16, 2010, the Parent Company's BOD approved the amendment in its AO! to include
secondary purpose, The inclusion of the secondary purpose was subsequently ratified by the Forent
Company’s stockholders on July 2, 2011 and was approvad by the SEC on August 25, 2011, The
additional secondary purposes include:

1. Providing professional services and manpower in the field of TMT;

b. Acting as commission agent, manufacturer's representative, or principal for the purpase, sale,
distribution, manufacture, assembly, import or export of any and all classes of materinls,
merchandise, supplies and commodities of every kind and pature; and

c. Engaging in the business of general and retail merchants, traders, factors, ngents, manufacturers,
processors, dealing in or with any and all classes of materials, merchandise, supplies and
commaodities of every kind and nature.

(in December 21, 2016, the Parent Company's BOD approved the filing of the Registration

Statement, Listing Application snd the terms and conditions and such other relevant acts in
connection with the intended public affering of preferred shares of the Parcnt Company.



Change in Co

The SEC approved the Parent Company's application w change its name from MF Shroder & Co.,
Inc. to Cashrounds, Inc, in January 2002 and Information Capital Technology Ventures, Inc. in
September 2006,

Subsequently, on August 16, 2013, the SEC approved the change in the Parent Company s name to
its current corperate name, NOW Corporation,

O March 22, 2005, o Memorandium of Agreement (MOA ) was executed by ATB and Gamboa
Holdings, Inc. (GHI), whereby AIB agreed to sell and GHI agreed m purchase 18,171,286 shares of
the Parent Company at an aggrepate purchase price of 74,395,000 The sale of the Parent
Company's shares became effective en August 20, 2005 resulting to & 66.67% ownership inlerest of
GHI in the Parent Company.

(On March 10 2006, the Nationgl Telecommunication Commission (NTC), through the efforts of
IMX Broadband Inc. (IB1), issued & Certificate of Registration (CoR) to the Parent Company to allow
it to opernte and maintain value added services (VAS) &nd voice over intermet protocol (VOIF)
services In all cities and municipalities nationwide.

m November 27, 2015, NTC issued CoR to the Parent Company that will suthorized it as a VAS
provider for services such as cloud hosting services, virtual private network, multimedia content and
program services, onling game services, cloud-based multimedia conferencing services, web hosting
and cloud-based mail and messaging services. The CoR is valid for a period of five () years which
will expire on November 26, 2020.

In 2015, the Parént Company entered into three (3) separate agreements with NOW Telecom, GHT
Network, Inc. (GHT) and News and Entertainment Network Corporation (Newsnet) (the Parties),
wherein the Parties mutually agreed to collaborate and interconnect their respective networks in order
for the Parent Company to provide VAS to the public such as cloud hosting services, virtual private
network, multimed:a content and program services, online game services, cloud-based multimedia
conferencing services, web hosting and cloud-based mail and messaging services (VAS contracts).

(in December 5, 20186, the Parties agreed 1o amend Chapter 5 of their VAS contracts to add provision
on revenue sharing from the broadband revenue.

Om December 23, 2016, the Parties further agreed to amend their VAS confracts 1o include additional
fees from sctual usage of bandwidth and other provision on charging to the Parent Company o6 a

cost-plis margin Arrangement.

The Parent Company’s registered nddress is Unit 5-1, 5% Floor OPL Building, 100 Carlos Palanca 5t
Legaspi Village, Makati City.

Authorigation for lssuance

In the March 15, 2018 Regular BOD Meeting, the BOD delegnted to the Chairman, the President. and
the Chief Finance Officer the suthority to approve the lssuance of the consolidated financeal
statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to herein ad the Group) &5
of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 and for the years then ended,

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 and for

the vears then ended were authorized for issue by the Chairman and President on
April 9, 2018



2, Sommary of Significant Accounting Policies

Busis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been propared under the historical cost basis,
mcluding the available-for-sale (AFS) financial asset that is not quoted in an active market, The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (B), which is the Parent

Company's functional currency, Amounts are rounded to the nearest Philippine pese, except when
ctherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated fmancial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (FFRSs).

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company snd the
following subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017, 2016 snd 2015 and for the years then ended:

Year af Pemtuire of Percontage of Dwnenhip
Imorporatson  Business i) ) 2018 TS
I-Gpan IT Serviees, Inc, (JSIT] 3001 Hervice 100% 1002 10044
Poneoa SEA, [ne [Partenn) an Mamifactaring 104014 G 0o
i-Resoorce Consulting
Incernntsonal, Inc. (IRCH) 3011 Sarvice 100455 1005 104y
I-Professiomal Search MNetwork,
Inc.(1-Professional | 2003 Service T5% 100 100
Suftrigeer [nferactive, Ing, (511} 2000 Service 7% AT AT

All the subsidiaries were incorporated in the Philippines except for JSIT, which was incorperated in
Japan.

On January 25, 2017, Velarde, Inc. entered into a subscription agreement with i-Professional for the
subscription of 6, 750 common shares of the latier, representing 25% imerest, thereby reducing the
ownership of the Company in Professional from 100% to 75%. This resulted to an equity reserve
amaounting to #1.,978,794 55 of Decomber 31, 2017,

The Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

s Power over the investes {iLe. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investes)

*  Exposure, or rights, 1o variable retumns from its involvement with the investee, and

#  The ability to use ity power over the investes 1o affect 115 retums

When the Group has less than o majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstinces in assessing whether it has power over an investes,
including:

#  The contractusl arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
* Rights urising from other contractual amangements
*  The Group's voting nghts and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes 1o one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
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begins when the Group obtains control aver the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the statement of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Prafit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCT) are antributed to the egquity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, evan if this resulis in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's sccounting
policies, All intra-group assets and liabilitics, equity, ingome, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of & subsidiary, without 8 loss of conirol, is aecounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets
fincluding poodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest and other compomnents while any resultant
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss, Any investment retained is recognized at fuir value,

Non-controlling interest represent the portion of profit or loss and net asscts in the subsidiarics ngt
held by the Group and are presented separately in the profit or loss ond within equity in the
consolidated financial position, separately, fiom the equity attributsble 1o equity holders of the parent
of the Group. Transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for s equity bolders
\ransactions. Any excess or deficit of consideration paid aver the carrying amount of
non-controlling interest acquired is recognized in equity of the Group as “Equity reserve”.

The acquisition of an additional ownership interest in subsidiary without a change in control s
accounted for as an equity transaction in accordance with PAS 27. In transactions where the non-
controlling interest is scquired or sold without loss of control, any excess o deficit of consideration
paid over the carrying amount of the non-controlling interest is recognized as part of “Equity reserva”™
sccount in the equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Comparry.

ct in 2 ing Polici J Discl
The Company spplied for the first time certain standards and smendments, which are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, Adoption of these pronouncements did not
have & significant impact on the Company's financial position or performance unless otherwise
tndicated.

s Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interesiz in Other Entitfes, Clarification of the Seope
of the Standard (Part of Amnual fmprovements fo PERSs 2014 - 2016 Cyele)

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating to
summarized financial information, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint vemture or
an associate (or 4 portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is classified

(or included in o disposal group that is classified) as held for sale,

Adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
stuteamants.

«  Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiarive
The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their lisbilities prising from

financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes
{such as foreign exchange gains or lasses). The Group has provided the required mformation in
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Mote 20 to the financial statements. As allowed under the fransition provisions of the standard,
the Company did not present comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2016

Amendments o PAS 12, fmcomie Tares, Recopnirion of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions upon the reversal of the deductible
temporary difference related to unrealized losses, Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may inciode the recovery of some assets for more than their camying
AmoLnt.

The amendments has no affect on the Group's consolidated financial position and performance as
the Group has no deductible tempornry differences or asscts that are in the scope of the
nrrend ments.

Monc {

The Group presents assets and finbilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
gurrent or noncurrent classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading:

Expected ta be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or wsed to settle a lability foe st
leaz twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classifisd as noncurrent

A linbility is classified as current when:

Ii is expected to be scttled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and with banks,

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognized in the consclidated statement of financial posstion when the
Group becomes a party to the contractunl provisions of the instrument. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets on initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this designation ot each reporting date,

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the settiement date. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of sssets within
the period generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.




-6 -

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value of the consideration given (in the cass of an
nsset) or received (in the case of & lisbility). Except for financizl assets at fair value through peofit or
loss (FVPL), the initial measurement of financial assets includes transaction costs.

Financial assets under PAS 39, are classified as cither financial assets at FVPL, loans and receivables,
hield-to-maturity (HTM) investments or AFS financial assets. The Group's financial assets are of the
nature of loans and reccivables and AFS financinl assets. As of December 31, 2007, 2016 snd 2015,
the Group has no outstanding financial assets at FYPL and HTM investments,

Under PAS 139, financial liabilities are classified as FVPL or other financial liabilities. The Group's
financial lisbilities are of the nature of other financial linbilities. Az of December 31, 2017, 2016 and
2013, the Group has no outstanding financial liabilities ar FVPL.

Loans and Receivabies

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed ar determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active mirket. These are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and
are not classified as financial assets held for trading, designated as AFS financial assets or designated
st FWPL. This sccounting policy relates to “Cash™, "Trade and other receivables™ and “Due from
related parties™ accounts in the consolidated stalement of financial position.

Loans and receivablés are recognized initially at fair value, which normally pertuims to the hillable
amount. Afier initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at nmortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowanse for impairment losses. Amortized cost ks
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium oo acquisition and fees that are an imegrul
pari of the effective intercst rate, The amortization, if any, is included in the “Interest income”
account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The losses arsing from impairment
of loans and receivables are recognized in the profit or loss.

AFS Financial Assety

AFS financial assets are those investments which are designated as such or do not qualify io be
classified as designated as FVPL, HTM investments or loans and receivables, They are purchased
and held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes i market
conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequenily measured at fair value, The
unrealized gains and logses arlsing from the fair valuation of AFS financial assets are excluded, net of

tax, from reported earnings and are reported as a sepurate account (net of tax where applicable) in the
equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity investments classified as AFS financial assets that do not hove quoted market price in an
active market and whose f&ir value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost.

When the invesunent 15 disposed of, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in equity s
recognized in the prafit or Joss. Dividends eamed on holding AFS financial nssets are recognized
when the right of payment has been established. The losses arising from impairment of such
investments are recognized as provision for impairment losses in the profit and Joss.

This aceounting policy relates 1o the Group's investment in NOW Telecom.

Other Financial Liakiitfes

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are oot designated at FVPL, are classified as
other financial Habilities, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Group
having an obligation either to deliver cash or another fnancial asset to the holder, or to satisfv the
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obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of own equity shares. The components of issued financial instruments that contain bath
hability and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the equity component being nssigned
the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whale, the amount separately determined
is the fair value of the Hability component on the date of issus.

Lither financial liabilities are recognized a1 fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs, Afier initial measuremnent, other financial Habilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any related issue costs, discount or premium,
This sccounting policy applies primarily to the Group's *Accounts payable and accrued expenses”,
“Dhue to related parties™, “Loans payable™ and other obi igations that meet the shove definition (other
than liabilities covered by other accounting standards, such as income tax payable).

redi i
CWTs, inchuded under “Other current assets™ account in the consolidated statement of financial
position, are amount withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes. CWTs can be
utilized as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supported by certificates of
creditable tux withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation. CWTs which are
expecied to be utilized as payment for income taxes within twelve months are classified 1s current
ersel. C'WTs are stated at NRV.

Value-dded Tax (VAT]
Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of WAT, if applicable,

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services {output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on fom
purchases of goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated
staternent of financial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input
VAT) exceeds VAT from sales of goods andlor services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an
asset in the consolidaled statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

Vi

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an arderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement iz
based on the presumption that the transaction o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or tighiliry,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible 1o by the Group,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the usset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best intercst.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available 1o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable HpLts
and minimizing the use of unobservahle inputs.




All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
sialements. are categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

¢ Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

*  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vajue
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement 18 unobservable

For assets and lisbilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial SUEEmMEnts on a recurring
hasig, the Group determines whether transfors have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
aszessing categorization (basad on the lowest level imput thar is significant to the fair valye
measuremant as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fuir value disclositres, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on

the basi of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
feerarchy as explained above.

Impairtnen I

Carried at Amartized Coxt

The Group assesses st esch reporting date whether there s objective evidence that a financial or
group of financial assets is impaired.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost
{e:g. receivables) has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured a5 the difference between the
nsset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit
|csses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate
Time value is generally not considered when the effect of discounting is not material. The carmving
amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The
wmicunt of the joss shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Ihe Group firs: assesses whether objective evidence of Impainment exists wndividsally for Anancial
dssets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are nol
individually significant. If it is determined that no ohjective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the sezet is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively
nssessed for impaimment.

Those characteristics are relovant 1o the estimation of future cash flows for group of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors” ability to pay all amounts due sccording to the contractual terms of
the assets being evaluated, Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues 10 be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If. in a subsequant pericd, the amount of the impnirment loss decreases and the decreass can be
related objectively to an event ocourring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recopnized
in the profit or loss, (o the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized
ciost ol the reversal date.



AFS Financial Aasets Carried at Cosi

If there is ohjective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity
instrument that does not have quoted price in an active market and that &s not carried at fair value
kecause its finir value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference hetween the carrying amount of the unquoted equity instrument and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
isset such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

D i of Financial A { Lighilit
Financial Aizels

A financial asset (or, where spplicable, o part of a financial asset or pant of a Group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized where:

= the rights 1o receive cash fows from the asset have expired;

o  the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an ohligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party undes a ‘pass-through’ armangement; or

+ the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and sither (&) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the usset, or () has neither tmnsferred nor
retuined substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but hus transferred control of the asset

Where the Group has transfermed its rights to receive cash flows from an assel or has entered mio o
‘pass-through’ arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the assst nof transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing inyolvement that tekes the form of o
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying ameunt of the
asset and the maximim amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of & written and/or purchased option (includmg a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, sxcept that in the
case of 4 written put option (including & cash-setiled option or similar provision) on an asset
mensured et fair value, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is limited 1o the lower of the
fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Un derecognition of @ financial asset in s entivety, the difference between the enmmying amount and
the sum of {n) the consideration received {including any new assct obtained Jess any new linbility
assumed) and (b) any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognized dircatly in equity is recognized
in the profit or loss.

Financiol Lighiliries

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or cancelled
ar has expired. 'Where an existing financial liability is replaced by anather from the same lender an
sihstantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantinlly modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of &
new liahility, and the difference in the respective carying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsgiting Finangial lnstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct and the net amount is reporied in the consolidated
staternent of financial position if, and only if, there is a curmemtly enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention i setile on & net basis, or 10 reglize the usset and sctile
the Tiability simultanecusly. The Group assesses that it hus a currently enforceable right of oflset if
the right is not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of
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business, evenl of default, and event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Group and all of the
COUNETHArTias.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant mfluence. Significant influence is the
power o participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The contiderations made in determining significant influcnce are
gimilar to those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.,

The Group's investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity methed, the investment in an associate is initially recognized a2 cost. The carrying
arneunt of the mvestment is adjusted 1o recognize changes in the Group’s share of ned assets of the
associule since the ncguisition date. Goodwill relating to the associste or s included in the carrying
ameunt of the investment and is neither amortized oor individually tested for impaimment

The aggregate of the Group”s share of profit or loss of an associate {s shown on the face of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income outside operating profit and represents profit or foss
afier tax. 'When the Group's share of losses exceeds the Group's interest in an equity-gocounted
investee, the carrying amount of the investment, including any long-term interects that form part
thereaf, is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group have an obligation or have made payments on behalf of the investee. The consolidated
Financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group, When
nocessary, sdjustments are made fo bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary 1o recogniee an
impairment loss on it investment in its associate. At cach reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is objective evidence that the mvestment in the associate is impaired. If there ts such
evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment &s the difference between the recoveruble
amount of the associate and its carrying value, then recognizes the boss as “Equity in net eamings of
a0 mssociale™ n profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associste, the Group measures and recognizes any retained
mvestment at its falr value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significent influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from

disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

and
Property and equipment are stated gt cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any, The initinl cost of property and equipment consists of parchase price;
including import duties, nonrefundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Such cost includss the cost of
replacing part of such property and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

Diepreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the property and
equipment as follows:

Transportation equipment
Office equipment
Frrmiture and fixtures

ur-..rl.n:'-::
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their usefisl lives of five (5) years or the term of the
lense, whichever is shorter,

The residuel values, usefil lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
perieds and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefit
from items of property and equipment.

Fully depreciated assets are mainmined in the accounts until these are no longer in use. When asscts
are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost, relsted accumulated deprecintion and any allowance for
impairment losses are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss {calculnted as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is credited to or
charged against current operations.

L
Computer software is initially recognized at cost, Following initial recognition, the computer
software is carried ot cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment in value.

The computer software 1s amortized on & straight-line basis over it estimated useful economic life of
three {3) years and is assessad for impairment whencver there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortization commences when the computer software is available for uge

The amortization period and the amortization method for the compuier software are reviewed ar each
financial year end. Changes in the estimated useful life is accounted far by changing the amortization
period or method, as appropriste, and treatsd & changes in sccounting estimates,

The net book value of Computer softwars is recognized as part of “Other noncurrent assets” gecount
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The net book value of Computer software as of
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted 1o P2 065, P50.702 and B186,607, respectively, The
amortization expense is recognized in “Depreciation and amortization™ acoount in the consolidated
staternent of income.

Impaj Lo

Sroperty and Equipwmert and Other Nonfinancial Assety

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that its property and
equipment &nd other nonfinancial assets may be impaired when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable, 1f any such indication exisis or when annual
impatrment testing for wn asset s required, the Group mekes an estimate of the asset's recovernhle
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. Where the carrying

tr their estimated recovernble amount, In mssessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assescments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, Impairment losses of continuing
eperations are recognized in the conselidated statement of comprehensive income in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired nonfinancial asset,

An ussessmient is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 1f such indication exists,
the recovernble amount s estimated, A previously recognized tmpairment loss is reversed only if
there has been & change in the estimates used to determine the ssot’s recoversble amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot excesd the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss baen recognized for the asset in prios
years. Such reversal is recognized in the profit or loss,

LU
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investment in Associate

Adfter the application of the equity methiod, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize
any additional impairment loss with respect to the Group's investment in associate, The Group
determines ot each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being the
difference between the recoverable amount of the investment |n associate and the carrying cost and
recogrizes the amount as a reduction of the “Equity in net camings of nn associate™ account m the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

When the Group's share of losses exceeds the Group's interest in an associate, the carrying amount of
the investment, including long-term interests that form part thereof, is reduced 1o zero, and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except 1o the extent that the Group have an obligation or
have made payments on behalf of the nvestee.

Lommizn Stock

The Group has issued capital stocks that arc classified as equity. Incremental costy directly attributable
o the issuance of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds. The excess
of proceeds from issuance of share over the par value are credited to share premirm,

Deficit

The amount included in deficit includes profits and losses attributable to the Group’s stockholders
nnd reduced by dividends. Dividends are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when
they are approved by the Group's stockholders, Dividends for the year that are npproved sfter the
reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting date. Deficit may slso include effect of
changes in accounting policy as may be required by the standard's transitional provisions.

o I :
Deposit for future stock subscription represents the amount received that will be applied &5 payment
m exchange for a fixed number of the Group's own equity instruments. It is classified as an equity
item if there is sufficient unissued authorized capital stock, or if in case the unissued authorized
capital stock is insufficient to cover the amount of deposit, (a) the BOD and stockhalders have
approved a proposed increase in suthorized capital stock for which a deposit was recoived, and () the
proposed increase was fled with tha SEC as of financial reporting date; otherwise, the deposit is
classified us 4 liahility.

itio
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow o the
Group and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is mensured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
socount contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty, The Group assesses its
Tevenue srmangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of Goody

Sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed 10 the buyers and the amount of revenue cin be measured reliably. Net sales is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received, excluding sales taxes, discounts, returns and rebates, if
any. Revenues that falls in this category includes sales of softwars licenses. Sales of goods are
included under “Sales™ in the consolidated stutement of comprehensive income.
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Service, Marketing. Management and Consultancy Fees

Fees are recognized when the related services have bean rendered. Revenues that falls in this
cutegory include IT Manpower and Resource Augmentation, and Broadband services, Services,
marketing, management and consultancy fees are included under “Servics fees™ in the consolidated
statemnent of comprehensive income,

fmteresr
Interest income 1s recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method.

Cost end Expenses

Cost und expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than
thisse relating to distributions 1o equity participants. Cost and expenses tire recomnized when the
services sre used or the expenses are incurred,

Cost of Safes
Cost of sales is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of awnership of the goods have
passed to the buyer upon delivery. This pertains to the cost of software licenses sold.

Catt of Services
Lost of services are direct costs incurred in relation to service revenues. This mainly consists of
outside services and advertising and promaotions,

Cieneral and Administrative Expenses

Lienaral and ndministrative expenses consist of expenses incurred in the direction and general
administration of day-to-day operation of the Group and are genernlly recognized when the services
are used or the expenses arige,

laxeg

Citrreni Tax

Current tax labilitics for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected o be paid
to the tax authority, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that huve been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferrad Tax
Dreferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the reporting dane
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes,

Dieferred income tax linbilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred ineome
tax assets are recognized for all deductible jemporary differences and carry forward benefits of
unused tax credits in the form of net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and minimum eorporate
ingome tax (MUTT) to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available sgainst which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilized,

The carrying smount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed ot cach reporting date and reduced 1o
the extent that it is no longer probabie that sufficicat taxable profit will be uvailable to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probuble that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred income tax assety to be recovered. Deferred income tax gssets
and liabilities are measured at the 1ax rates that are expected 1o apply 1o the period when the asset s
realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted as of the reporting date.



o s

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to offset current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income
taxes relate o the sume taxable entity mnd the same taxation authaority.

Leases

The determination of whether an Arangement &, or containg, o lease is based on the substance of the
arrangemdent at inception date and involves as assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arangement
|!+E|'=PEI1-I|ﬂ1tDn'ﬂ'l-:l.lﬂ:ufﬂﬁmiﬁr-lﬂﬂtﬂl’ﬂsﬂtsnrllrtﬂmng:mmtmmwysnﬁﬂltmm the asset.

Uperating Leaves

Ciperating leases represent those leases under which substantially all the risks and rewards: of owngrship
of the leased assets remain with the lessor, Lease payments under an operating Jease are recognized ux
an expense on straight-line bases over the terms of the lease,

Finance Leate Commitments - Ciroug as Lesves

Finance leases which transfer (o the Group substantially afl the risks and benefits incidental 1o
owmership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fuir value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lzase pnyments. Lease pavments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liahility s0 as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as finance costs in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset, However, if there is no reasenable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the ledse term, the asset is depreciated bver
the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the Jease term.

Foreign Currency Jranslations

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the exchange rate prevailing of the date of the
iransaction. Monetary assets and Eabilities denominated in foretgn currencies are restated using the
rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange differences betwesn rate at
transaction date and rate at settlement date or financial statement date e credited 1o or charged

against current operations.

The Group determines the functional currency for each entity within the Group snd items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional eurrency. For subsidiary
whose functional currency is different from the presentalion currency, the Group translates the rosylts
of their operations and financial position into the presentation currency. As at the financial reporting
date, the assets and Iill:-ﬂiﬁ::{pmuﬁ (including comparatives) are translated fnto the presentation
currency al the closing rute of exchange prevailing at the financial reporting dare while the capital
stock and other equity balances are translated at historical rates of exchange. The income and
expenses for the profit or loss presented (including comparatives) are translated ar the exchinge rates
at the dates of the transactions, where determinable, or at the weighted average rate of exchanpe
during the reporting period. The exchange differences arising on the translation to the presentation
currency are recognized as a separate component of equity under the “Cumulative translation
adjustment™ account in the comsolidated statement of financial position,

The functional currency of the Giroup’s subsidiaries is Philippine Peso, excepd for ISIT which is US
dollar,

Provisions

Provisions, if any, are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) sz a
resiit of a past event, it és probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,




If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are made by discounting the expectad
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney
and, where appropriate, the risks specific 1o the liability. Where discounting is used, the increace in
the provision due to the passage of ime is recognized as an faterest expense,

Where the Group expects some o all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursemen is
recognized as a separate asset hut only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The EXpEnSE
relsting to any provision is presented in profit or loss, net of any reimbursement,

1 1
Contingent Habilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
uniess the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying coonomic benefits is remote. Contingent
assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed in the notes 1o
comsolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefii s probabile,

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income for the year attributable 1o common stockbolders by the
weighted average fumber of comman shares issued and ousstanding during the vear adjusted for any
subsequent stock dividends declared Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income for the year by
the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year nfier giving
elfect to assumed conversion of potential common ghares,

Segment Reporting
For management purposes, the Groop’s opernting segments are organized and managed separately
acearding to the nature of the services offered.

The Group's identified Cperating segments are consistent with the seEments reporied o the BOD,
which is the Group's chief operating decision maker. Financial information on the operating
s2gmenis are presented in Note |8,

£ :
Events after the financial reporting date that provide additional information abogt the Group's
financial position at the financial reporting date (adjusting events) are reflectad in the consolidated
financial strements. Events afier the financial Teporting date that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consalidated financial statements,

Future ' ick

Pﬁmmmu issued but not yet ¢ffective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
dires not expect that the fisture adoption of the said pronouncements to have 4 significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements, The Giroup intends to adopt the following pronouncements when
they hecome effective.

Effective beginning on or giter Jamuary |, 2018

*  Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-bared Payment, Classificarion and Measurement of Share-
bated Pagymem Trancactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
nmicasurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the ¢lassification of &
share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and
the nccounting where a modification 1o the terms and conditions of a share-based paymerit
transaction changes its classification from cash settled tn equity settled,




The Group is assessing the potential effect of the amendments on jis consolidated financial
statements,

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Finaneial Insiruments, with
PERS 4

The overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available 1o gn entity if it has no
previously applied PFRS 9,

The amendments are not applicable to the Group since none of the entities within the Group have
activities that are predominantly connected with insurance nr g InSurance conlracts,

PFRS 13, Revenue from Contracis with Customers

The new revenue standard |s applicable to all entities and will supersede all eurrent revenue
recognition requirements under PFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modifjed
retrospective application is required for annyal periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014,
Early adoption is permitted. The Group plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective
date using the full retrospective method.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of PFRS 15

PFRS 9, Financial dnstrumensy

compulsory, For hedge accountng, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with
some limited exceptions,

LT
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Investments in unquoted equity shares currently carried at cost under PAS 39 are intended o he
held for the foreseeable future. As such, the Group intends 1o apply the option to present fair
value changes for these investments in OCI. The Group is in the process of determining how 1o
measure the fair value of these unquoted investments.

The Giroup is in the process of final IZing its assessment on the impact of the adoption of this
standard once it becomes effective

Amendments 1o PAS 28, Mﬂnﬂrwm Associate or Joint Venture af Fair Falyg
(Part of Annual fmprovements 1o PFRSy 2014 - 2016 Cyele)

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifving
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-hy-investment busis, 1o measyre its

that i an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint
venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect 10
retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture o
the investment entity associste's or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries, This clection is made
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which
(a) the investment entity associate or joint venture iz initially recognized; (b) the ussocinte or Joint
venture becomes an investment entity; and (¢} the investment enlity associale or joint venture first

The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with carlier application permitted
Amendments o PAS 40, fimvestment Property - Tranyfers of Investmens Propert)

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of nvestment property. The amendments state that 5
change in use occurs when the Property meets, or ceases 10 meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidente of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of & property does not provide evidence of o change in use. The amendments should
be upplied prospectively to changes in use that oceur on or after the beginning of the gnnusl
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendmente. Retrospective application s
only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight,

Since the Growp's current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, the Group does not
expect any effect on its consolidated financial statements upen adoption ef these smendments.

on which an entity initially recognizes tha ROfimonetary asset or nor-monetary linbility arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the

A entily may apply the interpretation prospectively 1o all assets, expenses and income in ity
seope that are initially recognized on or after the beginining of the reporting period in which the
cniity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as
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comparative information in the financial statements of the reporting period in which the emtiry
first applies the interpretation,

Since the Group's current practice is in ling with the clarifications i55tied, the Group does no
expect any effect on jts consolidated finanejg] statements upon adoption of this Inerpretation

Effective beginning an ar afler Jamuary |, 2019

entity shall apply these amendments for annyg} reparting periods beginning on or after
January |, 2019 Earlier application iz permitied,

* PFRS 16, Loases

PFRS 16 sets ouy the principles fior the recognition, MERErement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and Tequires lessees 1o secount for all leases under a single on-balance sheet maodel similnr
W the secounting for finanee leases under pAS 17, Leases. The standard Includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees - leages of "low-valup® asgers (e-g., personal Computers} and short-torm
leases (i, leases with a lease term of 12 menths of less). At the tommencement date of 5 lease,
& lessee will recognize 2 liability to make Jepse payments (i.e, the lease tiability) and an asssy

Lessecs will be alzo required 1o remeasure the lease liability upon the oesurrence of cerfain events
le.g. a change in m:hunmanhnge Et:ﬁlmrtimpa}munﬁrﬂurtingﬁﬁm B change i ay
index or rate usad 1o determine those Payments). The lessae wil| generally recognize the &moimt
of the remeasurement of the lease linbility &s an adjustment 1 the right-of-use asget

Lessor feeounting under PFRS 16 i substantiafly unchanged from today*s BCCounting under PAS
17 Lessors will continus o classify all leases ustng the same classiffcatiog principle as in PAS
|7 and distinguish berween W0 types of leases: Operating and finance legses

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and hummmﬂnmnnmuidetfmmﬂunund:rFAE 17
Early application i permitted, but not before gn entity applies PFRS §5. A lessee can choose 10
apply the standard using either g fiyl) Tetrospective or g modified retrospective approach. The
standard's transition Provisions permit certain relicfs,

The Group is Currently assessing the inpact of adopting PFRS 14,
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* Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertaimy over Income Far Freatmemny

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tas treatmenis involye
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12 und docs not 2pply to taxes or levies outside e
scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
sssociated with uncertain tax treatments,

The interpretation specifically addresses the fellowing:

*  How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tBx losses, unused
credits and tax rafes
*  How an entity considers changes in facts and chreumstances

An entity must determine whether 1o consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain "X treatments. The approach that beter predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty should be followed.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this interpretation.

Defirred eifectivity

* Amendments tc PFRS 10 mnd PAS 28, Sals ov Contribution af Assets between an Investor gnd
its Aszociate or Jolnt Verture

3

Judgments

[n the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made Judgments, apan
from those involving estimation, which have the maost significant effect on the amounts recognized i
the consolidated financial Flatements,
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*  The varishility in the range of reasonable fair value measurements 15 et significant for that
instrument; or

*  The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and
used when measuring fair value.

Based on management's judgment, the computed recoverable amount of the investment in NOW
Telecom, Ine. is not a reliable measurement of fair value since there iz a significant variability in the
range of reasonable fuir value measurements. Accordingly, the Group is precluded from measuring
the investment in NOW Tolecom, Inc. at fair value, Furthermore, even if the range of reasonable fuir
value measurements is wide, none of these measurements result in the impairment of the investment,

Determination of Significant Influence over an Associate

The Group considers its 50% equity interest in Softweb Consulting, Inc. {Softweb) as investment in
an associate, Critical judgment was exercised 1o assess the facts and cireomstances indicating the
elements of control or level of influence of the Group over Softweb. The Group has two (2)
representatives oul of the five (5} members of the board, Thus, the Group has determined that it has
significant influence, but no control nor joint control, over the financial and operating policy
decisions over Softweb,

Chperating Leases - Group as Lesses

The Group has entered commercial property leases on its offices. Based on an evaluation of the 18rms
and conditions of the lease agreements, there will be no transfer of ownership of assets 1o the Group
at the end of the lense term. The Group has determined that all significant risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors. Thus the leases are classificd as operating leases,

Finance Lease Commitments - Group as Lessee

I'he Group has entered into leases of transportation equipment. The Group hes determined that thess
lease arrangements (i.¢. lease term is for the major part of the economic usefal life of the asset) are
finance leases since the significant risks and rewards of owrership related to these properties are
tramsferred to the Group from the date of the lease agreement.

Estimaigs
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty ar the

stetement of financial position date that have a significant risk causing material adjustments to the
carrying amounts of the assets and [iabilities within the next financial years are discussed befow.

Recoverability of Inmvestment in NOW Telecom, Ine.

The Group assesses at ench reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment
i NOW Telecom is impaired, The Group has determined that NOW Telecom®s continuing losses
aver the past several years is an objective evidence that the investment may no longer be recoverable

When there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group is required to determine the recoverahle
amount of the investment, which is the sum of the (i) market value of comparable radio frequencies
and the (1) present value of etimated future cash flows that can be generated by frequencies with no
comparable market value.

| Market value of comparable radio frequencies

Market value of comparable frequencies is the cstimated market value of the radio frequencies
owned by NOW Telecom based on the implied price per MHzPop of the most recent ermiparahle
market transaction involving buy-outs of entitics with radio frequencies.
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1. Present value of extimated future cash fleves generated by radiy frequencies with no comparable
market value

The key assumptions used by the Group in determining the present value of estirnated future cash
flows generated by frequencies with no comparable market value are as follows:

. Discount rate
The discount rate is based on NOW Corporation’s weighted average cost of capital, This rate
i# further adjusted to reflect the market assessmeni of any risk for which future estimares of
cash flows have not been adjusted.

*  Long-rerm growth rate
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a determined constant growth
rate o arrive at the terminal valye,

*  Revenus growh vare
Revenue for the five-year period are forecasted using & growth rate which is within the
industry outlook,

Mo impairment loss on the imvestment in NOW Telecom was recogruzed in 2017, 2016 and 20 ¢
The carrying amount of the investment in NOW Telecom amounted to Pl 289,278 350 as of
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 (see Note &),

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired, To determine whether there is cbjective evidence of impairment. the Group
considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the
debtor and default or significant delay in payments,

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of futiure cash Aows are
estimated hased on age and status of the fnancial asset, &5 well as on historical loss experience,
Allowanee for impairment loss s provided when management believes that the balunce cannot be
collected or realized after exhausting all efforts and courses of action, The Group recognized
provisien on impairment loss on receivables and advances to affilistes amoonting to 8] 940,
P5,685,685, and £4,031,832 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Notes 4, 6 and 14),

The aggregate carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, due from related parties and advances
lo affiliates amounted to P314,989,054, P238,651,640 and P185 331,501 as of December 3] L2017,
2016 and 2015, respectively (see Notes 4. 6 and 9}

Estimaring Useful Lives of Praperty and Eguipment, and Computer Software
T'he Group estimutes the useful lives of significant parts of property and equipment basad on the
period over which the aesets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of

previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercinl shsolescence and legal or
other limits on the use of the assets. In addition, the Group's estimation of the usefisl [fves of
property and equipment is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical
evaluation and experience with similar assets, It Is possible, however, that firture results of operations
could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned
ebove. The amousts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in
these factors and circumstances, Depreciation and amortization charged 1o operaticns amounted (o
B4,411.001, P2.214,569 and #3 567,678 for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015,

LT
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respectively (see Notes 7 and 14). The aggregate net book valyes of property and equipment and
computer software amounted 1o P8,721,428, 6674382 and 3,437,114 as of December 31, 201 T,
2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 7).

Extimating fmpairment o Property and Equipment, Computer Software and Credisable

Withholding Taxes (CWTy)
The Group assesses impairment on kssets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thar
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, The factors that the Group considers
unportant which could trigger an impairment review include the following;

*  Significant underperformance relagive 0 expecied historical or projected future operating
resoles;

*  Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the stradeyy for overall
business; and

*  Significant negative mdusiry or economic trends.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recaverabie
amount. The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value Jess costs o sell and
value in use. The fuir value Jess costs to sell s the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset {n an
arm’s length transaction while valus in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asser and from its disposal at the end of its wseful life
Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets o, if it is not possible, for the cash-
gencrating unit to which the asset belongs, For impairment foss on specific assets, the estimated
recavershle smount represents the net fair value less costs to sell.

continued use of the assets, the Group is required to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect the consolidated financial statements. The Group recorded provision for tmpairment
on CWTs of nil in 2017 and 2016 and P158,767 in 2015 (see Note 5). The aggregare CAITYING values
of praperty and tquipment, computer software and CWTs amounted to P14,409,124, P10,485 148
and F7,339,942 as of December 31 20] 7.2016 and 2015 respectively (see Notes 2, § and 7)

Extimating Realizability of Deferred Income Tax dssets

The Group reviews the carmying amounts of deferred income tax assels at each reporting date and
reduces the mmounts 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow ull or part of the deferred COMmE fax assets 1o be utilized. However, there is no
assurance that the Group will generste sufficient taxable profit o allow all or part of its deferred
Ifome tax assets to be utilizad.

The Group did not recognize deferred Icome tax assefs on temporary differences and carryforward
bencfits of unused NOLCO, unused tax credits from excess MCIT, allowance for impairment on tmde
and other receivables and others amounting 1o P15,037,918, #30,227.110 and P74,849,547 a5 of
December 31, 2007, 2016 snd 2015, respectively (see Note 15). The Group believes that it is not
probable that safficient taxable profit will be available to-allow all or part of the deferred income tay
assets 1o be utilized,




Trade and Other Receivables
2017 2016 L0015
Trade receiviables:

Belated parties (Nole ) ]| 46,628 456 PLO], 220311 PE4,063 924
Third parties 31,527,393 24,581 615 27 446304

Crhiers (Mote ) 1,620,367 3,566,589 342 #0423
IBLT76. 116 129368 815 930 170
Less allowance for impairment lossey I.!_,!JI,HI 13,836 447 11,150,747
RI6T7,943 234 F115532 368 PRI TER 408

Trade and nontrade receivables from third parties are noninterest-

30 to 60 days term,

Trade recoivables from related parties are unsecured, Roninterest-bearing and are 1o be settled upon

demand,

Cithers include advances o officers and personne

Animation, Inc. (Holy Cow) (see Note 9),

bearing and are generally on

|, and outstanding loan receivable from Holy Cow

Movement in allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables are as follows:

inz 2016 L
Balance a beginning of vear P13,836,447 ®13,150, 762 L B R
Provisions for the year (Note 143 1,940 683,685 4,033,832
Recovery of previousky recognized
doubtful secounts {5495) = -
Balance ut end of year F13.K32 807 Bl3836,447 P13, 150,762
Other Current Assets
imy 6 201
Frepayments F36,284,767 F1417471 Pla243]
CWT - net T.H%0 3,810,966 1,902 k2%
Input VAT - net 2882411 285 426 -
Deferred input VAT 1.735 627 - =
hhers TT4.520 145,350 112,813
B47,364,921 P7.659213 Pd | TH001

Prepayments includes deferred transaction costs amounting 1o ®10,763 277 and B3 360,000 as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, in connection with the Group®s planned offering of
redeemable, convertible, non-participating end non-voling Peso-denominated preferred shares. As of
April 9, 2018, the Group is in the process of securing the approval of the Philippine SEC and PSE of
the said transaction (see Noje 12}, Tt also includes the prepayments made by the Parent Company in
purchasing IBM Licenses rolated to instalistion of email system for the Supreme Court of the
Fhilippines smounting 1o P23,638.466.

Deferred input VAT is recognized for the unpaid services rendered to the Parent Company,

CWT iz net of allowance for impairment losses amounting to F706.270 as of December 3 1. 2017,
2016 and 201 5,

ATy
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Movements in allowance for impairment foss on CWT are 2 fallows:

o1y 2016 18
Balance at veginning of yaur Fo6,270 FI06.27 P47 503
Provisions for the ofe [4) = - 158,767
Balance at end of year P'.I'I-EE_'.I'I:I PT06 270 FTO6,270

Imvestments and Advances
27 2016 2015
AFS financial nsas) FIJH,I'."E.J!U F],E#E'.ETIJ&!} PL2E927% 350
Advances 1o affilinres {Mote 9) 13502 R18 23 &1& 28591 81
#1,511,871,168 PILI2ETL 168 P1317871 168

AFE Financial Asser

The Group has an investment in NOW Telecom clussified as AFS financial agger

On April 28, 20046, the Group entered into & MOA with NOW Telecom and five (5) controlling
stockholders of NOW Telecom namely, Top Mega Enterprise, Lid, Joyeelink Holdings, Lid GHI,
Emerald Investment, Inc., Food Camp Industries and Merketing, Inc. {the five companies are
collectively referred to hereafter as NOW Telecom stockholders) to swap or exchange shares of stock.

Under the MOA, the Parent Company shall issue its shares in exchange for interest in NOW Telecom.
The agreed upon swap of shares was subject (o cerain conditions, including nocessary corporite and

P1,289,278.350, or effectively, at price of B485.32 per NOW Telecom share.

The Parent Company applied for an increase in its authorized capital stock to accommodare the
loregoing transaction (see Note 12).
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As of December 31, 2017, 2015 and 2013, the Group’s investment in NOW Telecom amounied fo
Pl 289,278,350 and po impairment was recognized for the vears then ended,

Lrvestment in an Assoclale and Advancer to Affiiiates
. Saftwed Consulting, Inc.

Um December 20, 2010, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with Softweb for an
investment amouniing to 6,000,000, representing a 50% interest in Soflweb,

Softweb specializes in Lomus eonsulting and training services ps well es comprehensive Doming
warking solutions. As an [BM partner, Softweb offers the full range of IBM services and
licensed products integrated in its own list of business solutions, software development and
traiming,

As of December 31 + 2017, 2016 and 20] 5, the Group's share in losses of Softweb have already
exceeded the cost of investment, The Group only recopnizes the loss 1o the extent of the cost of
investment. Accordingly, the carrying amount of investment in Softweb as of

Drecember31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 is nil, The Group does not have any begal or constructive
obligation to make payments on behalf of Softweh,

The unrecognized share in net joss as of December 31,2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted 1o
nil, #7,077,304 snd P7,265,533, respectively,

As of December 31, 2015, the Group has advances to Sofiweb amounting to 85,000,000, This
pertains to depasit for future stock subscription in Softweb pending the increase in jts authorized
In 2016, the Group recognized provision for impairment loss on its advanees to Softweb
amounting to #5,000,000 (zee Notes © and 14,

b Thumbmab Phifippines, Ine, and Holy Cow Anrimation, ne

The Group entered inta agresments with Thumbmob and Holy Cow for the subscription of
Thumbmob and Holy Cow shares. Holy Cow is & full serviee animation studio that produces 20,

These are currently recorded under “Advances to affilistes™ in the consolidated sttement of
financial position pending the increase in the authorized capital stock of the investes companies,
The applications for the increase in authorized capital stock are mot yet filed with the Philippine
SEC as of April 6, 2018 (see Note 9.
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" Property and Equipment

2017
Leasehald Transportaiion CHTice Furniturs
!IMIE Blm !ﬂﬂuﬂt mdm Total
Cois
Balances gy Legimning nf
year P4 937 44 P15 860,257 FL6,200,844 P393 ka5 PIRA0) 455
Additinag 128,750 19,297 = & T

Balances ut ead of vear 4,937 448 15,989,627 11,531,141 1,393 KRN 44851 807
Aecumulnted depreciatinn

and smartzntion:
Balnnces at beginning of
Yesr 4445217 15,091,753 10,545 048 1,188 857 H,T8.77%
Depreciation sny
umortizniion for the
rear (Mote (4] 435230 146,071 A T1L.041 L3 4381 104
Balamces uf end of oEg
Net ook vilus 904 FTAT4, 190 129,109 FH, 711 462
2014
Leasehold  Trengpoetstion Ciffice Fitriiturs
_Improvemernits Equipenens Equipment ingd Fiyhores Total
Cmat;
Balgnces m beginnimg af
Year P40 T daE BLE 16 4] P1E 240,344 1393 ki FEL 941,600
Additsana = 650,354 4,761,479 = SA50837
Aalances af end nfE 4!931'“-5 13,560 277 16,201 844 1,393 RER 38343 444
Accumidnied deprecisiian and
s rtizatanm:
Balmnces a beginning of
YEir 1044 498 4793001 9863 475 &7 739 29.a%, 11
Depeeciation wnd
amartization far the yeur
{Mote 14) 500,722 396, 752 | 042 6 IO, 11E 2,087 (164
Balences at end of 753 I, 195857 77T

er ] H£ 5,806 PI98.03 § P61 4 08

2015
Lessehald Trarspariacion (iFige Furmitiie
Improvements  Eguipment  Equipment ind Fianies Tl
Cioay:
Balances at beginning of
yoar Ba937 444 F1E 69,914 P17 200, 287 0,393 883 12,702 540
Additipny S - 239,017 - 139,078
Balances ul end of 4037445 13,169,819 1] 65 1,393,851 33.94) g1R
Accarmulited depeaciation s ==
Imortimtisn:
Belances af begmning of
year EETE Ry 12206, 514 9,620,427 979,611 35,280,337
Dreprecintiog and
amortiztion for the yenr
(Mole 14} 00723 2.te4as 243 449 108,118 1,440,774
Ealunces at end of year 3,944 499 14,795 60| !'.IE'.EJ_B-'?E LOXT 719 LTINS
Mot book vabus Palbin P374 518 #1.576.489 HEEH? B, 250 407
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Cost of fully depreciated agzets still in use amounted 1o BI7.836,276, P17,134.057 and
P16,757,0390 a5 of December 31,2017, 2016 and 201 5, respactively,

B Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

017 2014 2015
Trade payabigs:
Third parties P59.917,133 F21,510,846 P32 363 004
Ralated parties (Mote 2) 16,396,954 | B, 808, 706 15,112,678
Accrued expenses:
Inierest (Mite # S9.903 284 59803 <55 983 588
Drihers 11,563,299 8432085 B.BZRII7
Deferred output VAT 14,954,494 9,265,728 6,055,944
Withholding tax payabie 1,331,793 Ta1,643 Bfid_330

FI64,067.250 P119.642 574 #133,927 061

Trade payables from third parties are noninterest-bearing and are generally on 30 to 60 drys’ f2rm,
Trade and nontrade payables from related partics are unsecured, nomintersst-bearing and are 1o he
settled upon demand,

Related Party Transsctions

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, contral or
are controlled by or under common control with the Group, including holding companies, subsidiaries
nnd fellow subsidiaries, are rolaied parties of the Group. Associages and indivichusls owning, directly
or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence oyer
the emterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers of the Group and clise
members of the family of these individuals, and companies associated with these individuals alsg
constitute related parties, [n considering each possible refged entity relationship, sttention is direcied
i the substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form

Liroup entered into tmnsactions with related parties, principally consisting of the following

The Paremt Company grants interest-free advances o NOW Telecam for working capital and
administrative requirements, Amounts owed by NOW Telecom as of December 31, 201 7, 2016
and 201 5 amounted to P63,745,439, PS1,346,501 and B3 1,408,455, respectively

On Jume 25, 2010, both parties agreed to extend the maturity of the loan from August 10, 2010 o

foan up to August 30, 2015, with the Interest rate further reduced tm 3% Per annum starting
lanuary 1, 2013. On August 31, 2015, both parties agreed 10 extend the maturity of the loan 10
five (5) years ending August 30, 2020, Interest was retained at 3% per annum, [nterest income
amaunted to P467,033 in 2017, 2016 and 2015 reflected as part of “Cithers" in revenue As of
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December 11, 2017, 2018 and 2015, amounts owed by IBL, including interest. amounted
Bl7497.744 B2 7,030,711 and Pl6,563,678, respectively, IBT s an entity under common
conitral,

As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 the Group has outstanding liabilities to Emerald
Investment, Inc. (EIT) mmounting to #2,902,918 which arose from the Group’s sub-lease
Agreement with EIT that ended in 2011

Amounts owed by EIl a5 of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 i P40 848,

On January 1, 2013, the Parent Company rencwed jts Service agreement with KPSC fr & pericid
of four (4) years heginningjmun}l 12013 to December 31, 2016, On lanuary 3, 2017, the
Parent Compuny renewed ity service agreement with KPSe for 2 period of five (3] years

The Group’s administrative and management fusctions, including key mansgement personnel,
are being handled by persanni! of KPS

Due to related parties include interest bearing advances from Velarde, Inc. for working capital
und imvestment requirements. Imierest rate for these loans is ot 18.0% per armum or 1 5% pet
month,

On January 22, 2015, Velarde, lnc. sgreed 10 convent its advances imounting (o # 200,000,000
inio equity interest in the Parent Company for 200,000,000 common shares with a par value of
Pl It was further agreed that the remaining balances and subsequent advances from Velarnde,
fnc. shall no longer be subject t0 interest and shall be due on demand (see Nogs 123,

2016 and 201 5.

On April 29, 2016, the Parent Company's BOD approved the cgnversion into equity of the
sdvances from Velarde, Ing. amounting to 264,000,000 3 tanversion price of P1.22 per share
vomputed on the volume-weighted average price of the Parent Company's shares for g 3-clay
trading period ended April 14, 2016, On June 2, 2018, the stockholders of the Paren Company

approved the said increase in the Parent Company's suthorized capitnl stock.
Un June 20, 2016, ndditional sdvances were incurred from Velarde Ine., through the [atter's

payment of the loans payable tw bank on behalf of the Parent Company BRMCUNting 1o
$44,300,000 (see Note 11),

ANVREALI Ry




w G-

Cuitstanding accrued interest presented as part of the “Accouns payable and socmyed expensgs™
amaoutited o B59,903 586 as of December 31,2017, 2016 and 2015 (see Note 4),

Due 1o Velarde, Ing, presented as part of “Due 10 related parties™ amounied o B14],326 866
P6B.322.816 and P223 458,035 ay of December 3 12017, 2016 and 2015, respectively

The Group charges Velarde, Inc. management fees for the adminisirntion and operations of te
companies. Payments are dise within five (5) days upon receipt of myvoiee. Management feeg
charged 1o Velarde, Inc. amounted 1o B240,000 in 201 7, 2016 and 701 5 reflected as part of

The Group has outstanding trade receivahias from Velarde, Inc. amountng to #1680, (0,
B1,440,000 and B .200,000 a5 of December 31, 2017, 2015 and 20715, respectively

The Group entersd N0 a non-interest bearing loan agreement with Poreon Electric Vehicles, Inc
(Porteon). As of December 31, 201 7, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding amount due from Porteon

On January 1, 2011, the Group entered into g sublease contract with I-College Philippines, Inc
{-College) for the period November 1, 2011 10 May 31, 2012 with a maonthly rental fee of
F77.526. The term of the lease can be renewed upon mutsal consent of bogh perties. The ms

November |, 2017 to October 31, 2020, All other terms and conditions of the sublease agreement
Rent expense incurred by the Giroup amountad {o PO30313 in 200 7, 2016 and 2015, In
connection with this, the related due to I-College amountsd to RS, 736,925, P4 806,612 and
P3.876,300 as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 207 %, Tespectively.

The Group salls IBM licenses to Softweb, uy associate. Sales of IBM license 1o Softweb
ameented (o nil, B5,412,232 snd B1 2,088,054 in 2017, 2016 and 2015.

The Group entered i Agreements with Thumbmob, Holy Cow and Softweb for the submcription
of their respective shares. Please see Note § for detailed discussion,

Infrastrichore bu.r.ru'-qumdm:him! Fervices
In January 2015, the Pamlﬂnmpu:}r:nmrgd Into two (2) separate One-year service agreemenis

Telecom whereas the Company wil] provide project MANAECMENT servioes, design and
; i ngupm]ﬂnujqrmtwmthuhfnrnmw

total of nine (9} and ten {10} hubs werg completed for GHT and Newsnet, respectively gy of
December 31, 2017 Service revenue related 1o infrastructime build-up recognized in 2007, 2015
and 2015 amounted to Hi.ﬂﬂﬂ.ﬂﬂﬂ. 30,000,000 and F20.000,000,




+ 30
and Newsney Service revenue Tecagnized in 2017 and 2014 amounted to PEO0. 00 and B 50,000
each for GHT and Newsnet

The Group provided teehnical service related with Rohill TetraNode System to NOW Telecom in
2016 which the Group recognized & service revenue amounting to #7.300,000

2017 2016 2015
GHT R4 032 048 PRESM.000 B 1,200,000
Neéwsnet 33,441,589 28,504 000 L1, 200,000
NOW Telecom [3.102 508 8,400,000 -

Value-added servicey VAS)

In 2015, the Parent Company entered into thres (3} separate agreements with NOW Telecom,
GOHT and Newsnet (the Parties), wherein the Partjes mutually agreed to collsborate angd
infereonnect their respective networks in order for the Parent Company 1o provide VAS 1o the
public such as cloud hesting services. vinual privage network, multimedia content and program
services, online game services, cloud-based miultimedia conferencing services, web hosting and
clovd-based mail and messAging services (VAS contragts),

On December 5, 2016, the Parties agreed to amend Chapter § of their VAS contracts to add
praviston on revenue sharing from the broadhang revenue.

On December 23, 2016, the Parties further agreed o amend therr VAS contracts 1o inchade
additional fees from actua) usage of bandwidth and other provision on charging 1o the Parent
Company on & cost-plys mArgin arrangement. Total cost of deta services charged 1o cost of
services amounted to P3,121,774 and P2 476.627 in 2017 and 2014, respectively,

As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding amounts dye from GHT amountad 1o
P8.588.889, Ps, | 77,301 and B5,000,1 86, respactively. The Group also has an outstarding
amounts due from Newsneg amounting 1o P19,360,91 |, P10,736,960 and P6,067 544 ag of
Deegmber 31, 2017, 2016 and 2018, respectively.
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Summary of relaged party transactions affecting consolidated Statements of income:

Greneral spd
Cont of sales and sdmindstragive

Heluied Parties Category Year Revenues HTviees LXpEnaEs
Vieierds lnc Management Fes 007 140,00 [ F .
2016 240,000 -
LR 240,300 - :
Fitteres; 2017 - = .
2018 - =
RA I - -
MOW Telecom Esrvices 17 T -
2076 T: 00000 -
1015 - - -
Cost of dats serviess mr - 1,757,750 -
200 - T
s = -
Liease e = = 128,000
Mewspap Services M7 25,600,000 -
216 13450, (M0 -
2014 F, 300 D
Cant of ety sérvices ] Tkl - I A5 054
b1 [ - (R R
2015 - N
OHT Services 17y 1500, 000
2004 [EAS0 00 -
i 10,000, B - -
181 Intesest 2017 47,033 -
2018 dhT 033 -
20s 467,033 - -
EPEC Chutsdde sarvices 2017 - 8410, %6 1344064
20 & i} 226819 T ARG pa3
2018 - 40054 590 6,002 %2
Softuch Salen 017 - - _
HHE 34122352 -
2014 12,088,054 = :
Management fee o7 - -
20048 =
2015 - = -
E-Colkege Lesss 017 - - LR TN
2014 = - RIE 31
2014 - - 930,313
Ty To7, (] T} . ]
A6 Pi4 s 19,265 [k 703,244 PRA D06
R L P31 794 OR7 P40,05, 595 FT 532 508
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0, Lease Commitments

The Group has entered into Operating lease agreemenis in respect of its office premises. There are no
restrictions placed upon the Group by entering inio these jeages. Operating lease pavmenss
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income are a&s follows:

L On January |, 2011, the Group entered into a sublease contract with [-College Philippines, ing.
(I-College) for the period from November 1, 2011 to May 31, 2012 with g manthly rental fae of
PT77.526. The term of the Jease can be renewed upon mutyal consent of both parties. The Group
renewed its sublease agresment for the periods of three {3} years from November |, 2017 1o
Qctober 31, 2020 All other tarms mnd conditions of the sublease agreement dated
Tanuary 1, 201) remuin in full force,

b. Om April 16, 2013, the Group entered into a comract of lease with Roben C, Lantm with g
monthly rental fee of B40,000 and ssourity deposit amounting to F120,000 equivelent to three (3)
months rentel fee. The term of the leage can be renewed upon mutual consen of both parties. In
April 2018, the Group entered into o new lease Comtract commencing on April |, 201610

€. OnApril 1, 2017, the Group entered info & contract of lease with monthly rental fee of 813,067
Tor itz principal office which is located at Unit 5-1, 5th Floor, OPL Building, 100 C. Palanca
corner Dela Rosa and Gil Streets Legaspi Villnge, Makati City from One Palanca Lind, Ine.
Said lease contract i effective for one (1) year and may be renewad Upon mutual sgreement of
both parties.

d. On lenuary 1, 2017, the Group entered into & contrace of lease with from NOW Telecom with
monthly rental fee of ®10,000 for its office located in 2244 Espaila Avenue, Samploc, Manila
City for five (5) vears ending December 31, 2020,

¢ Un November 24, 2016, the Group entered into a contract of lease with One Exec utive
Condominium Comporation for the common aress and facilities of the latter fisr the Group’s fiber
optie cable facilities and ity value-added services for the period November |1, 2016 1o
November 17, 2021. The monthly rental payment was 56t at 3,000 with annnal escalation rate
of five percent (5%) after the first year, Acerucd rent payable Emotnting to #5933 a5 of
December 3], 2017 FEpresents straight-line adjustment on rent,

follerws:

2017 2016 2015

Within one (1) year P1,179.514 P917.365 PFo30,313
After one { 1) year but not maore than five

(5) years 1,900,572 775.260

3,080,086 PI1T365  P1,705,373

l'otal rent expense recognized in 2017, 2006 and 2015 amounted to B1,739,036, Bl 728 730 and
F1,681,4486, respectively (see Nate 14),
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L1, Loans Payable

1 {1alv Lt ompany and Bank of Makat h

In September 2012, the Parent Company availed of short term loan from Metropolitan Bank and Trust
Company (MBTC) amounting to P44,500,000. In December 20| 3, the said loan was extended for
Enother two (2) years witha maturity date of January 2016. The loan bears interest ranging from

2.40% and 2.12% 1o 2.30% in 2016 and 2015, respectively, Interest is payable every 30 davs,

On March 1, 2016, the Parent Company aveiled of o P44, 500,000 loan from the Bank af Makati to
seitle the loan from MBTC. The new loan, which will mature on March 1, 2018, has & term of
2.03 years and bears a fixed interest rats of | 3% per annum.

Un June 20, 2016, the loan from Bank of Makati was paid by Velarde, Inc. on behalf of the Pasent
Company (see Note 9),

[ntesest expense on the said logn mmounted to B571,335 and B1.027,530 in 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

B loan

Un December 22, 200 6, the Parent Company uvailed a chagtel mortgage loan amounting (o
#364,800 from BDO Unibank, Inc. for the purchase of a vehicle, which serves as the property
mortgaged, The new loan requires 60 monthly payments unti] Wovember 23, 2021, has a term of
five (5) years and bears an interest rate of 9 44% per annum,

The current and noncurent portions of the loan amounted to B97 337 and P351.614, respectively, as
of December 31, 2017 and PB7,426 and ®449 107, respectively, as of December 3 L2016

Interest expense recognized on this logn amounted to B32,0135 and 1,607 in 2017 and 201 &,
respectively.

1Z. Capital Stock

In accordance with SRC Rule 68, 13 Amended (201 1), Annex 68-D, below it a suminary of the Parcnt
Company's track record of registration of securities.

Mumber of shares registered  Issue/offer price Date of approval
Common shares 28,000,000 S Tuly 30, 2003
Common shares 1,289,278,350 PLOO  December |0, 2008

On April 28, 2006, the BOD and stockholdars approved the increase in the authorized capital stock
from 40,000,000 shares to 1,320,000,000 shares at P1 par value per share. This was subsequently
ipproved by the SEC on September 19, 2006

On May 12, 2010, the BOD and stockholders of the Parent Company approved proposal to increase
rts authorized enpital siock from 1, 320,000,000 shares 1o 3,320,000,000 shures at | par value per
shares. Om Nowvember 7, 2014, the BOD and stockholders of the Parent Company approved the

Janwary 22, 201 3, the Parent Company’s BOD approved & new proposal to supersede previous
mcreese in authorized capital stock plans. It was decided for the Parent Company to apply far an
inerease of 800,000,000 shares at B par valoe per share (i.¢,, 1,320,000,000 shares 10 2,120,000,000
shares}. The SEC approved the Parent Company’s application to incresse its authorized capital stock
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on Decemnber 17, 2015

As discussed in Note 0, Velarde, Inc. subscribed 1o 200,000,000 shares of the Paremt Company and
this subscription was settled through the conversion of its advances to the Group amoanting o
F20:0, 000,000,

On April 28, 2016, the Parent Company's BOD approved the incremse in the suthorized capital spock
of the Parent Company from 2,120,000,000 shares at Bl par value per shars 10 3,000,000,000 shares
it Pl par value per share. The BOD also approved the conversion into 2quity of the advances from
Velarde, Ing, amounting to #264,000,000 at 5 conversion price of P1.22 per share computed based oy
the volume-weighted average price of the Parent Company's shares for a d0-day trading period ended
April 14, 2018, On June 2, 2016, the stockholders of the Parem Company spproved the said increase
n the Parent Company’s authorized capital stock.

O January 6, 2017, the Parent Company filed an application with the SEC for the spproval of the
said amendment, This was approved by the SEC on January 10, 2017,

Information on the Group's authorized capital stock is as follows:

Numhber of shares o
T 00k 205
Common stock, By par value: 2,060,000, 000 £, 120 (60, G0 2 120,000,000
Preferad stock, 1 par value: B0 (DM, TR} - -
Balance at end of the year L,120,000,000 2 120,000 500 2,120,000,000

Movements in the fssusd and outstanding capital stock are as follows:

Common Stock
Number of shares
2mr 2014 2015
Halnnes at beginning of the year LS17278350  1,517278. 350 1317 278,350
Issuances during the vear - = 200000004
Balance at end of the year I,EIT,.'.ITIEH Iljl?.l'i"l.ifﬁ [517.278.340

LU T
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I3. Costs of Sales and Services

@17 P k15
Cost of servies;
Outside services (Note 2 P46, 436,305 P43.226.619 Pai0, 44 504
Lost of datn services (Note ) T.38a,191 3,204,621
Cosl of sales 3 ROr 102315 7062 33 545 751
HEE:,#H P55, 646 942 P75 600 357

4, Genernl and Administrative Exponses

i 2017 2016 2015
Salaries and other emplovee benefirg PF13,772,096 #1301, 180 F7 58 000
Dutside services (Noge 7] 6,988,982 7489 503 602, 192
Entertainment, amussment end recrestion 6,327,299 o, 706,499 2,430,290
Transportation end trave| E026 897 1,702,362 1,586 867
Communication 4,406 20y 4,109.582 3,567 207
Depreciation and mmortiztion (Note T 4.400.001 2214 %69 3567671
Taves and leenses 4,045 599 1,068,636 2ATI AT
Prefessionnl fees 2495421 2,918,643 632437
Adventising and promation 3,367,961 4,524,439 -
Rental (Note 10} 1,739,036 1,728,730 1,681,444
Office supplies 193,637 ZA41 318 1020 42%
Utilities 284,014 982,225 804,573
Insurance 199 904 258,661 L
Repuirs and muintenance 180,576 1,008,252 353,177
Provision for impainment loss on:
Trade and other receivables (Mote 4) 1.540 485 685 4,033 832
Advances to affillae (Note 6) = 5,000,000 -
Other carrent assets (Noge ¥ = - 158,757
Others 006 603 L2600 642 275 162
FS4.077 860 B4 401,196 BIL21 1 3G

L5, Income Toaxes

The reconciliation of the Group's statwlory income tax t0 provision for income tax follows:

2017 2016 2015
Statutory income iy ar 300 Fl.688.352 P1.407,532 P2,023.297
Additions to {reductions in) income e
resulting from;
Nondeductible expenses I A86 347 LiGhis 2,393 501
Movement af imrecognized defierrad
fhoome tax assety (1902273 [2,382.463) {2905 T16)
interest income subjected to final tax (1,468) (1,157} (2.257)
P2670.958  #3.193364  P1.508 800
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The Group has temporary differences for which no deferred lox assels were recognized as it is
probable that sufficient taxable income will not be avaj lable for thoze deferred tax assets (o be
utifized.

The temporary differences are as follows:

207 2016 2015

Allowanee for impairment on rade
and other receivables 13,532 801 P13 836,447 P13,150,762
NOLCO 2,761,602 14,677,408 0,886, 089
MCIT 1312359 1,713,165 812,692
Othery 131,065 - -
19,037,918 F30,327,110 74 840,543

As of December 31, 2017, NOLCO and MCIT can be claimed as deduction from future taxshie
mcome and income tax liabilities, respectively, are us follows:

¥ ear Incurred Year of Expiration NOLCD MCIT
2017 2020 P02, 205 F727.8505
2016 2019 365 424 503,836
2015 2018 1,593,769 640,717
PIT6LEOZ  P23123%
The following are the movements in NOLCO and MCIT:
2017 2016 2014
MNOLCO
Balances ot beginning of vesr P14,677 408 P&l 886,089 PFl42,821.518
Additions 2200 565,624 1,593,765
Application (11,199273) (13,432,651) (13,5483 16)
Expirations (1,318,831} 33,341,564 49,980, 88())
Balances at end of year BI,761.602 B14,677408 Pl BBG 089
2017 2016 2015
MCIT,
Balances ot beginning of year B1,713,168 PE12,692 P334,540
Additions T17.806 903,836 680,717
Expirations (128,612) {3,363 {202,565)
Halances at end of year 2,311,359 B1.713, 165 PRIZ 697

Republic Act (RA) No. 10963 or the Tax Re

LT

form for Acceleration and Inclusion Act (TRAIN} was
took effect January |, 2018, making the new tax law

the TRAIN changes existing tax law and includes several
Inesses on a prospective basis, the management assessed (hat
impact on the financial statement halances as of the reporting
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6. BasicDiluied EPS

‘The following table presents information hecessary 1o compute the basic/dilutive EPS:

2017 201G 2015

Net income attributable to equity

holders of the Parent (a) 6,702,056 F2.500,43) 5236704
Weighted avernge number of

outstanding common shares for

both basic and dilutive EPS 1.517, S0 1317, 278.350 317 278354
Basie/dilutive earnings (loss) per

share {a'h) P, 0045 PO.OD 6 Bl 0040

As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2615, the Purent Company does not have any dilutive potential
cofmon shares.

I 7. Finoncial Instruments

The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework, The Group's risk manngement policies are established to identify and
manage the Group's exposure to financial risks, to et appropriate transaction limits and controls, and
to monitor and assess risks and compliance to internal control policies. Risk management palicies
asd structure are reviewed regularly to reflect ehanges in market conditions and the Grroup s
activities,

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are hiquadity risk, credit risk and
interest rate risk. The Group is not exposed 1o cash flow interest rate risk since & significant portion
of the Group's due from affiliates and finance lease obligations has fixed interest rates.

The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are
smmaorized below,

Liguidity Risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group's objective 1o managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as fur 4 poesible, that it will
niways have sufficient hiquidity to meet its financial liabilities when they fall due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking adverse effect on the
Group's credit standing,

The tables summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as of

December 31, 2017, 2016 and 201 5, based on contractesl undiscounted cash flows. The tbiles ajso
anulyze the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets that can be used to finance maturing
financial obligations. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is based on the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity dates,

ANA N




2017
More than
O slemand Withim [ year i year Taitul
Finanetal axsers;
Cnsh FI0EM, 1% b B PI0.&04, 196
Trade and sther recelvabiles 167,943,134 - - 167,943 324
Thus From related parties 95 058 268 - 17497 144 123,453,012
H_m_ P- PETAST. T B3 A31
Finaneial Bahilides:
Accoants payables and scormed
CApenTe® F147,780,972 - B~ PLT. 7RO ST
Drue o related pargios 151,454,345 - - 151,454,345
Futwre interest on laans payahip - 38,134 53011 911558
Leany payable - 87337 351,604 448,951
“’!Eé—” P136.471 Fadfd 515 E299.776,425
*Earluding governmens papaiies
2

Mg thar
Crn dicmansd Within | year | vesr Toial
Finoncinl assetr
Casks B 30s 415 - F B 156 310
Trate end other recalvahles B3 276,904 30,259 452 - 15231 168
Diue froim related parties T2495 743 - 27,030,71) 99,526,444
P62, 160078 F30,2554%2 FI7.030.711  P119,45504|
s
Fimarsin! labifities:
Accounts payable and acerued
EXPIENEEL® PI09a33. 203 B B RI0dAR5 1
Duie o0 rednied parties 77530582 - - T1.5H0, 582
Futire inferest on loens puyable = 52,018 105447 1355032
L.oans payable - - 7476 449,107 536,533
— PIET.I7S, TS PLI%441 PS52,594  BIET ST RID
* Ercluding govarnment payables
<013
Mare than
O demand Within | vear i wear Total
Fimarcial arsety:
Cash P15 FIR6T2 [ B LS e
Trade and other recclvables e d ] 28,866,497 - i, 758 408
Dug from relaied parties 43,186,597 =~ 2b563478 74,930,275
Pi17, 288, 180 IR Kb 497 PA6.563,678  RI72 718855
Fingngial labitites
Accounly pavahle snd soemed
CApEnsEs 026,206 487 [ o P PI2e 206 AET
Dhee io related parties IIE.07EIED - - 219,078 380
Future interest on laang payable - 778,750 E 78,750
Loms pevable = H4S00, 000 - A4 504, 0l
Fifd 284 K67 45278, 750 P~ P8 563617
*Exclusting povernmant poablps
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The Group monitors it cash flow position through cash planning. The Group belisves that cash
sdvances by stockholders are sufficient 1o mitigate the effects of Muctustion in cash Aow snd 10 cover
disbursements for the day-to-day operations of the Group,

Credit Rixk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a CUStMmICr O counterpany 1o & financial

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from trade receivables and
amounts owed by relaied parties,

The Group’s management believes that there is no significant risk in the amounts due by related
parties. The BOD continually reassures the Group’s strategies for managing sccounts with creditors.
including related parties. Advanees are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result thut the
iroup’s exposure to impairment and acount discrepancies i not significant, In addition, the Group
fnanages credit risk by monitoring its eredit exposures and assessing the creditworthingss of

The following tables show the aging analvsis of the Ciroup’s financial assets as of
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015,

017
Mrther past due Fust doe bt w0 Past doe anil
nor impaired ~ jmpaired Emipuired Tasl
Fienareiad axseis:
Cagh E10,6%4, 195 LS - g T T
Trade and other recelvabies 108,55 66,504 6518 13,832 8493 181,776,116
Do from related porties 17407744 $E.955 264 - 113,453,011
!!E& liﬂﬂ I&ﬂ!ﬂ .I]!-iﬂ.il..'ﬂ-l
201
Nether padt due  Fast due but not Past due and
Ao Empairei] __impajred __imipaired Tl
Firnancial asers
Cazh L L R B B Ba 0% 410
Trnde i pther receivahies 12,10, 256 103,432 082 13,834 447 130368 818
Due fram related parties 27,000,711 72,493,743 - 09,526 454
P41.5T0416  PI75 927025 PLI 836447 #7313 301 50
—— 2085
Mether past de  Pam due bul not Past dise gl
rar Empadred Impilred impskired Tl
Femaneial arsetr:
Cash F507a 67 [ . o B )

Trade and ather receivables 15510713 66275408 13,150, 742 4,938, | 70

Lz Trom related parties 26 563 674 48305997 - 74855 275
PiR036063 P4 b F] FI11%0,763  BLES 850 107

As at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Group's maximum exposure 1o eradit risk s equal to
the carrying amount of its financial nssets,

Credir (heality per Class af Financial Azset

Financial assets are classified as high grade if the counterparties are not expecied to default in sertling
their obligations. Thus, the credit risk exposure is minimal, These counterparties normally inglude
customers, banks and related parties who pay on or before due date. Financial assets are classified as
& standard grade if the counterparties satile their ehligation with the Group with tolerable dejays.

AVUNTTE AN
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Low grade accounts are accounts, which have probability of impairment based on historical trend,
These accounts show propensity of default in payment despite regular follow-up actions and extended
paymant terms.

The Group considers its financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired amounting o
P19,600,536, P43,527,416 and P58,056,063 as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 gs high grade
finamcinl assets,

The Group considers its financial assets that are past dus but not impaired amounting 1o
PI62,489 896, P175,027.825 and P1 14,662,292 as of Decemnber 3], 2017, 2016 and 2015 as standard
grade financial assets.

The Group has impaired receivabies amounting to #12,832 897, P13.836,447 and P13.150.762 as of
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Fair Valug of Fi i
The fallowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of cach class of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate such valug:

Lash, Trade and Cther Receivables, Due from Related Parties, Accownts Payable and Accrued
Expenses, Loans Payable and Due to Related Pavtier

T'he carrymg amounts of cash, trade and other receivables, due fram related partics, accounts payable

and scerued expenses, loans payable and due to related parties approximate their fair values due to the

short-term maturity of these financial instrumeants,

AFE Firancial dszatr

Unguoted equity security is carried at cost since fair value of this AFS investment cannot be relinbly
determined as this is not listed in active market, have no available bid price and the range of
reasonable fair value measurement of the AFS investment is significant.

Noncurvent Amounts Due from Related Party

The fair value of noncurrent amounts due from related party were based on discounted value of fiture
cash flows using applicable credit-adjusted risk-frec rates of 5,7%, 5.9% and 5.7% s of

December 31,2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (Level 3. The fair valus of noncurrent amounts
due from related party amounted 10 B24,793 312, PI4, 144,646 and #22, 747 540 as of

Decernber 31, 2007, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The carrying value of noncurrent smaounts dug
from related party amounted to P27,497, 744, RI7.030,711 and B16,563,67% as of December 31, 2017,
2016 und 2015, respectively,

Loans Payable

The carrying amount of the loans payable as of December 3 v 2017 and 2016 wre estimated using the
discounted cash flow methodology with the epplicable credit-adjustod risk-froe rates of 5.7% and
3.5%, respectively (Level 3). The carrying amount and fair value of loans payable amounting 10

P34, 500,000 as of December 31, 2015 is the same. The fair value of loans payable amounted to
F380.328 and R414,612 a5 of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectivelv. The carrying value of loans
payable amounted o P448,95] and P536,533 g5 of December 31, 2017, 2016, respectively
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably passible change in interest rtes for
the years ended December 31, 2017 mnd 2016, with all other variables held canstant, in the Group's
income before income:

Increass
Increasa {Decrease) on
(Decreaze) in Income Before
Bazis points Income Tax
December 31, 2017 +100 (F18,59468)
-100 18,965
December 31, 2016 +100 (Ba73)
=100 673
December 31, 2015 +100 (P96,453)
-1 O 06,455

Cepital Managzment

The Groop considers the equity presenied in the consolidated statament of financial positon as Ay core
capital. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is o0 ensure that it malntaing
strong credit rating and stable capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize
sharcholders” value.

The Group menages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend pavment w
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Un October 28, 2010, PSE issued a memorandum regarding the rule for the minimum puhlic
ownership for all listed companies. Based on the memorandum, listed companies shall, at all times.
maintain a minimum percentage of listed sccurities held by the public of ten percent {10%6) of the
listed companies’ issued and outstanding shares, exclusive of any treasury shares or ne such
percentage that may be prescribed by the PSE. The Group has complisd with the minimum public
awnership as of Decomber 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015,

The Group eonsiders the equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company as presenied
in the consolidated statement of financial position as its core capital.

As of Decernber 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Group was able to mest it capital management
ohjectives.

. Busginess Segment Information

The Group's operating segments are organized and managed separately according 1o the nature of the
services offered as follows;

* [T Manpower and Resource Augmentation - provides deployment of IT professionals o clisnts
* Software Licenses and Services - provides high value products and services to clients,
* Broadband Services - provides high-speed broadband service of up to 700 Mbps to clients,
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Management monitors the operating results of its business units separtely for the purpose of miking
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment, Segment performance is #valuated
based on operating profit or loss.

Financinl information on the operations of the various business SCRments are summarized &4 follows.
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- Notes io Consalidated Stutements of Cash Flows

In 2015, noncash financing metivity consists of deht I0-equity fransaction from Velarde, Ing.'s
advances smounting o F200,000,000 for 200,000,000 Parent Company common shares with a par
value of Bl which has besn approved on December 17, 2015 (see Note 12}

In 206, the noncash financing activity involves the conversion of 264,000,000 sdvances from
Velarde, Inc. to the Parent Company's common shares. This is currently presented under ety ns
deposit for future stock subseription pending the approval by SEC of the Parent Compatiy's
upplication for increase fn suthorized capital stock (see Note 9),

. Changes in Linbilities Aristag from Financing Activities

dunuary 1, 2017 Cash Mows December 31, 2017
Due to reloted parties P77,520,582 P73.933,763 P151,4%4,045
Losns pavable 536,531 (B7,582) 448, 15]
Total lnhilities from
financing activities FT8.057,115 P73 846,181 F181,003, 204
Other Matter
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REFPORT

The Stackholders and the Board of Directors
NOW Corporation

Linit 5-1, 5™ Floar, OPL Building

100 C. Palanca Stregt, Legaspi Village
Makati City

We have nudited in accordance with Philippine Standards on

BOAPRT Reg M, o0
Do 14 2005 vl urtil Cocriness 31 2040
SEC Mcrradiaiion re DULI-FR-4 (Geoup &
Movsenbar 1 7015 iled wrmti Mgnrnhis 0 e

Auditing, the consolidated finangial

statements of NOW Corporation and Subsidiaries included in this Form 17.A und have jesyed CHIT Fepirt
thercon dated April 9, 2018, Our audity were made for the purpose of forming an opinion an the basic
financial sintements taken as a whole, The schedules listed in the Index to Finaneial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are the responisibility of the Giroup's Mmanagement. These schedules are
presented for purposes of complying with Securitics Regulation Code Ryl 68, As Amended (201 ) and
Securities and Exchange Commission Memorsndum Cireular No. | 1, Series of 2008 and are not part of
the basic financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the suditing procedures applied in
the sudit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state in al] material respecty, the

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

e fpch

Jhoanna Feliza C. (o

Pariner

CPA Certifionte No. 0114122

SEC Accreditation No. [414-AR-] (Group A},
Muarch 2, 2017, valid until March 1, 2020

Tax Identification No. 219-574-288

BIR Acereditation No. OB-001998-103-2017,
Yanwsary 31, 2017, valid unti] Jamury 30, 2020

FTR Ma, ﬁ-ﬁzllﬁﬁ,.lmunr}«' 9, 2018, Makati Ciy

April 9, 2018
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NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
TABLE OF CONTENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

independent Auditors® Report on Supplementary Schedules

Schedule I: Tabular Schedule of Effective Standards and Interpretations under PFRS

Schedule [1: Supplementary Schedules Required by Securities Regulation Code {SRC) Buls A,
Part 11, Annex 88-E-

A

H

H

Financinl Assets

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties, and Principal
Stockholders

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during the Conselidation of
Financial Statemerits

Intangible Assets - Other Assets
Long-Term Debt

Indebvtedness 1 Related Parties
Cuarantees of Securities of Other Iasuers
Capital Siock
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CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Now Corporation is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial sttements including the sttached therein for the years ended December 312017, 2016 and
2013, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework fndicated therein, mnd for sucl
internal control s management determines H Neccssary (o cnable the preparation of the financinl
stnfements that are free from material misststement, whether due to frand or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ahility
wmntinmuuﬂ:ﬁrlgmn,dhchinguuppﬂﬂh}n matiers refated to going concem and using the
auingu-u:n:emh-dsnfmwnﬁ:;mhu ﬁlhrnmmiﬂibd&mlimﬂmdmﬂmpan} or o
Cease operations, of has no realistic alternative 10 do B0,

The Board of Dirsctors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reparting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements meluding the schedules stmehed
therein and submity the same to the Stockholders.
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ALL EFFECTIVE STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Framework for the Preparation xnd Presentation of Financial
Siatemenis ¥
Conceptunl Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characleristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Cammentary +
Philippine Financisl Reporting Standards

PFR= 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
(Hevised) Standards o

Amendmenis to PERE L Coat of an Investment i 2 J.
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associatn

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for 7
Firsi-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 12 Limited Exemption from 7
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

Amendments to FFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Date for Firsi-time Adopters

Amendments 1o FFES I; Government Loang
Amendments to PFRS | Barrowing Costs . o
| Amendments to PFRS |- Meaning of EfTective PFRS ¥
PFRS 1 Share-based Payment v

Amendments to PFRS 2: Yesting Conditions and
Cancellatinns

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settied Share-based 7
FPayment Transactions

Amendments 1 PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting
Conditions |
Amendments to PFRS 2: Share-based Paymend,

Classification and Measurement of Share-hased Payment Not early adoprad
Transactions®

PFRS 3 Business Combinations «

iseql
Worsiad) Amendments by PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingem s
Consideration in n Business Combination
Amendments to PFRS 3: Scape Exceptions for Joint s
| l‘!l-lmmﬁ |
*Standards and interprepations wihich will broome gifective rubrsguens s December 1) 3017

%




Amendmants to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Gunrarites Coatracts

Amendments 1o PFRS §: Apphving PFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, with FFRS 4°

Net early adopted

PFR5 5

Mon-current Assets Held for Sabe and Discontinued
| Operations

| Amendments to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of
Dsposal

FFRE
| S
PFRS 7

Exploration for and Evalustion of Mineral Resources

Fimancinl Instrumenta: Diselosures

Amendments tn FFRS T: Recinssification of Financlal
ANscts

Amendments 1o FFRS 7: Reclussifleation of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Fmancial [msirumends

Amendienits t6 PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financinl Agseis

Amendments tp PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offzetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Dage of
PFRE ¥ and Transition Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7; Servicing Contracts

Amenidments to PRFS 7; Applicability of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Stntements

PFRS S

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS & Agugregation of Oiperating
Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of the
Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity's Assets

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments®

Mot early adopted

Amendmenits to PFES 9 Prepayment Festures with
Megative Component

Wod early adopred

FFRS 11

Consolidated Financial Siyements

Amendments to PFRS 107 Investment Ertitiey

e

Amendments to FFRS [{ and PAS 28 Sal= ar
Contribution of Assets betwean an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Veniee®

Mot early adopted

*Standarils and interpredmttions which will becomr effectrve rubseguent fo December 71, 2057,




Amendments to PFRS 10: Applying the Consolidation

Undertying Assets

*Stawmdards and frierprerarioar wiiich will Berome afective nubsequent 1o December 1) 3017

eont'd) | Exception ¥
| PFRS 11 Joint Arrangernents
Amentments to PFRS 111 Accounting for Acquisitions of 7
Interests in Joint Operatians
PFRS 11 Disclosure of Interests in Ciher Entitiay v
Amendments to FFRS 12: Investment Entities
Amendments to FFRS 12: Applving the Consolidation
Exeeption
mmmmlizﬂhﬂﬂmnﬂnmﬁhmu o
Entities-Clarification of the Scope of the Standard
PFRS 13 Fair Value Mezsurement S |
i Amendments to PFRS 13: Short-term Receivables and
Payables
Amendments to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception +
PFHS 14 Regulatory Defermral Accounts Vv
FFRES 15 Revenue from Contraces with Customers Mot early adopted
FFRS 16 Leases Mot earty adopted
| Philippine Accounting Standards '
PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements "
(Reviedl L endment iz PAS 1> Cagital Disclosses £
Ameadments to PAS Ji‘._md PAS 1: Punable Financial y
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation
J'-mﬂﬂ-dmmt!lu?ﬂsl:l’runﬂﬂmufhmnfﬂﬂm' v
Comprehensive [ncame
AmﬂumFASI:ﬂIFIﬂuﬁmnfﬂu Requirements s
for Comparative Presentation
PAS2 Inventuries o
FAST Satement of Cash Flows o
Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative o
PASE Accaurting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 7
and Errors
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Pericd v
PAS [ Construction Contrasts o
PAS 12 Income Taxes s
Amendments ta FAS 12: Deferred Tax - Recovery of s




Amendments 1o PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax

Vemture at Fair Value®

feont 'd) Assets for Unrealized Losses
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment ¥
Amendments to PAS |6: Clarification of Servicing /
Equipment
Amendments to PAS 16: Revaluation Method - J
Proportionase Restatement of Accumulaiad Deprecistion
Amendment to PAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable 7
Methoeds of Deprecintion
Amendment to PAS [6; Bearer Plants W
FAS 17 Leases a
PAS 18 Revenue 4
PAS 1% Employee Benefits
(Amanded) Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Beneflt Plans:
Employee Contributlon
Amendments to PAS 19: Regional market issue regasding
discoumt rats ol
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclogure of 7
(ovemment Assistance
FAS X1 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates o
Amendment: Net Investment in a Forelgn Operation "4
PAS 21 Borrowing Costs s
(Revised)
PAS 14 Helated Party Disclosures o
(Revised) Amendments to PAS 24: Eey Management Personne] «
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans 4
PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements .
((Amended) . [ rendments 10 PAS 27- lnvestment Entitie 7
Amimdments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separae v
Financial Statements
PAS 1R Investments in Associstes and Joint Ventures o
(Amended) | o mendments to PAS 22: Applying the Consolidation 2
Exception
Amendments tn PAS 28: Measuring an Associate or Joint J

Amendments 1 PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or
Contrilution of Assets between an Invesior gnd s
Axgociste or Jomt Ventare

Noa enrly sdopresd

“Ttamaierddy and interpreratinns which will beeome affective mhreguent io December 1), 2047




| PAS 18
[Amended)
(et "o

Amendments 1o PAS 28: Long-term Interests in
Associntes in Joimt Veotures

PAS 29

Financinl Reparting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS A2

Fimancinl [nstnements: Disclosire and Pregentation

PAS 32

Amandments 10 PAS 37 and PAS 1: Puttable Fisancial
Instrumnents and Obligations Arising on Liguidation

Amendment to PAS 32; Classification of Rigls Issues

Amendments ta PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution to
Haolders of Equity Instruments

(5] A

L

Amendments 1o PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

=,

l'FA.SIH

Interim Financial Reporting

Amendment te PAS 34; Interim Financial Reporting and
Segment Information for Total Assets and Liobilities

Amendment to PAS 34; Disclosure of information
'Elsewhere in the Interim Firancial Repart’

liPﬁEH-

Impairment of Adseds

Amendments 1o PAS 16 Recoverable Amoumi
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

FAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assats

| FAS I8

Intangible Assets

T I I

Amendruents to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Froportionate Restatement of Accumulated Amortization

Amendments to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Amorntization

PAS 28

Financial Instruments: Recogaition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39; Transitson and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Lighilities

Amendments ta PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intrigroup Transactions

Amendments 1o PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 3% Financial Guarontse Contracts

"Standardy and inferpretaians which will became effection subreguent to Deember 1. 2017




feant 'u

Amendments to PAS 19 Reclussification of Financial

Assets

"Srandards and imlerpreientiong wiich will become cffective tubrequent fe Decembere 71, 20)7

Amendments to PAS 39: Reciassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Trnaition |
Amendments to Philippise tntupmm IFRIC-% and |
PAS 35: Extbedded T ¥
Amendment to PAS 39 Eligible Hedped ltems vy
FAS 3 Amendments to PAS 39 Novatkon of Derivatives agd 7 |
(‘.uuu‘nutinnnrl-ln:lp Accounting
FAS 40 Investment Property o
Amendments 10 PAS 40 Investment Property o
ﬁmﬂﬂ.ﬂtﬁnu W PAS 30: Transfers of Investment Not early adopted |
PAX 41 A griculfuse o
Amnduumlnmsll;ﬂwn-l‘hnu +
| Philippine interpretations
'FRIC1 | Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and_] /
Similar Linbilities
IFRIC 1 Members® Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar "
IFRIC 4 Chetermining Whether an Arrangement Containg g Lease
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabifitation Fusds g
IFRIC & Liahifitie aricing from Pm-nn]pwm;}nn&ummc.ﬂfwm
- Waxte Electrical and Electronic Equipment J J
[FRIC * Appling the Restwement Approach Approach under P45 29
Fimancial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economier o
| IFRIC § Scope of PFRS 2 7
IFRIC % H:wmmu of Embeddad Derivatives =4
Hmﬂlﬂmmtn- Philippine Interpretation IFRIC . ’,
Embedded Derivarives
IFRIC 10 Interimr Finaneia! Reporting and lmpairmant F
FFH.[E 1] FFRS 2. Ciroup and Treasury Share Transactions o+
IFRIC 12 Service Concession ArTangesnents T
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes g



IFRIC 14

o Limit on  Defined Benefit Assct, Minimum Funding 2
Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments 1o Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14,
Prepayments of 8 Minfmum Funding Requirement o |
IFRIC 15 | Agreements for the Consruction of Ren] Estate v |
TIFRIC 16 Hnds:lﬂflﬁuhummmlFmignﬂpﬂm | & |
PRIC 17 | Distributions of Non-cash Assets 1o Owners | & pl
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers 4
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Lishilities with Equity 7
Instruments
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Produciion Fhase of a Surface 7
Mine .
IFRIC21  |Leview | 7
IFRIC 23 Foreign Currency Transactions angd Advance Not earty adopted
Consideration®
IFRIC 23 Uneertainty over Income Tex Treatment Not early adopaegd
SiC-7 Introduction of the Eurg ]
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation 1p 7
Oiperating A tivities
SIC.12 Consolidation Special Pirpose Entitles v
Ammﬁmwﬂlﬂrlbsmp:nf«ﬂ]ﬂli o
SIC-13 laintly Controlled Entitis - Non-Monetary Cantribusions s
by Ventirers
BIC-15 Operating Leases - [ncentives
| S1C-22 Income Twes - Changes i the Tux Status of an Entity ar
| its Shareholders
SIC-27 Evaluatmg the Substance of Trnssciions Invalving the
_ Legsl Form of 5 Lense
rsic-:& Service Concesslon Arrangements: Disclosures g
SIC-31 Reveniue - Barter Transsctions hwl'vin:ﬁdvmmng
Services
|§1C-32 ,Immﬁbl:ﬁm-mmcm | o |
*Erandards and interprorations which will become affective rubreqient 1o December 1) X7
Mote: Standards and Iterpretations tgged as “Not Applicable™ are thess stand and interpretations which were
udn-;:wdhmﬂ::r:rrﬂlyhuun: uuu:ﬁmuﬂmdﬁrﬁt}'mqﬂni

December 31, 2017 and 2016,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

1he Board of Directors and the Stockholders
NOW Cormporstion

Unit 5-1, " Floor, OPL Building

100 C. Palanca Street, Legaspi Village
Makati City

In vur opinion, the TCCOMpanying pareni company financial statements present fairly, in all materin)
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and s financial
performance and its cash Flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Fingncigl
Reporting Standards (PFRSa),

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits i accordance with Philippine Stundards on Auditing {FSAs), Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the dudirar's Responsibilities for the Audis
af the Parent Company Financial Statements section of our report. We are mdependent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent Company
Financial Statements

Management i responsible for the Preparation and fair présentation of the parent company Tnancial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as imanagement determines jg
necessary (o enable the preparation of parent company financial statements that are free from materis)
missiatement, whether due to fraud Or error,

MROERRmADAH O
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.
Those charged with governunce are responsible for overseeing the Company”s financia| reporing process
-

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain ressonable assurance sbout whether the parent company financial mml;
s & whole are free from material misstatement, whether due f fraud or error, and to (ssue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion, Ressonable ssgumnce is & high level of asswrance. but Is not & guaranies
that az audit conducted in sccordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are vonsidered material if, individuslly or in the
dggregate, they could reasonably be expeeted 1o influsnce the exonomic decisions of users tken on the
basis of these parcnt company financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and mulntain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsa:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misststement of the parent company finangial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obdain audit evidence that is suflicient and appropriate to provide o basis for our opinion, The risk of
A0l detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
s fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contral.

*  Ubluin an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design audit procedires
that are appropeiate in the circumstances, but not for the purpcse of expressing an opinion on the
effectivensss of the Company’s internal control.

=  Evaluaie the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonahlencss of RECOUTLing
estimates and reluted disclosures mude by management.

= LConclude on the appropristeness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
besed on the audit evidence obtained, whether 8 material uncertainty exists reluled to events or
conditions that may cast significant doult on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem,
I1"'we conclude that 3 material uncenainty exiits, we are required to drww attention in our auditer's
repart to the related disclosures in the parent company financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtinad up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future #vents or conditions may cause the Company 1o
ceass 10 continue &8 4 going conoem,

*  Ewuluate the vverall presentation, structure and content of the parent company financial stwéments,

inciuding the disclosures, and whether the parent company financial stitements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achicves fair presentution.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other marters, the planned s¢ope
and timing of the audit and significant audii findings. including any significan deficiencies in interil
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with Bovermancs with o swmicment thar we have complied with relevany
etitical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with thermn all relitionatips and other
mitters thul may reasonably be thought o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safegurds.

Keport an the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 152010

| 3-2010 in Mote 22 to the parent company financial statements i presented for purpases al filing with the
Burcau of Internal Revenue and is nota required part of the basic financial stutements. Such informetion

% the responsibility of the management of NOW Corporation, The information has been subleeted 1o the

auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opimion, the information
's Tairly stated, in !l material respects, in relation 1o the basie financial statements taken os a whaole,

he cngagemest partner on the audic resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Thoanna Feliza C, Go,

sYCIPGORRES VELAYO & 0O,

Uﬁaﬁaﬂ

Jhoanni Feliea C. Go

Partngr

CPA Certilicate No, 0F 14122

SEC Accroditation No, 1414-AR-1 {Chroup Al
March 2, 2017, valid until March 1, 2020

Tox Identification No, 219-674-288

BIR Accredilution No, 08-001998-103-2017,
Janupry 11, 2017, valid until Jarary 30, 2020

PR No. 6621266, Janvary 9, 2018, Makati City

April 9, 2018
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NOW CORPORATION

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL P

ASSETS

Current A sseis

Cash ¥7,502,968 2,131,015

Trade and other receivables (Mot #) 165,149,265 109778712

Dhue from retated parties (Note 9) 103,813,471 83,00 02)

Liher ciirrent assets (Nate 5) 42,656,451 3 K29 320

Total Current Assets 319,122,155 |98 829077

Noncurrent Asscts

Available-for-sale lmvestment (Note 6) 1,289.278,350 I 28% 278,350

Advances 1o offilintes (Note 6) 23,593 818 Z1 592 R1%

Investment in subsidiaries (Note @) BHR4,13]1 614,13

Due from related parties (Note %) 17,497 744 20T

Property und equipment (Nale 7) T,675,160 53T Al4

Other noagurrent assats 642,072 340,118

Total Hll‘ll.'l:l!l'll‘_l___.'alllll L 357,570,275 1352 447 742 :

TOTAL ASEETE PLATHGPZAID  FI 5512768 19

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and sccrued expenses (Mote §) PLI8308,730 P93.412 137

Logns payable (Note 11) 97337 BT 426

Due to reluted partics (Note 9) 146,445,651 71,680,550

Total Current Liabilitics 184,851,718 165,180,113

Noncurreat Linbility o

Louns payable (Mote 11) ,.l'r".‘%ﬁ"t"* 51614 445,107

Total Liabilities [ 2 PI65.629.320
En

Equity “rialg BT

Capital stock (Note 13) S : | Jt 17.278,350 1.517,278,350

Dreposit for future stock subseription (Note 12) = P 264,000,000 264,000, (00

Defici

Total Equity

(395,630,751

4 -..u"i !é!!lﬂﬂ!&ﬂ}
A91.489.098

P1,185,647 509

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P1,676,692,430

PlA51 27610

Sde acccwpanying Noter fo Parent Company Finoncic] Statements




NOW CORPORATION

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended Docem ber 31

T 2016
REVENUES (Note §)
Sorvice foes F75,151,9%9 PLI AL 332
Sales 21,698,063 13 (198,685
Lithers 9, TRS, 2ivé 1. 762078
106,635 318 62,022,283
COSTS OF SALES AND SERVICES Note 13) 54,2153 20,036,610
GROSS INCOME 52,400,080 41,985,673
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Note 14) 45352942 40,109,227
OTHER CHARGES
Interest expense (Note 11) 52,015 372,962
Others T1,.R53 36,115 .
124,868 669,077
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 6,922 370 ], 267 340
FH(}"I-"IEIQE"E FOR CURRENT INCOMF, TAX (Mote 15} 1.088,771 239,684
MET INCOME P5.541,499 Fdl’-‘.ﬁl_ii
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (Note 16) PILOOIR PO.0003

Jew aeeampanying Notes fa Pargar Companty Finaneis! Sitpmrms
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NOW CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Yeurs Ended December M
2017 2016

NET INCOME P5.B41,499 BT RS

OTHER COMPREHENS IVE INCOME : =

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME PE.R41,499 | FEETL
—-_%_

Yev accompaming Narer fo Pareyy Compurmy Finmanedel Satemnn,
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NOW CORPORATION

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended Decerm ber L]

2017 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Ineame before income tax #6,922,270 B1.267 360
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization (Notes 2, 7 and [4) 4,320,465 1175307

Straight line adiustment on rent (Note L0y 2,933 -

Provision for impairment logses 8669633

Interest expense (Note | I} - STho

[nierest mcome {Note & (468.112) (468.5|9)
Operating income before working capital changes 10,780,456 12.216.952
Decrease (Inorease) in:

Trade and other receivahlag (55,370,553 [36.786,010)

Cither current assets (15,187 292) BO7.046
Luerease (Decrease) in accounts paysble and accrued Expenses 11,253,728 13,917 842
Net cash used in operations {38.523.601) {40,557 68%)
Interest received LTS 1LABA
Iicome taxes paid (1,080,771} B30, 684)
Interce! paid (52,015) (AT RO&)
et cach flows used in opemiting activities (39,655.268) (41 068 A2y
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
[nerease in amounts due from related parties (20, 723,450) (25,431 850
Additions to property and equipment (Note 7) (6,374,474) (5,317,908
Increase in investments (2,.250,000) -
Increase in other Noncurrent assets {A51.491) (227927
Cash flows used in imvesting activities {29.699.415) (30,977.686)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Additional nmounts due to relntod partics (Note 99 74,762,203 18,550 085
Payment of loan (Nota 1]) 135,567) (44, 500,000)
Froceeds from availment of leans (Note 11) - 45036377
et cash flows from financing activities 74,726,636 EIELWE.T-]L
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) [N CASH 5371953 (12, 830,036)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,131,015 l4.98],05]
CASH AT END OF YEAR F7.502.963 FE.HI.DJS_

Jes accompanying Niter io Parent Compony Finanetal Siargments




NOW CORPORATION

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS

! Carporate Information

NOW Corporation (formerly Informarion Capitn] Technology Ventures, Inc.: the Company) started ns
4 duly licensed investment house when it was incorporated on June 5, 1996 and registered in fhe
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) a5 MF Shroder & Ca,, Inc. It wos vriginglly
t whully owned subsidiary of Amalgamated Investment Bancorporation (ATR) and was inrtially
engaged in the purchaze and sale of securities.

In 2000, AIB expanded the services of the Company by establishing an informarion technology (IT)
enabled facility geared towards servicing the private equity necds of smal) and madium enterprizes by
maiching them online with direc equity investors, Hence, the Company's Article af Incorporation
(ACH) was changed 1o expund its primary purpose of engaging in the business of securifies trokempe
through the use of IT.

U July 23, 2002, the Board of Directors and stockholders approved ihe offer ol up 1o 28,000,000
shares trom the Company's unissied common stock through hﬂlJIJ public offering (IP0). The

In 2008, the PSE approved the application for the listing of the sdditional 1289278350 common
shures with an Fsue/share price of B1_00 per share fo cover the share-for-share FWilp transactions with
NOW Telecom, Inc. (NOW Telecum) shareholders {see Note &)

In July 2009, the SEC approved the amendment of the Company's AOI which provides for the
change in ity Primary purpose of engaging in the securities brokerage business 1o s tec hiology, media
and telecommunication (TMT) business.

pro-¢mptive rights of shareholders with respect 10 subscription to any class of the Cormpany's shares

of stock,

On December 16, 2010, the Company's Board of Directors (BOD) approved the amendment m its
AQI to include secondsry purpose. The inclusion of the secondary prrpose was subsequently ratified
by the Company's stockhoiders on July 2, 2011 and wes approved by the SEC on August 25 26 |
The additional secondary purposes inglude:

A Providing professional services and manpower in the field of TMT:

B, Acting as commission agent, manufactrer’s Tepresenitative, or principal for the purpose, sale,
distribution, manufacture, assembly, impaort or export of any and all classes of materials,
merchandise, supplics and commodities ol every kind and nature: and

¢ Engnging in the business of general and retail merchants, traders, factors, agents, manufacturers,
processors, dealing in or with sny and all classes of materials, merchandise, supplies and
commodities of every kind and nature.

Listing Application and the terms and conditiors and such other relevant acts in connectian with the
intended public offering of preferred shares of the Company.
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Change in Comporate Nams

The SEC approved the Company's application to change its name from MF Shroder & Co, Ine, 1o
Cashrounds, Ine. in Janunry 2002 and Information Capital Technology Ventures, Inc. in September
2006. Subsequently, on August 16, 201 3, the SEC spproved the change in the Company’s name 1 jis
current corporste name, NOW Corporation,

2 and Memorandum of Understanding and Agreerm I

On March 22, 2003, a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA ) was cxeouted by AIR and Gamboa
Holdings, Inc, (GHT), whereby AIR agreed to sell and GHI agreed to purchese 18,171,286 shatrey of
the Company al an aggregate purchase price of 874,395 004, The sale of the Company's shares
became effective on August 20, 2005 resulting to a 66.67% ownership interest of GHI n the

Company,

Cn March 10, 2006, the National Telecommunications Commission {NTC), through the =fforts of
IMX Broadband Inc. (IBI), issued o Certificate of Registration (COR) to the Company to allow it
operate and maintain value added services (VAS) and voice over imternet protocol (VOLP sery ICes i
all cities and municipalities nationwide,

On July 31, 2015, the Company entered info an agresment with NOW Telecom, an suthorized
telecommunications carrier which pravides nationwide trunk radio end cellular mobile seTVicEs
pursuant to the Provisional Auvthority by the NTC, wherein both parties mutually agread to
collaborate and interconnect their respective networks in order to provide VAS to the public
{see Note 9).

Cn November 27, 2015, NTC issved COR 1o the Company that nuthorizes it as a VAS provider for
services such as cloud hosting services, virtual privags network, multimedia content and program
services, online game scrvices, cloud-based multimadia conferencing services, web hosting and
¢loud-based mail and messaging services. The COR is valid for pericd of five (5) vears which will
expire on November 26, 2020,

The Company's administrative and management functions, including key management personnel. are
being handled by personnel of Knowledge Professionals Service Coaperative (KPSC), an entity under
common control (see Note 9). However, in February 2017, the Company transforred the
administrative and mansgensent functions, including key management personncl, to the Parent
LCompany without any effect in the subsisting service agreement with KPSC.

The Company’s registered address is Unit 5-1, 5™ Floor OPL Building, 100 Carlos Falancs St
Legrspi Village, Makati City.

Auth Issunnce

In the March 15, 2018 Spacial BOD Meeting, the BOD delegated to the Chairmin, or in his absence
the Vice-Chairman, and President the authority to approve the issuance of the parent company
financial statements as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and for the years then ended

The parent company financlal statements as of December 31,2017 nnd 2016, and for the vears then
ended were authorized for fssue by the Chairman and President on April @, 2018,
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< Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

wompany financial statements are presented i Philippine peso, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. Amounts are rounded 1 the nearest Philippine peso, excepl when

The Compuny also prepares and issues consclidated financial statements for the same period s the
prrent company financial statements which are alsa prepared in accordance with PFRSs. These
consolidated financinl statements may be obtained from the Philippine SEC.

-.h L
The Company applied for the first time cerain standards and amendments, which are effestive fior

=  Amendments to PFRS 12, Diselosurs of Interests in Other Entities, Clarification of the Scape
of the Srandard (Part of Al Improvements (o PFRSs 2014 « 2014 Cyele)

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those reluting to
summarized financial information, apply 1o an entity s inicrest in a subsidiury, o joint venture or
an hssociate (or 8 portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associnte) that is classified (or
inchuded in & disposal group that is classified) as held for sale

Adoption of these amendments did not have any fmpact on the Parent Company’s consolidazed
financial staternents.

*  Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Carh Flows, Disclosure Initfative

as foreign exchange guins or losses) The Parent Company has provided the required information
it Note 20 to the financisl statements. As allowed under the transition provisions of the standard.
the Company did not present comparative information for the vesr erided December 31, 20116,

¢ Amendments to PAS 12, fcome Tires, Recognition of Deferred Tar Assets Jor Unrealized
Logses

mnount,
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Ihe amendments has no effect on the Parent Company's consoliduted financial position and
performance as the Parent Company has no deductible emporary differences or eesets that are in
the scope of the amendments.

t M.
The Company presents essets and liabilitics in the parent company statement of financial position
based on current or noncurrent classification. An asset is classified as current when it is

Expected tor be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cvele:

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,;

Expecied to be realized within twelve months after the reparting period; or

Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o sefle o liability for at
lenst twelve months after the reporting pertod,

All other assets are classified 85 noncurrent,

A liubifity i classified as currsnt when:

* iz expected to be setiled in normal operating cycle

*  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

. hhduhhmlﬂﬁﬂ&nﬁuh:mmﬂulﬂuﬂmmhﬁngpeﬁudm

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the linbility for a1 ieast twelve manths
afier the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities a3 nongurment,

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and with banks.

Flingn

Financial instruments are recognized in the parent company statement of financial position when the
Compeny becomes & party to the contractua| provisions of the Instrument. The Company determines
the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition and, where allowed and Appropriate, re-
evaluutes this designation at each reporting date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financisl pssets are recognized on the settlement date. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets withia
the period generally established by regnlation or convention in the market place,

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value of the consideration given (i the case of an
asset) or received (in the case of n Hability) Except for finencial assets at fair value through profit or
losg (FVPL), the initial measurement of financial sssets includes transaction costs,

Financinl assets under PAS 39, are clussified as either finuncial assets ot FYPL, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity (HTM) investments or AFS financial asssts. The Company’s financial assets are of
the nature of loans end receivables and AFS financial assets. A< of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company has no outstunding financial assets at FVPL and HTM investmans.

Under PAS 39, financial Habilities are classified as FVPL er other financial Habilities. The

Company®s financial liabilities are of the nature of other financial liabilities. As of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company has no ocutstunding finencial Liabilities st FVPL,




i active market. These ame not entered into with the intention of immedinte or short-term resale und
are not classified us financial nssety heid for trading, designated as AFS financial Assets or designated
at FVPL. This accounting policy relates to “Cash™, “Trade and other recetvables” and “Due from
reluted parties” accounts in the parent company statement of financial position.

Lonng and receivables are recognized initially ut fair value, which normally periains fo the billable

tnt. Afier initial measurement, loans and recoivables are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, fess nllawunce for impairment losses, Amortized cost s
caleulnted by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral
pirt of the effective interest rate. The amortization, if any, is incleded in the “Interest income™
seeount in the parent company statement of comprehensive income. The losses wrising from
tmipaiement of loans end receivables are recognized in the profit or loss.

AFE Finanefal Assets

AFS financial assets are those fnvestments which are designated as such or do not qualify to be
classified as designated as FVPL, HTM investments or lonpng and receivables. They are purchised
and beld indefinitely and may be sold in reaponse 10 liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. The
unrealized gains 2nd losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS financial masets are excluded, net of
Lax, from reported earnings and ars reported as & separste account {net of Lix where applicable) in the
squity section of the consolidated swtement of financial pozition.

Equity lovestments classified as AFS financial nssets tha do not have quoted market price in an
active market and whise fair value cannot be reliabiy measured are carried ut cost,

when the right of payment has been establishad, The losses arising from impairment of such
Investments are recognized as provision for impairment losses in the profil and Joss,

This sccounting policy relates to the Compuny's investment in NOW Telecom,

Other Financial Liahiliries

Fssued financinl instruments or their companents, which are not designuted at FVPL, are classified 1
other fingncial liabilitics, where the substance of the contraciual amangement resalis in the Company
having an obligation cither to deliver cash or another financial asset to the bolder, or 10 satisfy the
ebligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cush or another financial asset for o fined
Aumber of own equity shares, The tomponents of issucd financial nstruments that coritain beth
linbility and equity elemants are accounted tor separately, with the equity component being gss| gned
the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as 1 whole, the amount separately determined
ns the fair value of the Liability component on the date of issue.

After initinl measurement, other financial linhilities are subsequently measured ar amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into aceount any discount
or premivm on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest mic. This
sccounting policy applics primurily to the Company's “Accounts payable and accrued expenses”,
“Dhue 1o related parties”, “Loans payable” and other obligations that meet the abave definition (other
than liabilities covered by other accounting standards, such as income tax payable),




i ithholdi %
CWTs, included under “Other curnent assels™ nccount in the parent company slatement of Nnancial
pesition, are amount withheld from ineeme subject to expandad withholding taxes, CWTs can he
utilized as payment for income taves provided that these are properly supported by centificutes of
creditable tax withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income txation, CWT's which are
expected to be utilized as payment for income taxes within twelve months are classified us currant
wssel. CWTs are stated at NRV.

Y n

either:

* Inthe principal market for the esget or Hasility, or
* Inthe absence of s principal merket, in the most advantageous market for the sset or linhility

The principal or the most advantegeous market must bo sccessible to the Compaory

T'he fair value of an asset or a liability 15 measured using the assumptions that marke: parTicipants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that morket perticipants oct in their ecanomic
best imteregt

All assets and linbilities for which fsir value is measured or disclosed in the parent compuny {inaniy)
stitements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowes:
leve! input that is significant to the fair value measuroment ax a whole:

*  Level 1 - Quoted (unadjosted) market prices in active markets for identical pssets or liahilities

*  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
Mmiersurement is directly or indirectly ohservahle

' Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant i 1he fair value
measirement is unobservable

For assets and labilities that are recognized in the parent compony Fnancial statements on g recurrizg
basis, the Company determines whether transfies have occurred between Levels in the hicrarchy by
re-asessing categorization (basad on the lowest level mput that is significant to tha fair valye
measuremant 35 o whole) at the end of each reporting perfod.

LT




Far the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and linbilities
o the basis of the natire, charnoteristics and reks of the asser or liability and the level of ific falr
value hiermrchy as expliined ghove.

— 10a3 e
Carrigd ar Amartized Cost

The Company assesses a1 sach reporting dite whether there is objective evidence that a frnuncial or
group of financial nssets j= irpaired,

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impaiTment exists indiyvigdual Iy fior
fmancinl assets that are indivi Iy significant, and individually ar collectively for financial sesets
that are not individualiy significant. If it is determined thar no objective evidence of impainmen
£xists for an individually assesead firnancial assel, whether significant or not, the assct is included g
grotp of financial nssets with similar credit nisk characteristics and that group of financial assets i
collectively assessed for impairment.

These characteristics are relevant 1o the estimation of future cash flows for Broup of such asscey by
bemyg indicative of the debiors! abifity to pay sl amaunts due according to the contractia] tenms of
the asscts being evaluped Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for whicl an
inpairment loss is, or continues o be, recognized are not included in g collective assessment of
ihprirment.

If, in 2 subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decragsss and the decrease can be
related objectively to an eventoccurring after the impairment was recognized, the previousky
fecognized mpainment loss is reversed, Any subsequent reversal of an impairment lass i recognized
w1 the profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not excesd 1S amortized

AFS Financial Assets Carvied ot Cost

If there is objective evidence that an Impairment loss has been incurmed on an unquotad equity
nstrument that does not have quoted price in ar active market and that is not earried ut fair valye
because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss s measured a8

Financial Assers
A financial nsset {or, whers applicable, a par of & financial asse or part of a group of similur
financial essers) is derccognized where:

he rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

*  the Compurny retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligaticn
to-pay them in full withowt material delay to a third party under s ‘pass-through’ EITENZEMEnt; of

AR g




*  the Company has transTerred jts nights 10 receive cash flows from the asset and either {a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asser, or (b} has neither transferrsd nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the ssser but hs transterred control of the fseet

Where the Company has transferrsd 8 rights to receive cash flows from an wsset or has entered inio a
“pass-through” srmngement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks und
rewnrds of the asset nor transfiered control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Cempany's comtinuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvemnent that mkes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at th lower of the original Carrying emount of the
naset and the maximum emount of consideration that the Company could be required 1o repey,

invalvement is the amount of the transferred nsset that the Company may repurchase, except tha in
the case of 3 written put option {including & cash-settlag aption or similar provision) o an psset
maeasurad ar fair value, the extent of the Company's continuing involvement is limited 1o the lower of
the fur vilue of the transferred zsset and the option exercise price.

On derecognition of & financial assed in iis entirety, the difference between the carmying amount and
the sum of (a) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less nny now Enbility
assumed) and (b} any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognized directly in equity is recognised
in the profit or Joss,

Financial Liabilitles

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the lisbility is discharged or cancelled
or has expired. Wherz an existing financil lisbility is replaced by ancther from the same londer on
substuntially different terms, or the terms of an existing linbility are substantinlly modified, sych an
cxchange or modification s treated as it derecognition of the original Hability and the rectgmition of §
new liability, and the difference in the FESpective carrying amounts s recognized in profit or loss,

Financiaf assets and financial Liabilities are offset und the net amount is reported i the consalidated
starement of fAinancial position if, and anly if, there is & currently enforceahle legal right 1o offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intentlon to settle on & net basis, or 1o reafize the gose and settfs
the liahility simultanecisly, The Company assesses that it has a currently enforcaable right of offsed
if the right is not mnmm on & future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of

Inv L

An ussncinte is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence i
the power to participaie in the financial and operating policy degisions of the investes, but is pop
cantrol ar joint control over those policics. The considerations made in determining significant
influence are similar 1o thoss necessary 10 determine contrel over subsidinries,

The Company's investment in associate is accounied for under the cost method of accounting.

Uinder the cost method, the investment in the associnte is carried in the Parent company statement of
financial position at cost plus past-acquisition changes arising only from additional investments less
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cost method, the Company determines whether it is necessany recognize any edditional umpairment
loss with respect 1o the Compuny’s net investment in the BESOCIATE,

The reporting dates of the sssociate and the Company are identical and the asso jte” # ACCOUrting
polickes conform 1o those used by the Company for fike transactions mnd events in similar
circumstances,

.
F‘rﬂg}ll:.‘ﬁjr and Equipl:l‘.ltnt are stated at cost, not of accumulited flup'l&:ialimlmd BCcumiulated
nciuding import duties, nonrefundable purchase taxes and any directly attributsble coss of hrin'gng
the asset o its working condition and location for its imended use. Such cost mehades the cost of
replacing part of such property End oquipment if the recognition critenis are met.

Diepreciation is computed on & straight-line basis over the estimgisd useful lives of the property and
equipment as follows:

. Years
Transportation equipment 5
Office equipment ¥
Fumniture and fixtures 2

l.easehold improvements are depreciated over their useful lives of five (3) years or the term of the
lease, whichever is shorter.

Lomputer Software o )
Computer software s initinlky recognized at enst Following initial recogunition, the computer
software is carried at cost less sccumulated amortization and anvy secumulated impairment in value

The net book value of Computer software is recognized as part of "Other noncurrent Rs5ets” account
tn the consolidated statement of financial position. The net book value of Computer softwite s of
December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted fo #4965 and B59.702, respectively. The amortization
expense is recognized in “Depreciation and amortization™ secount in the consolidated statement of

LT
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Property and Equipment ang Other Nonfinancial Assers

The Company asscsses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that it prepenty and
equipment and other nonfinancial assers may be impaired when events oF changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying values may not be secovernble, Ifany such indication exists or when annual
impairment testing for an asseq is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset's recoverabls

been determmned, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asser ip prior
years. Such reversal is recognized in the prefit or loss.

Imvesiment in Associate
The Company determines whether ji is ReCeanaTy to recogiize any additional impiirment koss with
respect to the Compeny’s net investment in sssociate, The Company determines at each financial

Comm

The Company has ssusd capital stocks that are classified as equity.  Incremental costs directly
attributable 1 the issuznce of new shares O opiioas are shown in equity as g deduction from procesds
The excess of proceeds from isspange of share over the par value are credited to shire premium.

approved afler the reporting date are deals with s an event afier the reporting dute. Defigiy may
al=o include effect of chunges in Accounting palicy as may be required by the standard’s mansitional

Deposit for future stock subscription represents the amount receivad thist will be applied as paymen;
in exchange for a fixed mumber of the Company's own equity instruments, Tt is classified ax RN equity
item if there is sufficisnt unissued suthorized capital siock, or if in case the unissued authorizsd
capital stk is insufficient to cover the amount of deposit, (a) the BOD and stockholders have
approved a proposed increase in authorized capilal stock for which n deposit was rece ived, and




(B the proposad increase was filed with the SEC us of financiaf reporting date; otherwise. (he deposii
15 classified ag g limbility,

The following specific recognition criteria musy also be met before revenue s recogmized:

the fair value of the consideration received, excluding sales taxes, discounts, retums and rebates, if
any. Revenues that falls in this category includes sales of softwars licenses, Safes of goods are
included under “Salas™ in profit or loss,

Service, Marketing, Hiﬂmmﬂfﬂmﬂm' Fees

Fees are recognized when the related services have been rendered, Revenues that fialls in this
category mchide Software services and Broadband services, Services, marketing. management g
consultincy fees arm included under “Service fiaes™ in profit or loss.

feterest
Interest income is recognized as inlorest accrucs using the effective intercsi method.

C E

Cost and expenses are decreages i sconomic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decroase of assets of incumence of liabilities that resule in decreases in equity, other than
those relating 1o distributions o equity participants. Cost angd expenzes are recognized whan the
seTvices are used or the eXpenses are incusred.

Cost of Sales

Creneral and Administrasiog Espenses
Cieneral and administrstive “xpenses consist of expenses incurred in the direction and general

administration of day-1o-day operition of the Company and are generally recognized when the
services wre used or the eXpenses arise

Taxes

Current Toy

LT
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Lgterred Tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the Hability method, on a1l temporary differences at the reporting date
Between the tax bases of sssets and liabilities and their carrying smounts for financial reporting
purposes,

Deferred income tax liabilitiss are recognized for all taxable tEmporary differences, Deferred InEome
tx masets are recognized for all dedystible ary differences and carry forward benafiis of
unused fax credits in the form of net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and minimum COrporate
income tax (MCIT) 1o the sxtent that it is probable that raxshle profit will be availablz ngmingt which
the dechactible temporary differences can be utilized

Ihe carrying amount of defarred income tax assets is reviewed at such reporting date end reduced o
the extent that it is po lenger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

taxable profit will allow the deferred INCOmE tax assets 1o be recovered. Deferred income tax FECTTS
and linbilities are measured at the tax rates thut are expected fo apply 10 the period when the assel is
realized or the linbility is settled bused on tax rtes {and tax laws) that have bean enacted or
substuntively snacted us of the reporting date,

Deferred income tax assets und defarred incoms tx lisbilities wre offset, if n legally enforceabie right
exists to offiet current Moome X assets Againg current income tax liabilities and the deferred incoene
mmmhmnmbhnwm&mmlmmnwmmty

The determingtion of whsether an Irrangement is, of contains, 4 lease is based om the substagice of the
crongement at inception date and involves as assessment of Whether the fulfilment of the armngemen:
Is dependent on the use of 8 specific asset or assets ar fhe AITAngement conveys a right to use the gesep

Operating leases represent those leases under which substantially all the risks gnd rewards of ownership
of the leased sssets remain with the lessor. Lease payments under an operating leass pre recognized as
Al Expense on straight-line bases over the term of the lease,

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amouont of the
chligation, If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are made by discounting
the expected futire cash flows ara pre-iax rate that reflects current market assessments of the tipe
value of money and, where ippropriate, the risks specific 1o the limbility, Where discounting is usad
the increase in the provision dus t the Passage of time is recognized as an imerest expense,

Where the Company expects some or all of a provision 1o be reimbursed, the reimbursement s
recognized as & separate asset but anly when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense
relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss, net of any reimbursement.

Contingencies ]

Contingent liabilities are not mc?niaad in the parent company financial statements. These are
diselosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits is remoia
Contingent assets are ok recognized in the parent company financial statements b disclosed in the




Se
For management purposes, the Company's Operating segments are orgunized and managed separutely
According to the nature of the services offered.

Effective beginming on or after Jamary |, 2074

*  Amendments 1o PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measuremenr of
Share-bosed Pasmment Transactions

Ihe Company s nssessing the potentind effect of the amendments on its Parent Company
finencial staternents,

LU LR




aption 10 recognize in other comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss, the volatility thay
could arise when PFRS 9 s spplied before the new insurance vontracts standard i jssued. On the
other hand, the deferm) approach gives entities whose activities ure predominantly connecied
with insurance an optional temporary exemption from applying PFRS 9 until the eurlier of
tpplication of the forthcoming insurance contracrs standard or Janusry 1, 2021

The overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available to g entity [ i s no
previously applied PFRS 9

The amendments are not appixcable to the Company since ni activitics are predominartly
sunnecied with insurance or issue MSUrANGE contracts,

PFRS 13, Revenue from Contraces with Customers

PFRS 15 establishes a4 new five-step mode! that will apply to revenue arising from contracts wish
customers. Under PFRS |5, revenue i recogrized at an amount that reflects the consideration 1
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or ssrvices to g
customer. The principles in PERS 15 provide & more structured approach to measuring usd
FeCognizing revense,

The new revenue stundard i applicable to all entities and will supersede ol current revenue
recognition requirements under PERGs Either a full retraspective application or a modified
retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after January |, 2018
Early adoption is permitted. The Company plans 10 adopt the new standard on the required
eiffective dare using the full retrospective method,

The Company is currently assessing the impacr of PFRS 15,
FFRS 9, Financial Instruments

FFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments Project and replaces PAS 30, & mancial
Instruments; Recognition and Measurement, and al] peevious versions of FFRS 9. The standard
introduces new reguirements for classification und meAsIIEment, impairment, and hedge
mezounting, Retrospective application i required but providing comparative information is not
compulsory. For hedge mCCounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with
some limited exceptions.

value changes for these investments in OCL The Company is in the process of determining how
i measure the fuir value of these unguoted imvestmants.

(RN
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Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value
(Part of Annual Improvements to PFRS: 2014 - 2016 Cyele)

The amendments elarify that an entity that is @ venturs capital organization, or other qualifiing
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investrment-by-investment basis, 1o measure ity
Investments in associates and joint ventures at fuir value through profit or Joss. They also clarify
that if an eotity thai is nat iself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint
venlure that is an investment entity, the emtity may, when applying the equity method clect 1o
retain the Fair value messurement applied by that investment CRLity associate or joint venture to
the investment entity associate’s or joint venture's interests in subsidinries. This election is made
separatoly for cach Investment entity associnte of joint venture, at the Inter of the date on which
(a) the investment entity sssocinte or joint venture is initinlly recognized; (b) the associate or ot

The amendmeants should be upplied retrospectively, with earlier application perminted.
Amendments 1o PAS £0, favestmen Froperty - Transfers of investrient Properyy

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer propery, including propery undar
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that o
change in wse occurs when the PIOPETTY Meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of mvestment
property and there is evidence of the changs in use, A mere change in management’s intentions for

period in which the eatity first applies the amendmants, Retrospective upplication s anly permitied
\F this is possible without the use af hindsight.

Smee the Company’s current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, the Company does
not expect any effect on its Parent Company finencial statements upon adoption of thase

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Curremey Tranractions and Advancy
Consideration

an entity may apply the interprotation prospectively to all assets, expenses and (ncome in it5
scope that are initially recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the

entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of n prior reparting period presentod as
comparative information in the financial statemenis af the reporting period in which the entiny

first applies the interpretation.

Since the Company's current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, the Company does
nol expect any effect on its Parent Company finencial statements upan adoption of this

titerpretation,
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Lifective beginning an or after January |, 2019
* Amendments to PFRS 9, FPrepayment Features with Negarive Compensarion

The amendments to PERS 9 allow debt instruments with negative compensation Prepayment
features to be measured at smortizad cost or fair value through other comprebensive income, An

1o the eccounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemprions for lessees - Jeases of low-value assets (e, personal computers) and shortterm

Lessor sccounting under PFRS 16 i substantially unchaneed from today’s sccounting under
PAS 17, Lessors will continue to classify all leages using the same classification principle as in
PAS I?mdﬂﬂhaumxhﬂ“mmnt}'puufm; operating and finance leases

Early application is permitied, but not before an cntity upplies PFRS |5, A lessee can choosa to
apply the standard using sither a fiull retrospective or 8 modified retrospective approach. The
standard’s transition provisions permit certain relipfs.

The Company is currently nssessing the impact of adopiing PFRS 14,

*  Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term fterests in Associates and Joint Venturey
mmdmmmfﬂslﬁﬂmﬁ'mumﬁﬂmmuldmumfwhnyﬂm Imterests i an
assockets or joint vemture to which the equity method is not applied using PFRS 9. An entiry shall

apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or affer Janvary 1, 2019, Earller
apphication is permitted.
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scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating 1o inferest and penattics
associated with uncertain tax treaiments.

The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

*  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax [reatments separately

*  The sssumptions an entity makes ahour the examination of tax reatments by Laxation
authorities

*  How an entity determines taxable profit { mx loss), tax hases, unused tBX losses, unused s
credits and tax rates

*  How an entity considers changes in ficts and circumstances

The Company is currently mssessing the impact of adopting this interpretation,
Daferred effecreviey

* Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Comrribution of dsrers between an Invertor ang
irs Axsociate o Joinl Vemure

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of o subsidinry tat is sold ar contributed to an associae or jolnt venture. The
amendments clarify that o full Eain or loss is recognized when o transfer to an associate or joing
vemture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, Buviness Combinations, Any gain or joss
resulting from the sale er contribution of assels that does not constituie a businesy, however, i«
recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associnte or joint venture.

; HanAnnnuﬂqJﬂnmuum Estimutes

The parent company financia! statemants prapared in accordance with PFRSs eGUINe mansgement fo
make judgments and estimates that affect smounts reported in the parent company financial
statements and related notes, The Judgments and estimates uscd in the parent company financial
slatements are based upon management’s svalustion of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date
of the parent company financial statemeants. Actun! resalts could differ from such estimates,

Uperating Lease - Company as Lessee

The Company has entered into a commercial Propenty lease on its office, The Company hag
determined that it does not retain all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the propertics
which are leased under operating lease arrangements.

LT
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Estimates

The key mmrpﬁmmm-nm the fiture and ather key sources of estimation uncertainty m the
statement of financial position date that have a significant risk cansing material adjustments 1o the
carrying amounts of the assets and lizhilities within the next financial years are discussed helow:

Recoverability of fnvesomen in NOW Telecom, Inc.
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there i any objective evidence that the

When there is objective evidence of impairment, the Company is required 10 determine the
recoverable amount of the Investment, which is the sum of the (i) market valye of comparable radin
frequencies, and the (i) present vilye of estimated fiture cash flows that can be generated by
frequencies with no comparable market valye.

i Markar valug of comparable radio frequencies

Market value of comparable frequencies is the estimuted market vithiz of the radio frequengjes
owned by NOW Telecom based on the implicd price per MHzPop of the most recen comparable
merket transaction involving buy-ouits of entities with mdio frequencies.

. Present value of extimated fiture caxh Hows penerated by radio frequencier with ne  comparuble
market wifue

The key assumptions used by the Company in determining the pressnt valpe of estimated fiturs
cash flows generated by frequencies with no comparable market valug are as follows:

v Discoumt rate
The discount rate s based on the avernge percentage of the NOW Corporation's weighted
avernge cost of capital This rate is further adjusted 1o reflacy the market assessinent of any
risk for which futire estimates of cash Nows have not been ad]

= Long-term growth raie
Cash flows hevond the five-year period are extrapelated using a determined constan| growtl
rate 10 arrive a1 the termingl vitlue,

CHrTYing amount of the investment in NOW Telecom smounted toB1,289,278.350 05 of
December 31, 2007 and 2016 (see Note B

dmpairment of Trade and Other Recetvables, Due from Related Parties and Advances ro 4 {ilicies
The Company assesses at aaeh reparting date whether thers s any objective evidence that x finangal
asset is impaired. To determine whaether there s obective evidence of impairment, the Company
considers factors such as the probability of isolvency or significunt finanejal difficulties of the
debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

LT




doubtful aocounts amounted to PS,495 and nil i 2017 and 201 5, respectively (see Note 71,
Allowance for jm i

The aggregate STy ing amounts of trade and other receivables, due from reluted parties and advances
1o affilintes amounted 1o BI20,053,208 gnd P143,492 262 as of December 31, 2017 gnd 2016,
respectively {sec Notes 4, 6 and 1.

expectations differ from previoys estimnates due (o physical wear and lear, technical or comimerejal
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the uwse of the assety, In addition, the Company"s estimution
uf the usefinl lives of property end equipment and comparter software is based an collective

yeurs ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectivaly {see Note [4). The aggrepate net book values
of property and equipment and compiier software amounied 1o P7.685,125 and B5 83 J16 a8 of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Notes 2 and 7).

Estimaring Impeirmen; af Property and Equipment, Computer Software and Creditable

Withkolding Taxes (CH TS
The Company asscases impairmant on assets whenever events or changes in circumsiances indicate
that the carrying amount of an assel may not be recoverable. The factors that the Company considers
important which could trigger an impoiment reyiew Inzlude the following;




In determining the present value of estimated future cach Hows expected 10 be venerated from the
continued use of the assets, the Company is required to make estimates and BESumpions that can
materially aflect the parent company financial statements. N provision for impairment on CWTs
Waas recognized in both 2017 and 2016 The aggregate currying value of property and equipmen,
computer software and CWTs amounted to B9.886.719 and ps 75 7,347 as of December 31, 201 7 nnd
2016, respectively (see Notes 2, § and n.

The Company revigws the camying amousts of deferred income tax assets M each reporting date and
reduces the amounts (o the extent that it is no lenger probable that sufficient taxahle profit will be
availabls 1o allow gl or part of the deferred income tax assels 1o be utihized, Howe ver, there is po
asiurance that the Company will generate sufficient taxable profit 1o aliow &ll or part of its deferreg
ineame tax assets to be utilized

The Company did not recopnize deferred income oy assets on temporary differences and
carryforward benefits of unused NOLCO and umused tax credits from excess MCIT ETOURtE to
P6.347.834 and P8.981,511 as of Decernber 3| - 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 15), The
Company believes that it is not probable that sufficient taxaie profit will be availabls to allow all or
pant of the deferred income taX nssets to be utilizad

Trade and Other Receivables

01T 2016

Trade:
Reluted parties (Note 9) FIS1.895294 105,735,784
Third party 21,739,620 13,170,921
Others (Note 9) 4,203,729 3,566,880
177,838 652 122,473, 504
Less allowance for imipairment loss 12,689 | 2,604 887

P165,149.2455 Pi09 778712

Trade and nontrade receivables from third partics mre nominterest-bearing and are genzrally on
30to 60 duys' term,

Others include sdvances to officers &nd personnel and outstanding loan receivable from Holy Cow
Animation, Ing, (Holy Cow) (see Note o).

Movements in allowance for impairment loss on trade receivables from third parties are as lollows:;

= 2017 nis
Balance ut beginning of year P12,694 852 Pi2,101,574
Provisions (Note 13} - 302 908
Reversals (5,49%) =
Balance at end of year P12,689 387 F12.654 882
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5 Dther Current Asseis

- 2017 2016
Prepayments PI5.860,636 B3 417477
Deferred Input VAT 1,735,627 13,058
Input VAT 2858594 372,160

Creditable withholding tax (net of 2llowance for
impafrment losses amounting o P708.270 as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016) 2,201,594 126,431
P42.656.451 P1,829329

Propayments inelude deforred ransaction costs amounting to B10,763,277 and B3, 360, 00 mcurred as
of Decemnber 31, 2017 and 20146, respectively, in connection with the Company’s plasned offering of
redecmable, convertible, non-participating and nan-voting Peso-denominned preferred shares

tsee Note 12). T also inchodes the prepayments made by the Company in purchasing TBM Licenses
related to installation of emai] system for the Supreme Court of the Fhilippines amaunting to

F23,638 466,

6. Investments and Addvances

2017 06
Investments in ovailshle-for-sale (AFS)
financial assey #1,289 278 350 PILI8927R 350
Advances (Nole 2} 23592818 23,500 414
Investment in subsidiaries 8,884,151 6,434 (3 }:
Flgll.Tﬂ.:H #1319 505 299
AES Fimancial ALset

The Company has an imvestment in NOW Telecom classified as AFS financial psser

On April 28, 2006, the erdered intp a Memomndum of Agreement (MOA) with NOW
Telecom and five (5) controlling stockholders of NOW Telecom namely, Top Mega Enterprise, Lid
loyeelink Holdings, Lid, GHL Emerald Investment, Ine., Food Camp Industries and Marketing, Tnc
ithe five companies are collectively refarred to hereafier s NOW Telecom stockholders) to swap or

Under the MOA, the Company shall fssue iis shares in exchange for interest in NOW Telecom, The
agresd upon swap of shares was subject to certain conditions, including WECESSArY comporate and
regulniory approvals. The MOA wis appraved by the Company's stockholders on June 2, 2004

as originally imlended. As result, the Company acquired 2,656,580 NOW Telecom shares
constituting 19% equity interest in NOW Telecom, in exchange for new shares of the Compuny, with
Par valuz of P| with an 2pgregate value of P1,289,278.3 0. or effectively, at o price of P485.32 per
NOW Telecom share,
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The Company applied for an increase in its suthorized capital stock to accommodate the forego ing
transaction (see Note 12}

In September 2006, the SEC issued Certificate of Approval of Viluation of Shares of Stock of NOW
Telecom and Certificate of Increase in Caprtal Stock of the Company.

In 2008, the PSE approved the application for the listing of the additional Bl 280 778,350 MmO
shares to cover the share-for-share swap transoctions with the NOYW Telecam shareholders.

On February 12, 2018, the franchise granted to NOW Telegom has been extended for another

25 years or until Year 2043 under Republic Act No. 10972 which was signed for approval into law by
the President of the Republic of the Philippines, With the said tow, NOW Telecom, as a
lelecommunications company, now has privileges similar to those granted to existing dominu
players in the industry.

As of December 31, 2017 and 201 6. the Company”s investment in NOW Telecom amounted to
P1.289.278,350 and no impairment was recognized for each of the years then ended.

fnvestments in Subsidiaries and Associate

2017 2016

Investments in
Subsidiarics (net of allowance for impairment
loss of P23, 400,000 as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016) P8,584,131 BA.A34, 131
Asgociote (net of allowance for impairment loss
of P6,000,000 a5 of December 3 1. 2007 and

201 6, respectively) - -
Balonge at end of year = PH.884,11] B6,634,13] :
Percentage of
Chvnarshin Croat
Mame of Companies 017 2018 0T af1a
Subsidiaries
|-Resoures Comulting Taternational, kne. WE% o0 BSO00000 3 350,000
(F-Reaoures)
J-Span IT Services, Inc. [JSIT) 1% 100 2,634,131 2.634,131
I-Professional Search Notwodk, Inc. AR T00% [T 2040, 000
(I-Professional)
Porteon SEA, Inc. (Poreon) 100%% 100% 250, 00 250,004
Softrigges Interactive, Ina. (Safirigger) 67T%  6TH IDA0000 23400000
Arrochaig
Softweb Consulting, tne. {Saftweh) 1% Hhs i 0, 1) 6,000,000

I-Resource

Lm May 25, 2011, the SEC approved the imcorporation of 1-Resource Consulting International, Inc. ps
o wholly-owned subsidiary of the Campany. The primary purpese of I-Resource is to provide
consulting, technical sdvice and professional sdvisory services fo persons, firms, assoctation,
corparations, partherships and other entitics.
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JSIT

On March 17, 2011, the Company’s BOD confirmed/ratified the establishment of the Company's
wholly-cwned subsidiary named JSIT in Tokyo, Japan. The primary purpose of 151T = 10 provide IT
SEIVices,

ol iEer
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, iovestment in Softrigger has been fully-impaired,

Farteon

Un June 10, 2011, the SEC approved the ncorporation of Forteon SEA, Inc_, wholly-vwned
subsidiary of the Company with the primary plirpose of engaging in the busines: of manufacturn B,
muarkeling und selling of vehicles of all rvpes, including but not limited to electric vohloles

I-Professional

On August 15, 2012, the SEC approved the incorporation of I-Professional Search Network Inc., p
whelly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The primary purpose of [-Professicnal s the recruitmen
and placement of workers the Philippines,

On Janunry 25, 2017, Velarde, Ine. entered into u subseription agreement with i-Professional for the
subscription of 6,750 common sheres of the lntter, representing 259 intorest, thereby reducing the
awnership of the Company in i-Professional from | 00% to 759,

Seaftwed
Un December 20, 2010, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with Sofrweh for En
nvestment amounting 1o P6,000,000, representing n 50% interest in Softweh,

Softweb specializes in Lotus consulting and truining services as well os comprehensive Domineg
working solutions. Ay an IBM partner, Softweb offers the full range of [BM services and licensed
products mtegrated in its own list of business salutions, software development and training.

In 20146, the Company recognized additiona! provision for impairment loss on its investment with
Softweb amounting to 83,076,725 which recuces the carmying amount of the investment te nil
(sce Mote 14).

Advarcer o Affillares

2T 2016
Thumbmob Philippines, Ine. { Thumbmahb) B14,344 369 B14.344 360
Holy Cow 9,248,449 9,248,449

Softweb (net of allowsnee for rmpairment loss
of B3, 000,000 in 2017)

F13.592 818 #2592 818

@l Tumbmeb Philippings, Ine, and Holy Cow Animation, fnc.

The Comnpany entered into agreements with Thumbmob and Holy Cow for the subseription of
Thumbmob and Holy Cow shares. Holy Cow s a full service animation studio that produces 20,
1D, Flash and HTMLS animation and special effect unimation for the media and entertainmeni
business. Thumbmob develops, publishes, nad distributes games and applications for social
networking and mobile environments. It serves orunds, businesses, and institutions,
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These are currently recorded under “Advances to aflslintes" in the parent company statement of
finencial position pending the increase in the authorized capital stock of the investes CoOmpEnfey,
The spplications for the increase in authorized capital stock are not yet filed with the SEC as of

April 6, 2018.

B} Softweb Consulting, Inc.

Advances o Softweb amounted to B3, 000,000 85 of T

anary |, 2016, This pertaing to deposit for

Future stock subseription in Softweb pending the increase in its suthortzed capital stock

In 2016, the Compasiy recognized provision for imp

amaunting to B5,000,000 (see Note 14),

airment loss on its advances 1 Softweh

Movements in allowsnce for impairment loss on envestment in associate are a5 follows:

017 26
Balance at beginning of year P6 000,000 P2923 27
Provisions !Em 14} - ANTH T2
Bulance at end of year - F6,000,000 B, D00 (W

Froperty and Equipment

2017
Lessehold Tramaportation Office Furniture amd
Improvements _ Equipment _ Equipment Flatures L
it
Balamtes ot beginning
af year PIAISTI0 PISS6027T  Ples209%7 PTI0I90  #3LTIVITI
Additions - 128,750 6d45,724 = §3MATE
Balances at snd of yeur 3315710 15,080,027 17.0066,711 TI0N00 3T, 100647
Accumulnted depreciation:
Balinces ot beginning
of year 2.401,508 15,191,753 T.3E009 S5MA61 15,165,759
Deprecintion and
amortization
(Mot 14} 415,229 146,071 3,620,504 68,932 4370728
Halsnees a1 end of year 1836734 15337804 10,656,548 SUSIB4 319435487
Moot bk valises M F651.203 H,-IIIEIEE F:]-Iets FT 675,160
20ib
Leaselodd  Teanaportation Oiffice  Furniture and
g ts i Equipment Fixtres Total
Cioat:
Balances a1 beginning of
year F3325.710 15,165,919 P6,193,436 PT30I99  B25 419,264
__Additions = 690,358 4,617,351 = 5317900
Belanges ai end of year 3335710 15 R60 277 16,520,987 1A e e e

(Forward)




Leasehold  Transpenation Oifice  Furniure and
1 YERERis Equipment Equipmsent Fiutures Tiital
Accumiuinied deprecintion: =
Balances ot beginning af
Fenr PLR0OTEY M4 To80m F3o03 020 B34 P2IA17,157
Pepreclation and
amarveation
(Mot |4} 500,722 396,752 1,043,000 08100 2044 502
Bulances at et of year 2401,505 P, 181753 7,056,039 536462 25065750
Mgt book values P24, 204 PAEH 524 B, 784 948 FIS373T PIETI AT

Cost of fully depreciated sssers still in use amounted 1o PI7.836276 and P17,134,057 as of
December 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively,

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

017 2018

Accrued interest (Note 9) F59. 903,556 FE9 Q0% SRE
Trade payahles:

Third parties 34,326,360 7541618

Related partics (Note 9) 8212678 8,669,812
Accrued expenses IB.679.671 7,943 680
Deferred output VAT 14,954 494 429,620
Withholding tax 1L301,959 3T IRG
Others 929,982 Jf3.ass

138,308,730 91,412,137

Trade puynbles from tivird parties are noninterest-bearing and are generally on 30 to 60 days’ ferm,
Trade and nontrade payables from related parties are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are 1o be
settled upon demand.

(ithers pertain to broadband customens' security deposits which ars refundable upon termination of
contract,

Related Party Transactions

Enterprises and individuals that direatly, or indirectly through one or more itermedianies, control or
arc controlled by or under common control with the Company, including holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, are reluted parties of the Company. Associates and individunls
uwning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the vating power of the Company that gives them
significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers
of the Company and close members of the family of these individuals, and companies associuted with
these individuals also constitute related parties. In considering each possible related entity
relationship, attention is directed to the substancs of the relationship and not merely the legal form,

The Company entered into transactions with related parties, principally consisting of the following:
i, The Company grants interest-free advarnces 1o NOW Telecom for working capital and

administrative requirements. Amounts owed by NOW Telocom as of December 31, 7017 and
2016 amounted to P61,414,356 and B50,476. 206, respectively,
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b On August 30, 2005, the Company entered into a Loan Agrecinent with 1BI for research gnd

development purpeses in connection with IBI's plan to expand its IT platformy and introduce JT-
reluted products and services. The foan is subject to 3.0M% interest per annum and is payuble no
later than August 30, 2010, Partial pre-payrments on the principal may be made prior to this date,
The interest s due and demandable only on maturity date. Interest was recuced by the partics to
3.5% per annum in 2007 and shall be subject to annual repricing subsequent 1o 2007,

On June 25, 2010, both partics agreed to zxtend the maturity of the loan from Augest 10, 2010 1o
Augnst 30, 20012, On August 31, 2012, both parties agreed o further extend the maturity of the
loan up to August 30, 2015, with the interest rate further reduced to 3% per annum starting
January 1, 2013, On August 31, 2015, both parties agread to extend the maturity of the Joan o
five (5} years ending Avgust 30, 2020, Interest was retained at 3% per snnum. Inferest income
amounted fo B467,033 in 2017 and 2016 reflectad ac part ef “Others™ in revenue. As of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, amounts owed by IBI, including interest, amounted to 52 7497744
and F27,000,711, respectively, 1B s an entity under commaon control,

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company has outstunding Habilities 1o Emerald
Investment, Inc, (EIN amaounting to #2,902,918 which arose from the Company s sub-lease
ngreement with EIT that ended in 2011

On January 1, 2013, the Company renewed its service agreement with KPSC for a period of four
(4} years beginning Janwary [, 2013 1o December 31, 2016. On Janaary 3, 2017, the Company
rencwed its service agreement with KPSC for a period of five (3} years beginning

Januery 3, 2017 to January 2, 2032

Under the service agreement, KPSC shall provide consultancy and manpower servicas depending
o the services specifically required by the Contpany. Amounts owed to KPSC, in relation to the
SErvice agreement, amounted to P4 854,216 and #5311 350 as of December 31, 2017 and 201 6,
respactively.

The Company's administrative and mandgement, inciuding key manngement personnel, funciicns
are heing handied by personnel of KPSC,

Outside services incurved by the Company for the provision of key management personncl
services that are provided by KPSC smounted 1o 2,863,646 and P6,176,177, in 2017 and 2016,
respectively. However, in February 2017, the Company transferred the administrative gnd
management functions, including key management personnel, to the Company without anmy effect
in the subsisting service agresment with KPSC. Compensation of identified key managemen
personnzl, classified ay short-term employee benefits, amounted 1o P8_784,7140.

Dase 1o related parties include interest bearing advances from Velards, Inc. for wirking capital

and investment requirements. Intérest rate for these loans is at \8.0% per annum or 1.5% per
month.

from Velarde, Inc. amounting to F264,000,000 ot a conversion price of B 22 per shure computed
on the volume-weighted average price of the Company's shares for n 3-day trading period ended
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April 14, 2016, On June 2, 2016, the stockholders of the Company approved the said increase ift
the Company’s authorized capital stock

On June 20, 2016, additional advances were incurred from Velarde, Inc., through the Intter's
payment of the loans payahle to bank on behalf of the Company amounting (o #44 500,000
{sce Nuote 11),

Outstanding acerued interest presemtzd as part of the “Accounts payable and scerusd exponses”
nmonted to ®39.503, 586 ax of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (sze Note §).

Due to Velarde, Tne. preserted as part of “Duoe 1o related parties” amounted to PI41, 326 866 and
P68,322.816 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The Company charges Velarde, Inc. management fees for the administration and operations of the
coenpanies. Management fiees chargad 1o Velarde, Inc. amounted to P240,000 in 2017 and 2014,
reflected as part of “Others™ in revenpe, The Company has outstanding trade receivables 1o

Velarde, Inc. amounting to 1,680,000 and 1,440,000 &s of December 31, 201 7 and 2016,
respectively.

The Company entered into a non-interest bearing Joun agreement with Porteon Electric Yehicios,
Inc. (Porteon). As of December 31, 2017 anl 2014, the outstanding amount due from Porteon
Eiectric Vehicles, Inc. smounted to #2, 160,300 which is due on demand.

The Company sells IBM licenses 1o Softweb, an associste, Sales of IBM license 1o Softweb
amounted tanil and P5 412,232 in 2017 and 2016, respectively,

The Company entered into agreements with Thumbmob. Holy Cow and Softweb for the
subscription of their respective shares, Please see Note 6 for detailed discussion

Infrastructure build-up and lechnical rervices

In January 2015, the Company entered o two (2) separate one-vear service agresments with
GHT Netwark, Inc. {GHT) and News and Entertninment Network, Inc. {Newsnet) to provide
bandwidth services to its customers, The Company provided the infrastructore build-up and

techmology design and consultancy.

In 30186, the Company amend its contracts with GHT and Newsnet, and includes NOW Telecom
whereas the Company will provide project management services, design and planning services
and installation services covering up 1o 10 major network hubs for 1 total contract price of
P45,000,000 each. Right to receive payments arize tpon acceptance of GHT, Newsnet and NOW
Telecom of completed hubs. Payments are due upon receipt of invoice. A total of nine (9) and
ten { 10) bubs were completed for GHT and Newsnet, respectively as of December 31, 2017.
Service revenue recognized in 2017 and 2015 amounted to P45 000,000 and B30,000,000,
Service revenue recognized in 2017 und 2016 for the techajeal service related 1o Kohill
TewraNode System provided by the Company te NOW Telecom amounts to BE, 000,000 and
B3,700.000, respactively,

Included m the contract entered in 2016, the Company will provide technology cansuftancy
services for a period of ten (10) vears with a monthly fee of B50,000 each for GHT and
Newsnet Service revenue recognized in 2017 and 2016 amounted to B&00,000 and P450,000
each for GHT and Newsnet. Further, the Company also entered into & sontract with NOW
Telecom to provide management consultancy services commenting from January 3, 2016 up to
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lanuary 2, 2018 with an agreed manthly fee of PI50,000. Service revenue related to management
consultancy services to NOW Telecom smounted to PIE00,000 in 2017 and 2016,

The Company has an outstanding receivables from GHT nmounting to P44.032,04% and
28,504,000 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respoctively. The Company also has an
outstanding receivables from Newsnet amounting 1o #353,.441, 589 and P28 504,000 as of
December 31, 2017 and 2014, respectively.

VAS Agreement

In 2015, the Company entered into three (1) separate agreements with NOW Telecom, GHT and
Newsnet (tha Parties), wherein the Partics mutually agreed to collsborate and infercovinect their
respective networks in order for the Company to provide VAS to the public such s cloud hosting
services, virtual private netwark, multimedia content and program services, online game services,
cloud-based multimedia conferencing services, web hosting and ¢loud-based mail and meseaging

Um December 5, 20116, the Parties agreed 10 amend Chapter 3 of their VAS contracts o add
provision on revenue sharing from the broadband revenue on & cost plus margin armingement

Cm December 23, 2016, the Parties furthar agreed o amend their VAS contracts to include
additional foes from sctual ussge of bandwidth and other provision on charging 10 the Compary
o 8 cost-plus margin armangement. Total cost of data services charged 10 cost of servicss
smounted to #3,121,774 and 83,204,621 in 2017 and 2016, respectivaly,

Adveareces

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the outstanding amounts dos from GHT amounied 1o
PE,058.945 and B8,177,301, respeatively. The Company also has an outstanding armounts due
from Newsast amounting to P18,712,857 and #10,73 6,960 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,

respectively,
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Summary of related party transactions affecting the Company's statement of income:

Ceneral anif
Caat ol vales nad sdministrative
thw Year Revenues BErVizes EV[nzey
Velards fng, Mansgement Fee LI P44, 040 " P-
J016 240,000 - 2
NOW Telscom Sarvicoes g T 800,000 - .
s 75041, 00 E: .
Cost of dats services T Lo LIS, -
016 - TS
Lenie e - - 124,iM0
Meware Services Foi 286000, g = .
014 15,450,000 =
Cost of data services 2017 - L3ed p8d &
201a - 1664132 =
GHT Bervipe 217 LT T
s 15,450,000 2 ~
1] Inferesy g7 5 T,0A0 = =
FLTE 467033 . =
KPsC Chutride servicey b ] - BALl %4 334,184
2006 - 43,2394 410 7809893
softweb Haley ] ] = =
2008 S412133 =
047 Lot P e T T T B3 d6d 164

RIS P45 l!-li‘ﬁ!' P 5,703 P A% A9

The Company has entered into CPCTAling lease sgresments in respect of its office premises, Thers are
no restrictions placed upon the Company by entering into these eases, Operating lease payment
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income are ineluded under “Rental”

Ik

Un April 1, 2017, the Company entered into a contract of bease with monthly rental fee of
F13.067 for its principal affice which s located at Unit 5.1, §* Floor, OPL BuiMing, 100 C
Pulanca corner Dola Rosa and Gl Streets Legaspi Village, Makati City from One Palanca Land,
Inc. Said lease contract is effective for one (1) vear and may be renswed upon mutus| agreement
of both parties,

« Un Junuary §, 2017, the Company entered into o contract of lease with monthly rentul fise of

P1O000 for its offige located in 2244 Espaiiz Avenne, Samploc, Manila City from NOW
Telecom for five (5) years ending Decemnber 31, 2020

LT




fiber uptic cable facilities and iz valve-added services for the perind November 11, 2016 w

Total rent expense recognized in 2017 and 2016 amounted to 379,250 and P252,102,
respectively (ses Note 14),

il,

Loans Payable

On December 22, 2018, the Compazny availed & chatel mortgage loan amounting o BS64, 800 from
BDO Unibank, Inc. for the purchase of a vehicle, which serves as the property martgaged. The new
loan requives sixty manthly peyments until November 23, 2021, has & term of 5 vears and bears un
rnterest rate of 9.44% pEr Andim

The currem apd noncurrent partions of the Joan amounted to P97.337 and BI5) 614 respectively, 25
of December 31, 2017 and BET 426 and 449,107, respectively, as of December 31, 2015

Interest expense recognized on this loan emounted w0 #52,015 and B1,607 in 2016 and 2014,
respectively,

ta ! 13 LE M) LW ey} -l 211k + 1Al =
In September 2012, the Company has availed of short tarm loan from Metropolitin Bank and Trust
Company (MBTC) amounting 1o 44,500,000, In December 2013, the said loan was extendad for
anather two (2) years with & maturity date of Janunry 2016, The loan bears intarest ranging from
2.40% and 2,12% o 2.30% in 2016 and 2013, respectively, Interest is payable évery 30 days

U June 20, 2016, the loan from Bank of Makati was pid by Velarde, Inc. on behalf of the Company
(sec Note 9),

Interest expense on the said boan amountad te B371,355 in 2016,

Capital Stock

In nccordance with SRC Rule 68, as Amended (201 h Annex 68-D, below in g summuary of the
Parent Company's track record of registration of securities.

= Mumber of sharss registered  [ssue/offer prics Date of approval
Common shares 28,000, 0 #1.00 July 30, 2003

Common shares 1,289.278.350 B1.00 December 10, 2008
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Um April 28, 2004, the BOD and stockholders approved the increese in the authorized capital stock
from 40,000,000 shares to 1,320,000,000 shares at P1 par value per share. This was subsaquently
approved by the SEC on September 19, 2006,

On November 11, 2006, in secordance with the MOA, the Company issued the additional
[.289,278,350 shares at par value in exchange for the 2,656,580 shares of NOW Telecom
{see Note 6).

[n 2008, the PSE approved the application for the listing of the additional 1,289,278 350 commeon
shares with an issue/share price of P1,00 per share to cover the share-for-share SWap [ransacticons with
NOW Telecom, Inc. (NOW Telocom) sharsholders {see Note 6.

Un May 12, 2010, the BOD and stockhalders of the Company approved proposal to increse i
authorized capital stock from L320,000,000 shares to 5,320,000,000 shares at P par valus per share.
On November 7, 2014, the BOD and stockholders of the Company approved the amendment in the
proposal te increase the authorized capital stock up to 2,700,000,000 shares. (n January 22, 2015,
the Company’s BOD spproved o new proposal to supersede previous increase in authorized capital
stock plans, It was decided for the Company to apply for an increase of 800,000,000 shares ar | par
vaiue per share. (Le., 1,320,000,000 shares 1o 2,120,000,000 shares). The SEC gpproved the
Company s application to increass its authorized capital stock on December |7, 2015

Velarde, Inc. subseribed 200,000,000 shares of the Company and was settled through the conversion
of its advances to the Company amounting to P200,000,000 (see Note %),

On April 29, 2016, the Company's BOD approved the [ncresse in the authorized capital stock of the
Compeny frem 2,120,000,000 shares at Pl par value per share 1o 3,000,000,000 shares at £1 par
value per share, The BOD also spproved the conversion into 2quity of the advinces from Velarde,
Inc. amounting 1o P2164,000,000 a2 a conversion price of P1.22 per share computed based on the
volume-weighted average price of the Company's shares for a 30-day wrading peried ended

April 14,2016, On June 2, 2016, the stockholders of the Company approved the said increase in the
Company’s suthorized capital stock.

Cn July 22, 20186, the Company filed with the SEC its application for the approval of the proposed
increase in its suthorized capital stock. The SEC has not yet appraved the Company”’s application se
of April 6, 2018, As of December 31, 2017 and 2018, the Campany presented the deposit for future
stock subscription amounting to 264,000,000 & part of equity as the Company has met al] the
conditions required by the SEC under Financial Reporting Bulletin No, 06 for such regulation,

O September 2, 2016, the Company’s BOD approved the amendment in the Company’s Articles of
Incarparation to reclussify 60,000,000 unissued common shares 1o redeemable, convertible, non-
participating and nos-voting Peso-denominated prefemred shares, with or without detachabls warrants,
with a par value of P1 per share, On November §, 2016, the stockholders of the Crmpany
representing two-thirds of its outstanding capital stock approved the amendment, On

January 6, 2017, the Company filed an application with the SEC for the approval of the said
amendment. This was approved by the SEC on Jenunary 10, 2017
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Information on the Company’s autharizad capital stock is as follows:

Number of Shares
2017 2016
Common stock, P par valoe 1,060,000,000 2] 20,000 000
Preferred stock, ®! par value G000, 00 -
Balance at end of the year 220,000,000 2 20,000,000

[nformation on the Company's issued and itstanding capital stock i as follows.

017 2016
Mumber of Mizmber of
shares Amouni shiarns Amioum
Balancs ar beginning
ani l:miql']n:}.r 1.517.278 F1.517.278.35%0 L517,278 330 F1517.278.35)
|3, Costs of Sales and Serviges
2017 2k &
Cost of service
Crstside services (Note 9) F14.868156 B6.616,287
Cost of dnta services (Note Y 7. 386,191 320462
Cost of sales 31,980,891 10,215,702
B54,235 218 P20.036,610
14, General and Administrative Expenses
2017 2016
Salarics and other emplovee benefits PI2.801.542 Ri6!.206
Enterttinment, amusement and recrention 5,583 865 4,034,013
Transportation and travel 4,501,181 1,236,841
Depracintion and amortization (Mote 73 4 320,465 2175507
Communication 4,136,146 3,838,498
Taxes and licenses 3,615,665 690,547
Dutside serviees 334064 6,753,114
Advertising and promotion 2367961 4,524,439
Professionn] fees 2,201,653 2,680,597
Oiffice supplies 657,925 2,298 205
Rental (Nate 10) 379,250 252102
Repairs and maintenance 169,391 987,132
Insurance 104,858 206,01
LUtilitses 54,772 497110
Provigion for impairment ioss (Notes 4 end §) = #,669 633
Cithers 994,104 1,251,638
$45.352,942 P40,109.227

ARERN DA




s, Income Taxes

The curment provision for the income tax in

The reconciliation of the Company’s

2017 and 2016 represents MCIT.,

stafulory income tax to provision for income 1ax follo W

T 2017 2016
Statutory income fax ot 0% P2,076,681 BIg0 3
Additions to {reductions in) income tay resubiing
Movement of unrccognized  deferrad income tax
GLE (2,505,063} (3.812.239)
Nondeductible expenses 150,507 J 4TI 158
Inferest income subjeet to final tx {354) (446
F1O80, 771 #3964

No deferred income tax assets were recognized on the followin
carryforward benefits from unused NOLCO and unsed
probable that sufficient taxahla profit will be availa

g deductible temporary differences.
i credit from excess MOIT as it ls not
ble 1o allow the benefit of the deferred income tux

nsgets to be utilized in the future:
L 2017 2014
Allowance for tmpairment losses P3 978,716 P1OT2.716
Excess MCIT 1,248,207 I.A49.013
NOLCD = 3159 TH2
Oithers 126,913 -
B6 147 814 PRYE] 51

As of Dacember 31, 2017, excess MCIT
income tax lishilitics, respectively, are

can be claimed as deduction

from: future mxable income and

Yeur Incurred Year of Expiration MCIT
2017 2020 P727, 806
Wi 2019 839,684
2015 2008 680,717
F2 248 207
The follewing are the movements in NOLCO and excess MCIT:
__17 20146
NQLCO:
Balances at beginning of vear PIL1992T2 P37.933,784
Additions - -
Application (11,199,373} (11432651
Expirstions - (33,301,362
Halances ot the end of year [ = P11,199.273
s 7 2016
Exeesr-MCIT:
Halances at beginning of year P1,645 013 P812.692
Additiosns 1084771 E19.684
Expirmions (128,612} (3,363)
Balarces at end of vear F1.601,172 Pl,645.015




o T

Republic Act (RA) No, 10963 or the Tax Reform for Aceeleration and Inclusion Act (TRAIN wis
signed into law on December 19, 2017 and ok effect January 1, 2018, muking the new tax faw
enncted as of the reporting date. Although the TRAIN changes existing tax law and includes severa)
provisions that will generally affect businesses an & prospective basis, the mansgement nssessed that
the same will not heve any significant impact on the fnsncial statement halances as of the reporting

16,

Basic/Diluted EPS
The following table presents information necessary 1o compuie the basic'diluted EPS:

=4 4 il 2016
Mot income (1) B5R41 400 P47 65
Weighted average mumber of

satsinnding common shares for both bagie and

diluted EPS () 1.517,278.350 |, 517278350

Basic/dilutive eamings per share {(a'h) PO, 4138 BO.0003

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company does not have any dilutive potentisl common
shnres,

17

Financial Instruments

The Company s financial instruments are composed of cash, trade and other recervables, amounts
owed by reluted partics, AFS financial assets, necounts pavable and scorped expensss, amounts owed
1 related purties and loans payable.

The BOD has overall responsiblity for the establishment and oversight of the Company's rish
menggement fremework, The Company’s risk management policies wre established 1o identify and
manage the Company's exposure to fingncial nisks, t0 5ol appropriate trafsaction lmits and eontrols,
and to monitor and assess risks wnd compliance to intemal control policies, Risk minaAgement
policies and structore are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities,

Lompany's due from affiliates has fixed interest ratss. The BOD reviews and approves the podicies
for menaging each of these risks and they are summarized below,

Liguidity Rizk

Liquidity risk is the rigk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Company’'s objsctive to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possihle, that it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its financial lishilities when they fall due, under bath
nosmal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses ar risking adverse cifect on the

Company’s credit standing,

Diecember 31, 2017 and 2016, based on contractual undiscounted cash flows. The twhies also analyzs
the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets that can be yeed to finance maturing financial

LT
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obligations. The analysis into relevan MATITY groupings

ot the reporting period to the contractunl maturity dites.

is based on the remain Ing period af the end

2017
More then 1
. ﬂl_ﬂm od Witk 1 Year vear Totul
Financial aven;
Cmxh 7502968 B- B F7.203 065
Trade sod wther recelvables 165,14% 265 - - 165,149 255
Due from retated partics 163,813,471 - 27,497,744 131,311,215
o P176,465,704 B PRTA9TT44 P303.060.448
Fiwanclal Sabilivies;
Accounts payable and
acerued expenses® F112.055,17% P- B mM21pss7s
[hue 1o relnted parties P4, 442 783 - = 146,442,783
Fulure lnterest om louns payable - 39,134 53,012 91,186
_ Loans pavable - 97337 351,614 448,95
F268,497,915 136,471 P4n4.636  P269,035,005
*Excliding FovrrAment payaklies =
2016
More than |
On demand ~ ‘Within | year year Tota
Financia! grrefs;
iah ¥2.131.0135 " r- AR
Trade and other receivables 109,778,712 - 108,778 T2
Dhie from related Eh_'liﬁ' K Lerg| - 27.030,711 I 120,732
Fi%4,599 745 B PI7.030.711  ®222 030 459
Financial Mabilites:
Accounts peyvable and
bcorued expenses® PR4412,101 [ .- FRd.412,13)
Dhse to related parties TLEED, 550 = - T1.683 550
Fture interest on loans payable - 467,333 - 467,33)
Lians povable - B7426 448,107 236,533
P 56,092 681 P554,759 PFa4% 107 P157.096 547
ff-i.’udmg dovermmens payvaiies
The Company monitors its cash flow position through cash planning. The Company belicves tha

cash sdvances by stockholders are sufficient to mitigate the effiscts of fuctuation in caih flow end 1o
cover disbursements for the day-to-day operations of the Company.

The Company’s management belicves that there is no significant risk in the amounts due by related

parties. The BOD continually reassurss the Company’s strategies for MANAZInG accounts with




I'he following tables show the iging analysis of the Company’s financial assots a3 of
Drecember 31, 2017 and 2016,

IarT
Nether pust due Pust due bt not Pt dup snd =
nor impaired ki fpuiree] burgpalred Total
Financial wrsety;
Casly #1501 948 F- - F7207 068
Trade and ather recelvbdey 1,99] 25§ PES, 157 307 11,689 347 ITT 83 45
[hue from related parties ITANT, T4 mIOARI3 4T - 130301215
——aerom retated parties i ..__.;‘_-____h.__,_._ 311218
PI6992470 266,970,778 PILES9I6T  #I16653.03%
0l
Wether past due  Past dug butpor - Fas st
lor empadred  impaired nprad Tatal
Fingneigl puger -
Cash PL130005% B B FL1anms
Truce and othes recelvables 1,831,157 [OT Q8T 454 LZ054 ERZ [X2,473. %04

Due from retuted pasties 2T.030.711 B3.090,021 110,120, 752
— h———*_l._. —
P30,942, 843 FIILO3Z5T6  PI) 604 R P34, 725 14

AS of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s maxinium Exposure (o credit risk is equal to the
carying amount of its finaneial ssssts,

Credit Quatity per Class af Financial dsser
Financial essets are classified us high grade if the counterparties are not expected to default in settling
their obligations. Thus, the eredit risk exposure is minimal, These counterparties normully mclade

The Company has impaired receivables amounting to P12,689,387 and F12,694 882 as of
December 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively (sce Note 4),

Fair v "
The following methods and assumptions were usad to estimate the fair value of each class of financiyl
instruments for which it ks practicable to estimste sweh vahye:

Cath, Trade and Other Receivables, Dug Jrom Related Parties, Accaunts Payable and Accrued
Expenses and Due 1o Related Partips

The carrying amounts of cash, trade and other receivables, amounted owed by related partics,

Accounts payable and accrued expenses and current amounts owed to related parties spproximate their

fair values due to the shart-term maturity of these financial instruments.

LU,




AFS Financial dssety
Unquoted equity secunity is carried af cost or its available net book value since fair valug of this AFS
financial asser cannot be relinbly determined as this is not listed and has na available bid price,

Nomcurrent Amownts Due from Related Parsy

The fair varhue of noncurrent smounts due from related party were based on discounted value of futgre
wash Mows using applicable credit-adjusied risk-free rales of 5. 7% and 3.9% as of December 31, 2017
and 2016 (Level 31 The fair value of nongurrent amounts due from related panty amounted 1o
P24,793,312 and #24,124,646 a5 of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The camying value
of noncurrent amounts due from related party amoumed 1o B2 1,497,744 and P27,030.711 as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, rospectively.

Noncurrent Loans Payable

The carrying amount of the loans payuble 2s of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are estimated ueimng the
discounted cash flow methodelegy with the applicable credit-adjusted risk-free rates of 5. 7% and
3.5, respectively (Lavel 3). The fair value of noncurrent loans pavable amountad 1o F282 991 ung
F337,186 as of December 3 1, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The carrying value of notcurrent Inans
payable amounted 1o P351,614 and B449,107 as of December 3 1,2017 and 2018, respectively
The following table demonstrates the REMSITIVity to n reusonably possible change in mterest rtes fir
the years eaded December 31, 2017 and 2016, with all other variables held constant. in the
Company's income before income:

Inorease

Incrense [ Decrease) on

{Decrease) in Incame Before

Basis poings Income Tax

December 31, 1017 100 (P18,968)
=TI 18,968

December 31, 2016 4100 (B673)
=100 073

The Company considers the equity presented in the parent company statement of financsis! position as
its core capital. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is 1o ensure that it
maintaing strong eradit rating and stable capital ratios in erder 1o support its business and maximize

awhership for all listed companiss. Based on the memorandum, fisted companies shall, ut all times,
listed companies” issued and cutslanding shares, exclugive of any treastry shares or as such

pereentage that may be prescribed by the PSE, The Company has complied with the minimum publie
ownership,

Cil L, s L e Y
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As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company was able to meet its capital management

ohjectives,

18

Business Segment Information

The Company's gperating segments are organized and managed separately according 1o the nuture of

the services offered as follows:

* Software Licenscs and Services - provides high value products and services o clients
* Hroadband Services - provides high-speed broadband service of up 1o 700 Mhbps to clients.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making

decisions aboul resource allocation and

based on operating profit or loss.

performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated

Financial information on the operations of the various business segments are summarized us follnws:

L i
Software Licenses
andl services  Dromibamd services Tutsl
Srrvice fees P50638,000 FI4.510,06%9 B75, 151,905
Sabes 11,698,063 - 20,698,063
Othars 9,788,266 - 9,8, 265
Tatal revenug i1 133,48 D6 (IR
Casts of sales and services PR R4 04T 7 38E 191 PLd 334 738
Genersl snd sdminisfrative rxpoases 41,182,737 3170205 45,357,041
Froviskom fir income tax 188,771 - 1,080,771
Met income (7,900 404 13,956, 672 S0y
Hher information
Capitsl rxpeniditores 1385657 SORSHEIT T4
Segment pxsets 351,868 268 5548692 BT 04 080
Umallacated A FS linnncial
masrl 1189 178 350
Segment liabilides 1R4,007,T14 - IR4B0T.TI
Depreocistion snd s mortizstion 1.150.280 LiTo20s 43465
Upsllecated interest expense snd
other charges 134,850
pLi] [
Sofrawre Licenses and
ferviced  Broadband services Taotal
Bervice focs P41 230,381 5] 141 Pd7 210 523
Sales i3,048 685 = LY, DeH 50 S
Oithers 1,762,076 - 1,762,076
Total revenius P36,041 143 P90, 141 Bh2.022 243
Custs of saley nnd services Plo Al 205 PLMAAT] BIGOA6 610
Clenioral amd adiministrative expenses 39,200,710 LAY 4, 109 227
Provision for income tay LELRS L - Eh0aEd
et inpome {1.443.318) 1,371.003 2TARS
Uither information
Capitsl expendinures 70 158 4347 55| E 317 900
Begmen assels 158 550,433 B4 L4 61 UOR 440
Llillosatod AFS finamcial
assct P beir BELT
Segment ligkilities a5, 629 230 s [65.635:220
Dieprecigtion end sinarizaton | 265 590 503,517 2,174,507
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In 2017, two () customers sccounted for |7, | §ag and |3.83% of 1otal revenue (rom infrastructure
build-up and technical sarvices. In 2016, two (2) customers secounted fir V4.05% each of 1ol
revenue from infrasorue ture butild-up and technical services, These revenues wers reported under

"Software licenses and services" segment.

- Changes in Linbilitles Arising from Financing Activities
danuary |, December 11,
2017 Cash Mows a7
D 1o related parties B71,680,25) PT4,762 203 Plad442 153
Loansy hic 3 87 4481 951

~aDh Pa YR
Tutal linhilities from financing activities P72.217,083 PTAETA62]  Plag ko). 74

Notes 1o Statements of Cash Flows

idvances amounting to B200,000,000 for 200,000,000 Company common shares with a pur valug of
B[ which has been approved on December 17, 201 5 (see Note 17).

In 2016, the noncash financing Bctivity involves the COnVErsion of B264, 000,000 advances from
Velarde, Inc. to the Company's common shares, This is currently presented under equity as dogosit
for future stock sy bscription pending the spproval by SEC of the Company's application for increags
in authorized capital stock (see Note 9),

e

-

. Urther Matter

Cm January 50, 2018, the Company secursd #shor-term Joan Agreement with Land Bank of (e
Philippines amounting to P50,000,000 with an inferest rate of 4 80% per wnnum. The loan, e luding
the interests incurred, will matpe on July 27, 20: 8,

Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 152010

Un November 25, 2010, the BIR issped RR No. 152010 which Amends certuin provisions of
RR No. 21-2002 prescribing the manper of compliance with any docomentary and/or procedury)

LTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON SLI'I‘?LEHENT&H'E SCHEDULES

The Board of Dircctors anl the Srackholders
NOW Corporation

Linit 5-1. 5 Floor, OPL Building

100 C. Palanca Streer, Legaspi Vilinge
Makati City

SYCIP GGORRES VELAYO & €O,

e fech

Jhoannn Feliza . G

Partner

CPA Cenificate No. 0114 122

EC Accreditation Ne, 414-AR-| (Group A),

March 2, 2007, valid until March 1. 2620

Tax ldentification Mo, 219-674-288

BIR Acereditation Mo, U8-001998-103-2017,
Jamuuery 31, 2017, valid iy January 30, 2020

PTR No. 6621266, January 9, 2018, Makati City

April 9, 2018
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CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The M of Now Corpomtion js respongible for the PrEparmtion and fhiy Presemtation of (e
financial including nli:r:hnmmmﬂhmwﬂ,ml? 2016 and

In preparing the Tfinancial Halements, maosgemen; 5 responzible for assessing the Company ‘s abilin,
|m.-rmu‘nmuagning Concern, disclosing. & applicable TUAIMETS relgied 0 2oing concern and using the
. i :

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors, appoinicd by (he Stockbolders, has audited the
financial Halements of the company in accordance with Philipping Standards o Auditing, and in it
TEpT o the Stockbolders, hag Sepressed its opinion on the faimess of Presentation upon completion
of such nudit.

Signetumg :
-‘_‘_'—-—-_-_'

Chestrmacm of the Bogred
HELr AN SWLEHD | Bl im0
Signature: — e i Leplhges -
e PR 16 20W
Presicent and Chief Executive fficer
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
Makari City 5.5

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I. ANGELINE L. MACASAET, Filipino, of legal age, with office address a1 Unit 5-1, 5"
Floor OPL Building, 100 C. Palanca Sireet. Lepaspi Village, Makati Crty, afier having been duly
sworly in accordance with law, do hereby state that:

l. 1 am the incumbent Corporate Secretary of NOW Corporation, a corporation duly
organized ond existing under and by virtue of the laws of the Philippines with principal addesess o
Unit 5, 5" Floor OPL Building, 100 C, Palanca Stréet, Legaspi Village, Muakati City (the
“Corporation ),

% | am nlso a Director and the Secretary of the Executive Committee, the body authorized
by the Board of Directors of the Corposation 1o handle the normal and customary operations of the
Corporation;

3, | hereby ceriify that ot the 23 April 2008 meeting of the Executive Commitiee
{ExeCom) held at the business office of the Corporation, in which meeting o quorum was preseal, the
following résolutions were unanimously adopled:

“RESOLYED FURTHER. as it is hereby resolved, that the Chairman,
of the Board, the President and the Chief Finance Officer be authorized
to sign the Statement of Management Responsibility in connection with
the Company’s Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the
Audited Parent Company Financial Siatements for the periods ending
2017, 2016 and 20135, as audited by its external auditor Sveip Gorres
Yelovo & Co™

4, | further centify that the foregoing resclutions have not been revohked, superseded,
amended. and that these continue to be in force and effect as of this date.

5, This Cerification is wssued for whatever legal purpose it may serve,
IN WITNESS WHEREOF. | hove hercunto sei my hand this 24" dov of April 2008 i Mukati
iy, Philippinegs.
i

|
If} i
ANGELINE L.%ACASAET
Corporale Secrelan

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this 24" day of April 2018, affiant personalls
appeared and exhibited to me her Phil. Passport Mo, P36001 93 A issued by DFA — Manila on 06 July
2H 7T and valid until 05 July 2022, bearing the affiant’s ph ph and sjenature,
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